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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The Honorable Mayor

and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville
Fayetteville, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, “the City” as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2004, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of City's
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supperting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the governmental activities, the business type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City as of June 30, 2004, and the respective changes in financial position, and the cash flows
where appropriate, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison of the general fund for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October
8, 2004 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reparting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.




The management’s discussion and analysis, the analysis of funding progress and the schedule of
employer contributions for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance and the
Public Weorks Commission are not required parts of the basic financial statements but are
suppiementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no apinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules, as well as the accompanying schedule of expenditures of
Federal and State awards as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act, for the year ended June 30, 2004, and the combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules for the year ended June 30, 2003, are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2004, and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation o the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

%\ﬁm NN ey

Fayetteville, North Carolina
October 8, 2004
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Fayetteville (“the City"), we offer readers of the City's financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. We
encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in the City's financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

« The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $791.2 million (net assets).
Of this amount, $132.0 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government's ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

e The governments total net assets increased by $16.5 milion, primarily due to a decrease in the
purchased power and generation expenses, partially offset by the reduction in the amount of fuei
adjustment charges assessed to electric customers in the Electric Fund.

e As of the close of fiscal year 2004, the City's governmental funds reported an ending fund balance of
$55.2 million an increase of $7.8 million in comparison to prior year, as restated. Approximately 63
percent of total fund balance, or $34.9 million is availabie for spending at the government's discration
(unreserved fund balance).

e At the end of fiscal year 2004, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $28.5 million or 35.9
percent of total general fund expenditures for the fiscal year. Of this amount, $9.3 million has been
designated for subsequent year expenditures, special purposes, or debt service, bringing the
undesignated general fund balance to $19.2 million or 22.5 percent of general fund expenditures and
transfers out.

e The City's total debt increased by $10.8 million during fiscal year 2004.

e The City's most recent bond issue (governmental activities) was rated Aa3 {(Moody's Investor Services)
and AA- (Standard & Pocr’s). In fiscal year 1998, the Public Works Commission received an underlying
rating of A1 and A+ by Moody's and Standard and Poor’s, respectively. The City's rmost recent bond
issue in the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds (business-type activities) are rated Aaa/VMIG1
(Moody’s) and AAA/A-1+ (Standard & Poor's) based on municipal bond insurance policies. These ratings
were affirmed during a bond refinancing in fiscal year 2004.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The
City's basic financial statements consist of three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes {o the financial statements. The basic financial statements present two different
views of the City through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial statements. in additicn o the
basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental information that wiil enhance the reader's
understanding of the financial condition of the City.



Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figure 1
Management's Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements
Government-wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements
Summary » Detail

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statements.
They provide both short and long-term information about the City's financial status.

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the individual
parts of the City's government. These statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements.
There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary
comparison statements; 3) the proprietary fund statements; and 4) the fiduciary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in
detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is provided to
show details about the City's non-major governmental and proprietary funds and the internal service funds. The
govemnmental and internal service funds are added together in one column on the basic financial statements.
Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the City's
finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements
provide short and long-term information about the City's financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the City’s net assets and how they have changed. Net assets are
the difference between the City’s total assets and total liabilities. Measuring net assets is one way to gauge the
City's financial condition.



The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental activities; 2) business-type
activities, and 3) component units. The governmental activities include most of the City’s basic services such as
general administration, public safety, environmental protection, transportation, economic and physical
development, and recreation and community facilities. Property and other taxes and state and federal grant funds
finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the City charges customers to
provide. These include the electric, water and wastewater, airport and transit services offered by the City or its
Pubiic Works Commission. The final category is the component units. Although legally separate from the City,
Fayetteville Air Cargo Facilities, Inc. is important to the City because the City exercises control aver the Board by
appointing a majority of ifs members and having the authority to remove appointed members at will.

The government-wide financial statements are on Pages 14 and 15 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City's maost significant activities. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. The City, like all other governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund
accounting o ensure and reflect compliance (or nen-compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as
the General Statutes or the City’s budget ordinance. Ail of the funds of the City can be divided into two
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the City's basic services are accounted for in
governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and
what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are
reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting which provides a current financial
resources focus. As a result, the governmentai fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term
view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the City's
programs. The relationship between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities) and gavernmentai funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial
statements.

The City adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The budget is a
legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the City, the management of the City, and
the decisions of the City Council about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the
City to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement
pravided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the City complied with the budget ordinance and whether
or not the City succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary
comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format, language,
and classifications as the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance. The statement
shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the City Council; 2) the final budget as amended by the
City Council; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4)
the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges.

Proprietary Funds — The City has two kinds of proprietary funds. Enterprise Funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses
enterprise funds fo account for its electric, water and wastewater, mass transit, and airport operations. These
funds are the same as those functions shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities. Internal Service Funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate
costs internally among the functions of the City. The City uses an internal service fund to account for its fleet
leasing program, fleet maintenance, and risk management activities. Because these operations benefit
predominately governmental rather than business-type activities, the internal service funds have been included
within the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds — Trust funds are used to account for the activities of funds the City holds in trust for others.
The City has two pension trust funds and two private-purpose trust funds.



Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements are on pages 27 — 62 of this repor.

Other Information — in addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes
certain required supplementary information conceming the City's progress in funding its obligation to provide
pension benefits o its employees. Required supplementary information can be found beginning on page 64 of

this report,

Government-wide Financial Analysis

Net Assets. The City's combined net assets increased $16.5

milfion, or 2.1% from fiscal year 2003, as restated,

to 2004. Net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial condition. The
information provided below provides a more detailed view of the City's net assets.
The City’s Net Assets
Figure 2
CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE'S NET ASSETS
Governmental Business-type
Agtivities Activities Total
2003 (As restated} 2004 2003 (As rastated) 2004 2003 (As restated) 2004
Current and other assels $ 70,947.057 § 82,188,258 120,787,276 $ 126,198,950 -1 191,704,233 § 208,387,208
Capital assets 308,500.452 307,982,156 572,309,649 580,163,321 880,810,101 B8B8 157 477
Total assets 379,447,509 390,180.414 593,086,925 708,384,271 1,072 514 434 1,096,544 ,685
Long-term liabilities outstanding 59,959,087 62,975,347 188,296,908 195,157,991 248,255,995 259,133,338
Other liabilities 9,228,333 11,987,425 40,275,694 34,198,778 49,504 027 46,186,204
Total liabilities 69,187,420 74,962,772 228,572,602 230,356,770 297,750,022 305,314,542
Net assets:
invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 256,858 8340 252,737,261 384,181,318 384,136,802 641,040,148 636,874,083
Restricted - 2,169,817 10,527,554 19,951,896 10,527,554 22,321,713
Unrestrictad £3,401,255 80,110,564 69,785,451 71,918,803 123.186,710 132,029,367
Total net assels $ 310,260 088 § 315,217,642 464,484,323 § 476,007 501 $ 774,754,412 § 791,225,143




The assets of the City exceeded liabilities by $791.2 million as of June 30, 2004. Net assets is reported in three
categories: invested in capital assets, net of related debt of $636.9 million, Restricted net assets of $22.3 million
and Unrestricted net assets $132.0 million.

The invested in capital assets, net of related debt category is defined as the City’s investment in City owned
capital assets (e.g. infrastructure, land, buildings, automotive equipment, office and other equipment, and electric,
water, and wastewater systems), less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items.
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related
debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capitai assets cannot
be used to fiquidate these liabilities.

Another category of net assets is restricted net assets. This represents resources that are subject to extemal
restrictions on how they may be used.

The final category of net assets is unrestricted net assets. This balance may be used to meet the government's
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At June 30, 2004, $132.0 million, or 16.7% of the total net assets
reported of $791.2 million, is unrestricted.



Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Property taxes
Cther taxes
Grants and contributions not restricted
to specific programs
Cther
Total revenues

Expenses:

Administraticn
Public safety
Environmental protection
Transportation
Economic and physical development
Recreation and community facilities
Interest and fees
Electric activities
Water and wastewater activilies
Transit
Airport

Total expenses

increase in net assets before transfers
Transfers

Special Item

Increase in net assels

Net assets, July 1

Net asseats, June 30

Governmental activities.

The City's Changes in Net Assets

Figure 3
CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE'S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2003 2004 2003 20 2003 2004
As restated As restated As restated

$ 4226286 § 5888148 $ 192,107,747 $ 190,228,458 $ 185,334,013 § 196,114,607
8,510,710 7,171,923 1,672,063 1,903,066 10,282,778 9,074,989
133,554 2,695,396 14,464 226 10,417,203 14,597,780 13,113,299
34,004,378 38,485,985 - - 34,004,378 38,495,985
30,641,139 31,127,455 - - 30,641,139 31,127,455
547,091 568,087 - - 547,081 569,087
2,076,524 892,911 1,807,802 2,432,680 3,684,326 3,325,601
80,329,662 86,840,906 210,051,343 204,880,117 290,381,505 291,821,023
12,384,637 10,560,827 - - 12,384,837 10,560,827
40,577,161 43 682,505 - - 40,577,161 43,682,505
7,957,261 8,871,462 - - 7,957,261 8,871,462
12,123,658 13,846,642 - - 12,123,658 13,846,642
5,459,843 4,416,477 - - 5,459,043 4,416,477
6,525,688 6.134,504 - - 5,525,688 6,134,504
2,783,912 2,542,194 - - 2,783,912 2,542,194
- - 142,761,403 132,677,111 142,761,403 132,677,111
- - 45,973,455 44,147 344 45,973,455 44,147,344
- - 5,073,264 5,021,030 5,073,264 5,021,030
- - 3,570,780 3.450,196 3,570,780 3,450,196
47,812,260 90,054,611 197,378,902 185,295,681 285,191,162 275,350,292
(7,482,598) (3,213,705) 12,672,941 19,684,436 5,190,343 16,470,731
7,902,191 8,171,258 {7,902,181) (8,171,258) - -
B,256,250 - - - 8,256,250 -
8,675,843 4,957,553 4,770,750 11,613,178 13,446,593 16,470,734
301,584,246 310,260.089 459,723,573 464,494,323 761,307,819 774754,412

elements of this increase are as follows:

$ 310,260,089 § 315217642

$ 464,494,323 § 476,007,501 $ 774754412 § 791225143

Governmental activities increased the City's net assets by $4.96 million.

Key

+ Current year property taxes increased $4.4 million primarily due to the annexation of “Area 4B" and the
property revaluaticn, which became effective with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2004.

« Cablevision franchise taxes increased $0.8 million.

e Local sales tax revenues increased $2.6 million



e These increases were offset by the following:

o Investment earnings decreased by $0.7 millicn in FY2004 compared to FY2003. This decrease is
primarily due to an overail lower rate of return on investments during the year.

o $2.1 million payment to Cumberland County for sales tax.

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $11.5 million, or 69.9% of
the total increase. The majority of the increase was due to a decrease in the purchased-power and generation
expenses, partially offset by the reduction in the amount of fuel adjustment charges assessed to electric
customers.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compiiance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term infiows,
outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing
requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a government’s net resources
avaitable for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the fiscal year 2004, unreserved fund
balance of the General Fund was $28.5 million, while total fund balance reached $41.8 million. As a measure of
the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to
total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 33.5 percent of total General Fund expenditures
and transfers, while total fund balance represents 52.8 percent of that same amount.

At June 30, 2004, the governmental funds of the City reported a combined fund balance of $55.2 miltion, a 16.4
percent increase from the previous year as restated.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights:

During fiscal year 2004, the City prepared for the Phase V annexation of approximately 27 square rriles and
42,000 residents by acquiring vehicles and equipment and hiring pelice officers, firefighters and other staff to
serve the area.  Near the conclusion of fiscal year 2004, severai legal challenges against the annexation were
filed, resulting in a decision by the North Carolina Supreme Court to stay the annexation pending legal resolution
of the cases. To address the impact of this uncertainty, management postponed filling certain positions and
purchasing certain equipment and the City finished the year in sound financial condition.

The City revised the budget on several occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall intc one of three
categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget ordinance
once exact information is availabie; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external
sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to cover
items encumbered or designated for a special purpose in the previous year's budget but remain unexpended at
the end of the previous year. Totai amendments to the General Fund increased revenues and expenditures by
$18.1 million or 21.4%. The primary reasons for the increase were to refiect $3.2 million expenditures associated
with Phase V pre-annexation costs, $6.8 million equipment purchases associated with Phase V pre-annexation, a
fund balance appropriation of $2.25 millien to cover items encumbered or designated as of June 30, 2003 and a
$3.8 million appropriation to defease outstanding bonds in connection with a general obligation refunding bond
issue that occurred in Octoper 2003.

Actual revenues and other financing sources for the General Fund were less than the finai amended budget
amount by $3.7 million. This is primarily due to a fund balance appropriation of $8.2 million, which is an other
financing source that is not reflected as actual current year revenue.
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Actual expenditures and other financing uses were less than the final amended budget by $13.7 million. The
primary reason for this variance is due to the uncertainty surrounding the Phase V annexation. Management
placed a citywide hold on purchases and hiring to mitigate the negative impact resulting from not annexing the
Phase V area. Over $7.5 million can be attributed to unexpended capital outlay primarily associated with
annexation capital equipment and vehicle replacement and $4.7 million can be attributed to unexpended funds
for cperations. Approximately $4.8 million in unexpended equipment and capital improvement funds were
designated at June 30, 2004 to be re-appropriated in fiscal year 20086.

Proprietary Funds. The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net assets of the Electric Fund at the end of the fiscal year
amounted to $46.2 million, and those for the Water and Wastewater Fund equaled $22.5 million. The total change
in net assets, as restated, for both funds was $2.5 million and $8.1 million, respectively. The increase in Net
Assets is due to the decrease in purchased power and generation expenses of $10.8 million, partially offset by the
$4.8 million reduction in the amount of fuel adjustment charges assessed to electric customers.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2004, totals $888.2 million (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include infrastructure;
buildings; improvements; automotive equipment; office and other equipment; and electric, water, and wastewater
utility systems.

Maior capital asset transactions during the year include:

$1.7 million in police vehicles and computer equipment

$1.2 million in land and land improvements, purchased for various parks and general governmental
purposes

$0.9 million in fire vehicles and equipment

$0.5 million in general governmental telephone and computer equipment

$0.4 million in parks vehicles and equipment

$0.4 million in street maintenance vehicles and equipment

$0.3 in solid waste vehicles and equipment

$0.7 million for Fayettevilie Air Cargo building

$1.7 million in airport land and improvements

$5.3 million of developer contributed water and wastewater utility infrastructures

$4.6 million to expand Rockfish Creek Water Reclamation Facility, PH I

$4.2 million to install water and wastewater utility infrastructure in newly annexed areas
$3.9 million of computer hardware and software equipment

$2.1 million in telecom fiber optics

$1.5 million for electric distribution system transformers

$1.4 million for certain uptown utility infrastructure projects

$0.9 million for water main rehabilitation

10



Land
Infrastructure
Electric utility system

Wastewater system
W ater system
Equipment and machinery

Buildings and improvements

The City's Capital Assets

Equipment, furniture and fixtures

Computer programs
Vehicies
Construction in progress

Total

Figure 4
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
$ 34,367,330 9 13,664,886 $ 48,032,216
229,941,799 - 229,941,799
- 163,808,686 163,808,686
- 191,656,371 191,656,371
- 115,935,433 115,935,433
- 8,803,742 8,803,742
27,250,538 52,514 257 79,764,785
2,989,423 959,357 3,948,780
- 6,002,074 6,002,074
4234 424 3,461,148 7,695,572
9,208,642 23,359,367 32,568,000
$§ 307092156 % 580,165,321 $ 888157477

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 3 of the Basic Financial Statements.

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2004, The City had total bonded debt outstanding of $230.1 million, of which
$39.6 million is debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City. In addition, the City has a number of capitai
leases and several installment notes cutstanding. A summary of total long-term debt is shown in Figure 5.

General Obligation, Capital Leases and Installment Notes Payable

Figure 5
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004

Bonded debt § 49,867833 $ 45978341 $ 181202717 S 184,160,805 $ 231,160,350 $ 230,139,146
Obligations under capital

leases 6,479,845 13,341,744 - - 6,479,845 13,341,744
instailment note payable 245,000 185,000 6,835,614 11,867,713 7,080,614 12,052,713
Total long-term debt $ 56,502,478 3 59,505,085 § 188128331 $ 195028518 3 244,720,809 $ 255,533,603
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The City's totat debt increased by $10.8 million, or 4.4%, during the past fiscai year. The increase is due to a
revenue bond restructuring which refinanced and cash defeased certain older higher rate bonds and provided
new money for capital projects, a new capital lease agreement and draws on a new state revolving loan.

The City’'s most recent bond ratings, received in connection with the Series 2003 generai cbligation refunding
bonds and the Series 2003B variable rate revenue refunding bonds, are shown below:

City (governmental activities).

Moody's investor Services Aa3d
Standard & Poor’s AA-
Public Works Commission (business-type activities):
Moody's Investor Services A1l
Standard & Poor's A+

The City's most recent bond issue in the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds (business-type activities) are
rated Aaa/VMIG1 (Moady's) and AAA/A-1+ (Standard & Poor's) based on municipal bond insurance policies.
These ratings were affirmed during a bond refinancing in fiscal year 2G04.

The State of North Carolina fimits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can issue to 8
percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's boundaries. The legal
debt margin for the City is approximately $ 502.7 million. The City has ne bonds authorized but unissued at June
30, 2004.

Additional information regarding The City's long-term debt can be found in Note 5 on pages 42 —50 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2005

Governmental Activities: Three significant factors affected the fiscai year 2005 General Fund original budget: the
planned June 30, 2004 annexation of approximately 27 square miles with a resident population of approximately
42,000, merger of the City of Fayetteville and Cumberiand County parks and recreation programs and employee
pay increases based on 4 percent of pay range “midpoints”. The annexation areas, known as the “Phase V
annexation” include the existing City of Fayetteville limits to the Hoke County line, Lagrange Subdivision,
McArthur Road, Qakmont Circle, Oates Drive, Andover Road, Raynor Drive, five unincorporated areas along
Ramsey Street and Plymouth Street. Also, effective, July 1, 2004, the City of Fayetteville assumed oversight of
the new City of Fayetteville/Cumberland County parks and recreation program.

The City Council has approved a $111.9 million general fund budget for fiscai year 2005, which represents a
$27.4 million or 32.4% increase over the original budget for fiscal year 2004. The tax rate remains the same at 53
cents per $100 value. The primary reasons for the budget increase are due to the inclusion of the $16.6 miflion
budget to serve the “Phase V" annexation areas, $2.4 million for Cumberland County's portion of the parks and
recreation program and $4.7 million for the upgrade to the 800 MHz public safety radio system.

The annexation is estimated to increase Fayetteville's property tax base by $1.7 billion, increasing the estimated
current year property tax revenue by $8.6 million, and increase other revenues by an additional $6.3 million. fn
addition, the City expects to obtain $6.8 million in installment financing proceeds to fund the 800 MHz radio
system upgrade, annexation equipment and facilities and police vehicle replacement.

In late June 2004, severai lawsuits were filed challenging the scheduled annexation. On July 12, 2004, the North
Carolina Supreme Court issued a stay of the City's annexation pending legal resolution of the cases. Legal
resolution of the cases is expected to take several years. The City Council intends to reduce the City's General
Fund budget by approximately $13.3 miilion or 11.9%, if the annexation does not become effective in fiscal year
2005.
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The City has taken the following actions to mitigate the negative impact of the delay in annexation: instituted a
hiring freeze for certain positions, postponed the purchase of replacement vehicles in fiscat year 2005 due to the
recent acquisition of various vehicles for the Phase V annexation, postponed employee pay increases far
approximately two months and contracted with Cumberiand County to provide fire protection in the Lafayette
Village and Lake Rim fire districts. These fire districts were absorbed into the boundaries of the City of
Fayetteville prior to the Supreme Court's issuance of a stay of the annexation on July 12, 2004. The City
anticipates that it will use an additional $1.4 million in fund balance by June 30, 2005, if the annexation does not
become effective in fiscal year 2005.

Rusiness — type Activities: The City considered many factors when setting the Fiscal Year 2005 budget to include
user fees and charges.  The cost of power is unpredictable; therefore, higher power costs are reflected in the
fiscal year 2005 Electric Fund budget. The largest contributor to the higher cost of energy is the price of fuel. The
new contract with Progress Energy Caroiinas, Inc. has been in effect for one fiscal year. While savings were
expected to reduce electric rates, the volatility of the fuel market has mitigated any savings at this time. Fuel
costs over budgeted amounts will be recovered from the fuel adjustment collected from customers. The new
electric cost of service study will be reviewed and recommendations for electric rate changes may be considered
in the latter part of fiscal year 2005. Due to an increase in water and wastewater rates late in fiscal year 2004,
there are no additicnal rate increases budgeted for fiscal year 2005.

Transfers to the General Fund are expected to be $2.6 million in fiscal year 2005 due to the 5% electric sales
transfer policy, street lighting and a transfer to pay the General Fund's share of utility infrastructure debt service.

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Fund fiscal year 2005 budget includes funding for projects to improve
street lighting, downtown utility system upgrades, downtown streetscape improvements, new street lighting in
annexed areas, re-development of a central city industrial park area and supporting and improving service to
existing industry. The 2005 budget also includes an appropriation of $250 thousand from the Electric Fund to the
Electric Rate Stabilization Fund. In addition, a 2% employee performance pay allowance, plus CPI increase of
2%, is included in the Electric, Water and Wastewater fiscal year 2005 budget.

Requests for Information
This report is designed to provide an overview of the City's finances for those with an interest in this area.

Questions conceming any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should be
directed to the Chief Financial Officer, City of Fayetteville, 433 Hay Street, Fayetteville, NC 283C1.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These basic financial statements provide a summary of the financiai
position of all governmental and business activities and the major and

nonmajor funds. They also serve as an introduction to the more detailed
schedules that follow in subsequent sections.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Net Assets

“June 30, 2004

Assets

Cash and investments
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
internal balances

Assassment receivable
Due from other governments

inventories
Prepaid expenses
Noncurrent portion of note receivabie
Restricted asset - cash and investments
Restricted asset - accounts receivable
Restricted asset - collateral pledged
Other assets
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress

Other capital assets,
net of depreciation

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Restricted liabilities - accounts payable
Unearned revenues
Unearned deposits
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year

Due in more than one year
Total liabilities

Net assets
invested in capital assets, net of related
Restricted for:

Capital projects

Debt service

Other purposes
Unrestricted

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Total net assets

Business Total Fayetteville
Governmental Type Primary

Activities Activities Government
$ 55,576,700 23,978,457 79,555,157
3,707,580 - 3,707,590
3,973,536 35,423,678 39,397,214
398,921 (398,921) -
462,777 - 462,777
7,793,586 799,771 8,593,357
539,098 11,162,818 11,701,916
548,872 166,247 715,119
4,936,989 - 4,936,989
4,168,312 51,211,429 55,380,741
- 796,341 796,341
- 229,974 229,974
80,877 2,829,156 2,910,033
43,575,972 37,024,253 80,600,225
264,416,184 543,141,068 807,557,252
390,180,414 706,364,271 1,096,544 685
11,399,814 23,281,286 34,691,100
- 6,273,795 6,273,795
492,100 21,314 513,414
95,511 4,612,384 4,707,895
9,384,619 11,764,228 21,158,847
53,580,728 184,383,763 237,974,491
74,962,772 230,356,770 305,319,542
252,737,261 384,136,802 636,874,083
- 10,953,452 10,953,452
- 8,998,444 8,098 444
2,368,817 - 2,369,817
60,110,564 71,918,803 132,029,367
$ 315217842 § 475,007,501 $ 791,225,143
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2004

Assets
Cash and investments
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Interfund receivable
Assessments receivable
Inventories
Restricted asset - cash and investments
Total assets

Liahifities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Unearned deposits
Deferred revenues
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved
By State statute
For encumbrances
For inventories
For downtown
For wireless 911
Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent years
For special purpose
For debt service
Undesignated
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor:
Designated for subsequent years
Special revenue
Capital prejects
Undesignated
Special revenue
Total fund halances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Other Total
Governmental Governmental

General Funds Funds
$ 38194634 3 9,091,832 $ 47,286,466
3,376,391 115,350 3,491 741
9,636,025 7,041,380 16,677,405
398,921 - 398,921
457 626 5,151 462 777
145,027 - 145,027
- 4169312 4,169,312
§ 52208624 © 20423025 $ 72,631,649
$ 5194277 $ 1886855 $ 7,081,132
95,511 - 85,511
5,114,580 5,114,033 10,228,613
10,404,368 7,000,888 17,405,256
9,181,667 2,101,733 11,283,400
3,676,094 4. 878,237 8,554,331
145,027 - 145,027
306,339 - 306,339
- 11,111 11,111
1,686,565 - 1,686,565
5,713,518 45,000 5,758,518
1,926,997 - 1,826,997
19,158,049 - 19,158,049
- 614,874 614,874
- 4,213,485 4,213,485
- 1,657,697 1,557,697
41 804,256 13,422,137 55,226,393
$ 52208824 $ 20423025 S 72,631,649

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2004

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Ending fund balance - governmental funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,

are not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-peried expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds.

Costs of bond issuance are current-pericd expenditures in the funds, but will be deferred
in the statement of net assets and amortized over the life of the outstanding debt.

Prepaid expenses are current-period expenditures in the funds, but are assets not
available to pay current-period expenditures and, therefcre, are capitalized.

Accrued tax penalties receivable are not available to pay for current-period expenditures

and, therefore, are not recorded in the funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of Warranty fleet
expenses, fleet maintenance expenses and insurance expenses to individual funds. The
assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities.

Accrued interest payable on long-term debt is not a current expenditure and therefore
not recorded in the funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Net assets of govermmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 55226,393

307,681,665

9,747,244

80,877

285,000

215,849

5,388,177

{523,788)

(62,883,777)

$ 315,217,842




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Revenues

Ad valorem taxes

Qther taxes

Intergovernmental

Cther functional

Miscellaneous

interest earned on investments
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
Administration
Public safety
Environmental protection
Transportation
Economic and physicat development

Recreation and community faciiities
Debt service:

Principal
[nferest and fees
Issue costs

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures

Other financing sources {uses)
Bonds
Capital leases
Transfers in

Transfers out
Payment to refund bond escrow agent

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance - beginning (as previously stated)

Prior period adjustment
Fund balance - beginning (restated)

Fund balance - ending

Cther Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds
$ 38,431,852 - § 38431862
28,272,013 3,184,181 32,436,194
4,797,693 4,239,750 9,037.443
3,925,901 - 3,825,901
838,205 1,448,151 2,386,356
361,878 80,480 422 368
77,727,552 8,912,572 86,640,124
10,921,742 215,228 11,137,970
42 507,812 2,386,978 44 894 790
6,218,845 2,746,316 8,965,161
6,564,698 1,674,015 8,138,713
753,325 5,366,146 6,118,471
6,231,435 1,826,999 8,058,434
4,315,181 925,000 5,240,181
1,840,891 885,522 2,508,413
58,084 - 58,084
79,412,013 15,707,204 95,118,217
(1,684,461) (6,794,632) (8,479,093)
3,815,605 - 3,815,605
7,851,083 219,365 8,070,428
9,487,468 4,485 370 13,972,839
(5,857,081) (144,500) {5,801,581)
(3,788,439) - (3,788,439)
11,708 617 4,560,235 16,268,852
13,024,156 (2,234,397) 7,789,759
26,255,778 15,656,534 44 912,312
2,524,322 - 2,524, 322
31,780,100 15,658,534 47 436,634
S 41.804.258 13,422,137 & 55226393

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

18



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capitai outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
depreciation exceeded capital outlay in the current period.

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(L.e. sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assets.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

The issuance of long-term debt (2.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmentai funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental
funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar
items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities, This amount is the net effect of these
differences in the treament of long-term debt and reiated accounts.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
currert financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with
governmental activities.

$ 7,789,759

(73.171)

(435,126)

(460,521)

(2,980,319)

(68,070)

1,185,001

Change in net assets of governmental activities

$§ 4,957,553

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Variance
With Final
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes $ 36,474,277 36,474,277 § 38,431,862 § 1,857,585
Other taxes 26,421,980 26,421,990 29,272,013 2,850,023
Intergovernmental 4,687,617 4,778,517 4,797,693 19,176
Other functional 3,215,333 3,244,901 3,925,901 681,000
Miscellaneous 1,014,113 1,014,113 938,205 (75,908)
Interest earned on investments 732,099 732,099 361,878 (370,221)
Total revenues 72,645,429 72,665,897 77,727,552 5,061,655
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Administration 13,240,555 13,142,595 10,921,742 2,220,853
Public safety 40,312,729 47,334,065 42,507,812 4,826,253
Environmental protection 5,601,605 9,239,695 6,218,845 3,020,850
Transportation 6,642,996 7,503,323 6,564,698 938,625
Economic and physical development 848,888 981,503 753,325 228,178
Recreation and community facilities 6,292,281 7,319,671 6,231,435 1,088,236
Debt servica:
Principal 4,704,693 5,148,544 4,315,181 833,363
Interest and fees 2,007,080 2,199,652 1,840,891 358,761
Issue costs - 58,084 58,084 -
Total expenditures 79,650,807 92,827,132 79,412,013 13,515,119
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (7,105,378} {20,261,235) (1,684,461) 18,576,774
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bonds ' - 3,815,606 3,815,605 1)
Capital leases 771,000 8,438,120 7,851,063 (587,057)
Transfers in 9,507,507 9,497 477 9,487,469 (10,008)
Transfers out (4,846,255) {5,879,561) (5,657,081) 222,480
Appropriated fund balance 1,673,126 8,178,032 - {8,178,032)
Payment to refund bond escrow agent - (3,788,438) {(3,788,439) -
Total other financing scurces (uses) 7,105,378 20,261,235 11,708,617 (8,552,618)
Net change in fund balances $ - ] 10,024,156 § 10,024,156
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING (AS PREVIOUSLY STATED) 29,255,778
PRIQOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 2,524,322
EUND BALANCE - BEGINNING (RESTATED) 34,780,100
FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 41,804,256

The notes to the financial statements are an integra! part of this statement.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Balance Sheet
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2004

Enterprise Funds
Water and Other Internat
Electric Wastewater Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments $ 13985085 S 7,757,299 2236073 § 23,878,457 8,290,234
Accounts receivable - 18,837,370 15,843,786 1,542,293 36,223,449 26,706
Interfund receivabie (4,4890) 4,480 - - .
Inventories 10,236,637 915,823 10,358 11,162,818 394,071
Prepaid axpenses 75,104 91,143 - 166,247 251872
Total unrestricted current assets 43,129 706 24 612,541 3.788.724 71,530,971 8,964 383
Restricted current assets
Restricted cash and investments 21,786,131 29,115 570 308,728 51,211,429 -
Accounts receivable 10,549 785,792 - 796,341 -
Coliateral pledged in fieu of deposits 229.874 - - 229974 -
Total restricted current assets 22.026.654 29,901,362 309728 52,237,744 -
Total current assets 55,158 360 54 513,903 4 098,452 123,788,715 8,964,883
Noncurrant assets
Qther assets 873,230 1,845,926 11C,000 2,829,156 -
Capitai assets 214 930,967 339,877,201 25,357,183 580,165.321 300.491
Total noncurment assets 215,804,157 341,723,127 25,467,153 §82,984.477 300491
Total assets $ 280,960,557 $§ 396,237,030 29,565,605 $ 706,763,192 9,265,374
Llabilities and net assets
Current liabiiities to be paid from
unrestricled assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 13833757 § 9,095,483 352,046 § 232901288 3,794,886
Current pertion of long term debt 8,737,880 4,896,876 - 11,634,756 2,244
Interfund payables - - 398,821 398 921 -
Accrued vacation - - 129,472 129472 79819
Totzal current liabilities to be paid
from unrestricted assets 20,571.637 13,892,259 890 433 35,454 435 3,877 089
Current liabilities to be paid from
restricted assets
Accounts payable and accnied expenses 4,979,438 1,294 3E7 - 65,273,785 -
Total current liabilities to be paid
from restricted assets 4 979,438 1,294 357 - 8273785 -
Total current liabilities 25,551,075 15,286,716 890,439 41,728,230 3,877,058
Noncurrent liabilities
Unearned deposits - 4,612,384 - 45612,384 -
Defemred revenues - - 21,314 21,314 10,731
Long-term debt 50,109,388 134,284,378 - 184,393,763 $,407
Total noncurrent iahilities 50,109,388 138,696,759 21,314 189,027,461 20,138
Total liabilities 75,660,463 154,183 475 911,753 230,755,681 3.897,197
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 156,083,699 200,695,350 25,357,153 384,136,802 288,840
Restricted net assets
Capital projects - 10,953,452 - 10,853,452 -
Debt service 1,060.732 7,937,712 - 8,998,444 -
Unrestricted 46,155.663 22,466,441 3,296,699 71,918.803 5,079,337
Total net assets 205,300,094 242.053.555 28,853,852 476.007.501 5,368,177
Total liabilities and net assets § 2800960,557 S 2396237030 29565605 & 706,763,182 9,265,374

The notes lo the fnancial statemanis are an integrai part of this statement.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Other revanue from operations
interfund charges and employee contributions
Total operating revenues

QOperating expenses

Generzl and adminisirative
Power supply and generation
Water purification and distribution
Sewer collection and lreatment
Personnel
Maintenance and operations
Depreciation

Totat operating expenses

QOperating income {loss)

Neanoperating revenue {expense)
Interest earned on investments
Federal and State grants
Passenger facility charges
Miscellaneous revenus
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Interest expense
Amartizaticn
Miscellaneous expense
issue costs
Totat nonoperating revenue (expense)

Income (loss) befare transfers
and contributions

Transfers in
Transfers out
Capital contributions
Extracrdinary items
Change In net assets

Total net assets - beginning (as previously stated}

Prior period adjustment
Tatal net assets - beginning {restated)

Total net assets - ending

The notes [0 the financial statements ara an integral part of this statement.

Enterprise Funds

Water and Other Internal
Electric Wastewater Enterprise Sarvice
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
141,981,920 $ 45282126 $ 2,808,967 § 1980073013 3 . -
- - 369,306 359,308 243,058
- - - - 11,925 6658
141,981,920 45 282, 126 3,168,273 190,432,319 12,168,724
8,241,402 9,248 266 - 17,489,668 -
106,118,723 - - 106,118,723 -
- 8,999,876 - 8,999,876 -
- 8,192,255 - 8,192,255 -
- - 3,395,339 3,395,339 1,389,139
- - 2,289,152 2,289,152 9,636,410
13,023,350 11,344 587 2217074 26,582 011 37.552
127,383,475 37,781,984 7.801,565 173,067,024 11,063,101
14,568,445 7,500,142 (4,733,292) 17,365,295 1,105,623
588,332 901,132 18,521 1,507,985 45,491
- - 1,860,934 1,960,934 -
- - 396,263 386,263 .
- . 31,143 31,143 -
(1.092,556) 85,039 (55,109) (1,062,628} (3,665)
(1,995,508) (5,491,645) (24,751) (7.511,904) -
(783,728) (958,754) (22.000) (1,764,482) -
- - (237,004) (237,004) -
(154337} {1,267,507) - (1,421,844} -
(3,437,797) {5,731 735) 2,067,997 (8.101,535) 41,826
11,160,648 768,407 (2,665,295) §,263,760 1,147,449
- - 1,316,211 1,316,211 -
(8,760,921) {726,548) - (9,487,468} -
116,186 8,029,173 1,572,817 9,718,176 -
- - 702,500 702,500 -
2,515,913 8,071,032 926,233 11,513,178 1,147,449
204,175 400 235,305,984 27,727,619 467,209,003 4,220,728
(1,391,219) (1,323,481) - (2,714,680} -
202 784 181 233,882,523 27,727,619 464,494,323 4,220,728
§ 205300094 § 242083555 8 28,653,852 § 476007501 % 5,368,177
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Operating actlvities
Cash received fram customers
Other operating revenue
Cash received as deferred revenues
Cash paid to or on behalf of empioyees for services
Cash paid for goods and services
Cash paid for pawer supply and generation
Net cash provided by (used in}
operating activities

Noncapital financing activities
Transfers in
Federal and state grants
Nonoperaling revenues
Transfers out
QOther
Net cash provided {used) by noncapital
financing activities

Capital and related financing actlvities
Proceeds fram sale of assets
Proceeds from debt issuance
Gain on refunding
Amount paid for refunding
Contributed capital received
Capital contributions - Federal grant
Acquisition and construction of capital assats
Principat paid an debt maturities
Imterest paid on debt maturities
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities

Investing activities
interast and dividends
Net change in investments
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivaientsiinvestments

Cash and cash equivalents/investments
Beginning of year

End of year

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments
Totai cash and cash equivalents/investments

Unrestricted cash and equivalents/investments
Restricted cash and equivalents/investments
Total cash and cash equivalents/investments

Enterprise Funds

Water and Other Internal
Electric Wastewatar Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
S 144,968,923 $ 43,776,533 1 2,172,451 § 190,915907 $ 11,917,372
- - 324,580 324,560 243,058
- - - - 10,442
(8,731,589) (10,341,587) (3,454,841) (23,527,397) (1,389,436)
(26,975,343) (12,341,308) (2,485,992) {41,802,541) (9,952,124)
(85,517.015) - - {85,517.015) -
22,742,975 21,093.660 (3,443,322) 40,382,814 829,312
- 348,112 1,316,211 1,664,323 -
- - 1,960,924 1,860,934 -
- - 427,406 427 406 -
(8,760,921} {1,074,680) - (5,835,581) -
- - (237.004) (237 .004) -
(8,760,821) {726 548) 3,467,547 (5,019,822) -
84,942 109,834 - 104,773 -
43,159,300 52,621,956 40,213 95,862,069 9,407
(1,573,276) (1.685,950) - (3,259,226) -
(37,248,000) {29,777,000} - (67,025,000) -
- 2,659,081 38,935 2,698,016 -
- - 1.533,882 1,533,882 -
(11.275,282) {16,513,462) {1,717,560) (26,5086,304) (110,226)
(3.31B,545) {15,701,211) (55,080) (19,084,846} 2,244
(2,149,845) {6.758.152)_ {24.751) {B.833,748) -
(12,280,106 (15,045,807} {194,371) (27,520,384} (98,575)
588,332 901,132 14,406 1,503,370 44 987
4,069,363 357,815 - 4427184 -
4 657,701 1,258,947 14,406 5,831,054 44,587
5,359,650 8,580,152 (156,240} 12,783.862 775,724
20,532,200 18,349,953 2,702,041 41,584,194 7,514,510
$ 26,891,850 & 24930103 $ 2,545,801 $ 54,367,756 $ 8,290,234
$  26,881.850 $ 24,930,105 5 2,545 801 $ 54,367,786 $ 8,290,234
8,879,368 11,942,764 - 20,822,130 -
3 35.771,216 $ 36,872,859 $ 2.545,801 $ 75,189,886 S 8,290,234
8 13,985,085 $ 7,757,299 $ 2,236,073 $ 23,878,457 3 8,290,234
21,786,131 29,115,570 309,728 54,211,428 -
$ 35,771,216 3 36,872.868 3 2,845,301 $ 75189886 5 8,280,234

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement, 23



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Reconcillation of operating income (loss)

to net cash provided by

(used in} operating activities

Cperating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (foss)
ta net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:

Depreciation
Allowance for uncollectible accounts

Change in assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(increase) decrease in inventory
{increase) decrease in prepzid iterms
{Increase) decrease in internal baiances

tincrease) decrease in other current assets

{Increase) decrease in other assels

Increase (decrease} in accounts payable
and accrued liabilities

Enterprise Funds

Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated

absences
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues
Increasa (decrease) in overdraft payable
Increasa (decrease) in unearned deposits
Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities _§

Noncash Investing, capital, and financing activities:

Contributed capitai assets
Dissolution of Fayettevilie Air Cargo

Water and Other Internal
Electric Wastewater Entarprise Service
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
3 14,588,445 § 7,500,142 3  (4,733,292) § 17,366,295 3 1,105,623
13,023.350 14,341,587 2,217,074 26,582,011 37,552
(41,238) 1,535 - (39,703) -
3,108,155 (1,507.128) (635,952) 965,075 (8,294)
{307 ,487) 222,382 {1,807) (86,812) {84,667)
. . - - (115,472)
24,975 (24,975) - - -
13,033 17,262 - 30,285 -
262,823 1,429,860 - 1,692,783 -
(1,554,992) 2,409,374 (215,994) 638,388 {114,050)
- - (39,105) (39,105) (1,822)
- - (34,748) (34,748) 10,442
{5,384,188) - - {6.384,188) -
- (296.369) - (296.369) -
8,144,531 13,593.518 1,289,470 23,027.519 (276.311)
22.742,976 § 21093660 $  (3,443,822) $§  40,392.514 3 828,312
3 116,186 $ 51370,092 $ - 5,486,278 3 -
3 - $ - b 702 500 $ 702.500 3 -
]

The notes ta the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 24




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2004

Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Total assels

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Total liabilities

Net assets
Held in Trust for:
Held in Trust
Total net assels

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Pension Private-purpose
Trust Fund Trusts
$ 5612434 § 1,373,285
5880 15,339
5618.414 1,388,634
11,087 -
11,087 -
5,607,327 1,388,634
$ 5607327 § 1,388,634




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Additions
Other revenue from operations
Contributions
Investment earnings
Total additions

Deductions
Benefit payments and premiums
Total deductions
Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

The notes to the financial statements are an
integral part of this stalement.

Pension Private-purpose
Trust Fund Trusts
$ - 3 24,317
318,168 305
42,307 17,126
360,475 41,748
324 564 60,332
324,564 60,332
35,911 {18,584)
5,671,418 1,407,218
$ 5607,327 $ 1,388,634




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These notes are intended to communicate information necessary for a
fair presentation of financial position and resuits of operations that are
not readily apparent from, or cannot be included in, the financial
statements themselves. The notes supplement the financial statements,
are an integral part thereot, and are intended to be read together with the
financial statements.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Fayetteville, North Carolina (the “City”) was established in 1783. The City operates under a
council-manager form of government and provides the following services: public safety, environmental
protection, transpertation, economic and physical development, recreation and community facilities, electric,
water and wastewater utility services and general administrative services. The City receives substantial
revenues from Federal and State sources. Ad valorem taxes on the City of Fayetteville's citizens represent a
significant portion of the general government revenues.

The financial statements of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP} as applied to governmental
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the City's
accounting policies are described below.

A - Reporting Entity

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financiai
statements present the City and its component units. GASB Statements number 14 and 39 defines
component units as legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government
are financially accountable. The primary government is financiaily accountable if it appoints a voting majority
of the organization's governing body and a) it is able to impase its will on that organization or b) there is a
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens
upon, the primary government.

This statement provides two methods for reporting component units in the financial statements of the primary
government; discrete presentation and blending. Discrete presentation means that datz will be presented in
one or more separate columns fo the right of the primary government data columns. Blending means that
the component unit's financial data is reported as though the unit is part of the primary government. If the
units provide services or benefits exclusively, or almost exclusively, to the primary government, or if the
component units and the primary government have “substantively identical boards,” the legally separate
component units should be incorporated by blending. If the units do not meet these criteria, their data should
be incorporated by discrete presentation.

Based on evaluating these characteristics, the following is a brief review of the component units in the City's
reporting entity:

City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation

The City of Fayattevile Finance Corporation is a non-profit corporation formed for the purpose of issuing
bonds to build a new police administration building and defease the City's outstanding 1889 certificates of
participation. The City leases the new police building from the Corporation, with rental revenues being used
by the Corporation to retire the bonds. The Corporation is shown in a blended presentation as the
Corporation provides services exclusively to the City. The operating fund of the Corporation is presented in
the accompanying financial statements as a nonmajor special revenue fund.

City of Fayetteville Linear Park, Inc.

The City of Fayetteville Linear Park, Inc. is a non-profit corporation fermed for the purpose of assisting in the
development of the Linear Park downtown. The corporation had no activity during the year.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to Financial Statements {continued)
June 30, 2004
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
A — Reporting Entity (continued)
Fayetteville Air Cargo Facilities, inc.

Fayetteville Air Cargo Facilities, Inc. (FACF) is a non-prefit corporation formed for the purpose of acquisition,
construction, equipping, expansion, enlargement, improvement, financing, refinancing, leasing, management
and operation of air cargo facilities in Fayetteville, North Carolina. FACF has issued industrial revenue
bonds for the construction of air cargo facilities at the Fayetteville Regional Airport. The proceeds of the
bonds have been loaned to a private corporation, which is respensible for the actual construction. The City
has leased the land for the construction to FACF, which has subleased it to the private corporation. In
consideration of the sublease and lease, the private corporation pays rent to FACF, which in turn pays rent
to the City. A voting majority of the board of directors is appointed by the City Council. The City can remove
any director with or witheut cause. FACF is an enterprise fund type and is shown in a discrete presentation.
It does not issue separate financiat statements.

In November 2003, the $1.2 million industriai revenue bond issued by Fayettevile Air Cargo for the
construction of air cargo facilities in Fayetteville was paid off. The Fayettevilie Air Cargo Facitities, Inc.’s
operations were supsequently dissolved. At the time of dissolution the assets reverted to the City resulting in
an extraordinary item of $702,500, which has been reported in the financial statements.

B - Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display
infarmation about the primary government (the City) and its component units. These statements include the
financiai activities of the overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting
of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of
the City. Governmenta!l activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and
cther non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to
external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the
different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are cleariy
identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense zllocations that have been made in the funds have been
reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

The Government-wide Statements are presented on the full accrual basis in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Fiduciary funds are not included in these
statements.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds,
including its fiduciary funds and blended component unit. Separate statements for each fund category -
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on
major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental
and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajer funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each pary
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment
earnings, result from ncn-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2004
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
B - Basis of Presentation (continued)
The City reports the following major governmentat fund:

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government except those that are required to be accounted for in ancther fund.
The primary revenue sources are ad valorern taxes, State grants, and various other taxes and licenses. The
primary expenditures are for public safety, street maintenance and construction, and sanitation services.

The City reports the following nonmajor governmental funds:

Special Revenue Funds. Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. The Emergency Response Fund accounts for Enhanced
and Wireless 911 revenues and related expenditures. The Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund
accounts for federal and state grants. The Storm Water Management Fund accounts for specified taxes and
maintenance of the storm water system. The Fayetteville Finance Corp Fund accounts for debt service on
certain municipal buildings.

Capital Project Funds. Capital Project Funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition
or construction of governmental capital assets. The General Government Fund accounts for information
technology and other projects supporting the entire government. The Public Safety Fund accounts for
projects supporting the public safety services provided by the City. The Recreational and Cultural Fund
accounts for parks and similar projects. The Transportation Fund accounts for projects to improve
transportation and related services throughout the City. The Bond improvement Fund accounts for bond
proceeds and their use. The Economic and Physical Development Fund accounts for construction and
improvement of various public facilities.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

Electric Fund. This fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the Butler-Warner Generaticn
Plant and the transmission and distribution of electricity to the City of Fayetteville and surrounding areas.

Water and Wastewater Fund. This fund accounts for the operations of the water and wastewater facilities
for the customers within the City of Fayetteville and surrcunding areas.

The City reports the following nonmajor enterprise funds: The Transit Fund accounts for operation of the
municipal transit system. The Airport Fund accounts for the operation and capital asset
acquisition/construction of the Fayetteville Regional Airport.

The City reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Fund, Internal Service Funds accecunt for the financing of services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, on a cost reimbursement basis. The
Warranty Flest Fund is used to account for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with
internally leasing vehicles. The Fleet Maintenance Fund is used fo account for the accumulation and
allocation of costs associated with maintenance of the City's vehicles. The Insurance Fund is used to
account for the accumulation and allccation of costs associated with heaith, workers compensation, and
liability claims.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2004
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)
B - Basis of Presentation (continued)

Pension Trust Fund. These funds accumulate contributions in order to pay retirement benefits to eligible
participants. The Special Separation Allowance Fund accounts for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special
Separation Allowance, a single-employer, and public employee retirement system. The Supplemental PWC
Pension Fund accounts for the PWC Supplemental Employees’ Retirement Plan, a single-employer defined
benefit pensicn plan.

Private-Purpose Trust Fund. These funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for use by
others. The Police Benefit and Fireman's Benefit Funds account for resources held in trust for these two
groups of individuals. All resources of the funds, including any earnings on invested resources, may be used
to support the organizations’ activities. There is no requirement that any portion of these rescurces be
preserved as capital.

C - Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, ail funds of the City are maintained during the year
using the modified accruai basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide, proprietary,
and fiduciary fund financia! statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The
government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are
incurred, regardless of when the refated cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City
gives {or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property
taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal
year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

The City's enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from noncperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering
gocds in connection with the funds’ principal ongcing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
City's utility funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the City's utility
funds include the costs of sales and services, general and administrative services and depreciation of capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reporied using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues
are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the retated fund liability is
incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-

term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. :

The City considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except for
property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is not
susceptible to accruai at June 30, since taxes receivable are materially past due and are not considered to
be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2004
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
C - Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (continued)

Aiso, as of January 1, 1993, State law aitered the procedures for the assessment and collection of property
taxes on all registered motor vehicles in North Carclina. Effective with this change in the law, Cumberland
County is responsibie for billing and collecting the property taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all
municipalities and special tax districts in the County, including the City of Fayetteville. For motor vehicles
registered under the staggered system, property taxes are due the first day of the fourth month after the
vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicabie to the fiscal year in which they become due.
Therefore, the City's vehicle taxes for vehicles registered in Cumberland County from March 2003 through
February 2004 apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, Uncollected taxes, which were billed during
this period, are shown as a receivabie in these financial statements and are offset by deferred revenues.
Those taxes for vehicles registered from March 1 through the fiscal year-end apply to the 2004-2005 fiscai
year and are not shown as receivables at June 30, 2004. For vehicles registered under the annual system,
taxes are due on May 1 of each year. For those vehicles registered and billed under the annual system,
uncoilected taxes are reported as a receivable on the financial statements, if material, and are offset by
deferred revenues because the due date and the date upon which interest begins to accrue is prior to June
30. The taxes for vehicles registerad annually that have already been collected as of year-end are also
reflected as deferred revenues at June 30, 2004 because they are intended to finance the City's operations
during the 2005 fiscal year.

All GASB Statements and all Financial Accounting Standards Board ("“FASB") Statemenis issued on or
before November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with the GASB are applied in bath the government-
wide and proprietary fund financial statements.

Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the City are recognized as revenue.
Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they
are not measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues, which are unearned at year-end, are recorded
as unearned revenues.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted
resources first then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

D — Budgetary Data

Budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is adopted for
the general, selected special revenue, and enterprise funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year
end. Project and grant ordinances are adopted for the Federal and State Financial Assistance special
revenue fund and capital project funds. Enterprise capital project funds are consclidated with the operating
funds for reporting purposes. The City's internal service funds are intra-governmental service funds, which
operate under financial plans that were adopted by the governing board at the time the City's budget
ordinance was approved, as is required by the General Statutes. All budgets are prepared using the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental level
for the general, selected special revenue, and proprietary funds and at the project level for selected special
revenue and capital project funds. Any revisions that alter total appropriations at the department or project
level, as appropriate, of any fund must be approved by the City Council. During the year, several
amendments to the ariginal budget were necessary. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the
fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time until the annual
ordinance can be adepted.
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CITY QF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2004
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)
E - Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity
Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the City are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required by
State law (G.S. 159-31). The City may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings association
whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the City may establish time deposit accounts such
as NOW and Super NOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

State law (G.S. 159-30(¢)) authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the United States or obiigations fully
guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States: obligations of the State of North Carolina;
bonds and notes of any North Caroiina local government or public authority (including the North Carolina
Educational Assistance Authority); obligations of certain no guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality
issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances; and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust
(NCCMT).

The City's investments with maturity of more than one year at acquisition and non-money market
investments are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The securities of the NCCMT
Cash Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, are valued at fair value, which is the
NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value. Money market
investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are reported at
amortized cost. Nonparticipating interest earning investment contracts are reported at cost.

In accordance with State law, the City has invested in securities which are callable and which provide for
periodic interest rate increases in specific increments until maturity. These investments are reported at fair
vaiue as determined by quoted market prices.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City pocls money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize
investment income. Therefore, all cash and investmenis are essentially demand deposits and are
considered cash and cash equivalents. The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds consider demand
deposits and investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash
eguivalents.

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with State law, the City levies ad valorem taxes on property other than motor vehicles on July
1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on September 1 (lien date); however, interest does not
accrue until the following January 6. The taxes are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2003.

Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables

The City operates enterprise funds that provide credit in the normal course of business to customers
primarily located in Fayetteville, North Carolina. The City performs on-going credit evaluations of its
custorners and maintains allowances for doubtful accounts by using the experience method to estimate
collection losses to be incurred. Credit losses, when realized, have been within the range of the City's
estimations and historically have not been significant. Other receivabies that historically experience
uncoliectible accounts are also shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated
by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior years.

32



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARGLINA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2004
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)
E - Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity (continued)
Allowance for Uncollectibie Receivables (continued)

The receivables shown on the Statement of Net Assets are presented net of the following allowances for
doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2004:

Fund
General Fund:
Taxes receivable $ 714,082
Accounts recsivable 871,745
Assessments receivabie 133,021
Special Revenue Fund:
Taxes receivable 13,250
Accounts receivable 1,795,022
Internal Service Fund:
Accounts receivable 423

Economic & Physical Development Capital
Project Fund:

Accounts receivable 750
Transit Operating

Accounts receivable 1,314
Airport Operating

Accounts receivable 1,602
Electric Fund:

Accounts receivable 251,303
Water and Wastewater Fund:

Accounts receivable 555981

Total $ 3838103

Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided
or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “Interfund receivable” or “Interfund
payable” on the balance sheet in the fund financial statements and as “internal balances” on the statement of
net assets in the government-wide financial statements.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost ar market. The costs of governmental fund-type
inventories, which consist of materials and supplies, are recorded as expenditures when they are consumed

rather than when they are purchased. The costs of enterprise fund-type inventories, which consist of
generation fuel, materials and spare parts, are expensed when used rather than when purchased.

Prepaid Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2004, are recorded as
prepaid items.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2004
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
E - Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity (continued)
Restricted Assets and Liabilities

In the capital project and enterprise funds the City has classified as restricted the assets representing
deposits, reserves, capital project appropriations and unexpended bond proceeds because their use is
completely restricted to the purpose for which the bonds were issued or the purpose for which the funds
were set aside. Liabiiities due to be repaid from restricted assets are classified as restricted liabilities.

Interest rate swaps

The City enters into interest rate swap agreements to modify interest rates on outstanding debt. Other than
the net interest expenditures resulting form these agreements, no amounts are recorded in the financial
statements.

Capital Assets

The City defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (82,500 in the
Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Purchased or
constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are
recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donaticn. With the exception of the storm water network,
general infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2001 are reported at estimated historical cost using
deflated current cost. As allowed by GASB 34, retroactive reporting of the storm water network infrastructure
will be delayed until June 30, 2007. Utility (eectric, water, and wastewater) capital assets purchased or
constructed since 1958 are recarded at cost. Contributed utility assets are recorded at estimated value at
the date of acquisition. Utility assets acquired prior to 1958 are carried on an estimated cost basis. The cost
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives
are not capitalized. |mprovements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the
related capitai assets, as applicable. Gains and losses on dispositions of capital assets are credited or
charged to operations,

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated

Useful Lives
Asset Class (Years)
Infrastructure 15-50
Buildings 40
Utility plant systems 20-50
improvements 4~15
Vehicles 4-290
Furniture and equipment 4-10
Computer equipment 3

Interest expense that relates o the cost of acquiring or constructing capital assets in enterprise funds is
capitalized. Interest expense incurred in connecticn with construction of capital assets is reduced by interest
earned on the investment of funds borrowed for construction in accordance with FASB 62 "Capitalization of
Interest Cost in Situations Invelving Certain Tax Exempt Borrowings and Certain Gifts and Grants.”

34



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2004
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continue-d)
E - Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity (continued)
Other Assets

Facility investment fees credit is given on a dollar per dollar basis for off-site water/wastewater approach
mains necessary to serve City approved projects. The facility investment fees credit, if not utilized in the
initial development, will be available to the developer for use in other City approved projects for a period not
to exceed S years from the original contract date, unless ctherwise stated in contract.

Compensated Absences

The vacation policy of the City provides for the accumulation of up to seven (7) weeks earned vacation leave
with such leave being fully vested when eamed. For the City's government-wide and proprietary funds, an
expense and a liability for compensated absences, including compensatory time and holiday pay, and the
salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned.

The City's sick leave policy provides for unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does not
vest but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the determination of
length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since the City has no obligation for the accumulated sick
leave untit it is actually taken, no accrual for that sick leave has been made. However, the City's sick leave
policy for Electric and Water and Wastewater Fund employees allows 25% of accumulated sick leave to be
paid at the time of retirement. A liability for the estimated amount of this sick leave to ultimately be paid is
included in the financial statements.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line methed that approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payabie are reported net of the
applicable bond premiums or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized
over the term of the related debt.

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reporied as debt service expenditures.

Net Assets/Fund Balances

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in capital
assets, nel of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent constraints on
resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of
other governments or impesed by law through state statute.

In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund balance represent amounts that are not
appropriable or are legally segregated for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent
tentative management plans that are subject to change.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2004

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
E - Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity (continued)
Net Assets/Fund Balances (continued)
State law (G.S. 159-13(b) (16)) restricts appropriation of fund balance for the subsequent year's budget to an
amount not to exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities, encumbrances, and
deferred revenues arising from cash receipts as those amounts stand at the close of the fiscal year
preceding the budget year.
The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:
Reserved
Reserved by State statute - portion of fund balance, in addition to reserves for encumbrances and reserves
for inventories, which is not available for appropriation under State law (G.S. 159-8(a}). This amount is
usually comprised of accounts receivable and interfund receivables, which have not been offset by deferred

revenues.

Reserved for encumbrances - portion of fund balance available to pay for commitments related to purchase
orders or contracts, which remain, unperformed at year-end.

Reserved for inventories - portion of fund balance that is not available for appropriation because it represents
the year-end fund balance of ending inventories, which are not expendable, available resources.

Reserved for downtown - portion of fund balance available for appropriation for projects in the Central
Business District.

Reserved for wireless 911 - portion of fund balance available to pay for the acquisition and operation of
wireless 911 services.

Unreserved

Designated for special purpose - portion of fund balance identified for specific uses in the general fund and
special revenue funds.

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures - portion of the total fund balance available for appropriation
that has been designated for the adopted 2004 - 2005 budget ordinance.

Designated for debt service - portion of fund balance designated to meet future principal and interest
payments on outstanding debt.

Undesignated - portion of total fund balance available for appropriation that is uncommitted at year-end.
F - Reclassification

For comparability, certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform
to the current year presentation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2004
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {(continued)
G - Prior Period Adjustment

During the prior year, the Electric, Water and Wastewater funds transferred the assets of the Employee’s
Retirement Plan (ERP) to the Local Government Employees Retirement System (LGERS) and the
Supplemental Employees Retirement Plan (SERP). At that time, the prepaid pension assets that had been
recorded as a result of accounting for the ERP plan should have been written off as a special item and
treated as a terminaticn of the ERP pfan. The result of this pricr period adjustment on beginning net assets
was a reduction in the Electric fund net asset balance for $1,391,219 and a reduction in the net asset
balance of the Water and Wastewater fund for $1,323,461.

During the year, the state of North Caroling changed its distribution method for Local Option Sales Tax that it
collects on bhehaif of local governments. These taxes are now distributed on a monthly rather than a
quarterly basis. Taxes on sales for the month of June 2004 are distributed by the state on or around
September 15, 2004. Beginning in the current fiscal year, on advice from the North Carolina State
Treasurer's Office, the City now considers sales tax distributions as revenue as of June 30 if it is received
within 90 days of year-end. The City previcusly considered sales tax receivables as revenue only if it was
received within 60 days of year-end. The result of this prior pericd adjustment was to increase net assets
and fund balance by $2,524,322.

During the year, the City acguired the infrastructure assets as a result of the passing of the 4B annexation
that was effective as of June 1, 2003. The City had not previously reported the infrastructure assets. The
result of this prior period adjustment is an increase in the infrastructure assets of the City's governmental
activities, fund balance and net assets of $8,256,250.

H - Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
staternents and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
A - Deposits

Al of the City's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under the
Dedicated Method, all deposils that exceed the Federal Depository Insurance coverage leve! are
collateralized with securities held by the City's agents in the City’s name. Under the Pooling Method, which
is a collateral pocl, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer's
agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the
City, these deposits are considered to be held by the City's agents in their names. The amount of the
pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits and the
actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the
State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer
does not confirm this information with the City or the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the
exact amounts of collateral pledged for the City under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for
undercoliaterization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer
of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public
deposits under the Pocling Method.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2004
Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued)

At June 3C, 2004, the City's deposits had a carrying amount of $18,013,669 and a bank balance of
$10,002,668. Of the bank balance, Federal Deposit Insurance covered $308,440, and the remaining
balance was covered by coilateral under the Pooling Method.

B ~ Investments

The City's investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the entity at year-
end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the City or its agent in the
City's name holds the securities. Category 2 inciudes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the
securities are held by the counterparty's trust department cr agent in the City's name. Category 3 includes
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by its trust
department or agent but not in the City's name. Investments of the Supplemental PWC Pension Trust Fund
are exempt from risk categorization because third-party custodians take delivery of the investment securities
on behalf of the City. Investments in the North Carociina Capital Management Trust are exempt from
custodial risk categorization because the City does not own any identifiable securities, but is a shareholder of
a percentage of the fund.

Reported Fair
Cateqory 1 Cateqory 2 Cateqory 3 Value Value

U. S. Government Agencies  $ 43,301,350 $11,053,992 § $ 54,355,342 § 53,874,084

Commercial Paper 7,764,955 14,018,183 - 21,783,138 21,786,574
Other investments - 6,100,000 - 6.100,000 6,100,000

S 51.066,300$31.172.175 § - 82,238,480 81,760,658
Supplemental PWC Pension Trust 3,873,917 3,973,917

N. C. Capital Management Trust 37,681,961 37.681.961
5123804358 § 123416536

The above investments with maturities of more than three months amounted to $64,123,480.

Reconciliation to cash and investments:

Totals per Foatnote:

Total investments $ 123894,358
Cash {demand deposits) 18,013,669
Petty cash 13,600
Total cash and investments $ 141,821,627

Totals per Balance Shest

Cash and investments - unrestricted $ 79,555,157
Cash and investments - restricted 55,380,741
Pension trust cash and investments 5612434
Private-purpose trust cash and investments 1,373,295
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 141,921,627
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Governmental activities:

Governmental activity capitai assets, net

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B - Investments (continued)

The City invests in callable securities to hedge against a rise in interest rates. The first permitted call date is
July 24, 2004, and the security may be called by the issuer at any interest payment date. The issuer wiil be
required to pay a call premium on the redemption based on the call date at which the issuer elects to redeem

the securities.

Note 3 - Capital Assets

June 30, 2004

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2004, was as follows:

Primary Government

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Lard $ 33,925650

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure
Buildings and impravements
Equipment, furniture and fbdures
Vehicles

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture and fixtures
Vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities of the primary

government as follows:

Administration

Public safety

Environmental pratection

Transportation

Economic and physical development

Recreation and community facilities

Capital assets held by certain internal
service funds are charged fo the various
governmental functions based cn the
usage of the funds.

Total depreciation expense

271,394,695

$ 308,500,452

$ 277,077
2,138,684
300,698
9,334,943
1,412

681,309

37,6562

$ 12,771,675
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Balance
July 1, 2003 Balance
(as restated) Increases Decreases June 30, 2004
3 70,040 $ (128360 § 34,367,330
3,180,107 8,117,295 (88,760} 9,208,642
37 105,757 8,687,335 (217,120) 43,675,972
308,328,516 459 484 - 308,828,000
42,416,680 637,737 (122,070) 42,932,357
14,468,504 1,998,933 (1,834,047) 14,634,320
21,467,608 2,875,016 {26,274) 24,318,350
387,682,318 8,011,170 (1,982,391) 391,711,097
(71,023,846) (8,862,255) - (79,886,201)
(14,448,691) (1,329,461} 96,333 (15,681,819}
(12,221,048} (1,063,731} 1,639,812 (11,644 967)
(18,583,938) (1,516,228) 28,240 {20,081,928)
(116,287,623) § (12,771,675 $ 1,764,385 (127,294,913)

264,416,184

$ 307,992,156



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Note 3 - Capital Assets (continued)

Business-type activities:
Electric Fund
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital asseis not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Electric utility system
Buildings and imgravements
Equipment and machinary
Computer programs
Vehicles
Office equipment
Totai capital assets being depraciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Eiectric utility system
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and machinery
Computer programs
Vehicles
Office squipment
Total accumutated depreciation
Totai capital sssets being deprecialed, net

Electric fund capital assets, net

Water and Wastewater Fund
Capitai assets not being depragiated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depregiated:
Wastewater system
Water systam
Buildings and impravements
Equipment and machinery
Computer prograrms
Vehicles
Office equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumuiated depreciation for:
Wastewater system
Water systemn
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and machinery
Computer programs
Vehicles
Office equipment
Total zaccumulated depreciation

Totai capital assets being depreciated, net

Water and Wastewater fund capital assets, net

5 320350028
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June 30, 2004
Balancs Balance
July 1, 2003 Increases Decreases Transfers June 30, 2004
5 4,385,611 $ 73,155 ] - 3 15,450 $ 4,471,216
17,238,285 8,950,183 (21,458.471) * - 4,731,007
21,624,806 9,020,348 (21,458, 471} 15,450 9,202,223
284,076,932 18,774,458 (3,014,343} 4,816) 299,832,231
37,977,057 61,334 - - 38,038,391
10,886,220 2,506,338 (883,848} {19,664) 12,482,046
7,381,221 1,818,270 (4,229) 32,160 9,228,422
4,460,197 421,600 (305,438) (22,359) 4,554,000
1,824,239 - (8.177) {181} 1,817,911
345,605,866 23,583,000 (4,214.035) (14,830) 365,860,001
(125,463,678) (10,039.891) 2,480,024 - (136,023,545)
(6.381,924) {1,268,874) - - {7,628,798)
(4,828,978) (705,327) 483,340 7,060 {5,163,905)
{5,417,752) (823,708) 4,229 (538) (6,237,787}
{4,084,742) (69,118) 305,438 16,624 (3,831,738)
1,233,341 118,432 6,177 152 (1,345,444}
(150,480,418) &  ({13.023,350) $ 3,259,208 3 23,300 {160,231,257}
196,1 15|451 205,728,744
$ 217,740,347 $ 214,930,967
$ 6,915.799 5 79,821 3 - $ - $ 8,995,620
B.245.529 21,056,115 (12,678,051 * - 16,624,593
15,162,328 21,135,936 (12.678,061) - 23,620,213
270,656,774 5,483,592 - - 277,140,366
178,287,251 4,421,430 - - 182,708,681
5,374,140 18,507 - - 5,393,647
7,004,670 349,535 (328,222) 9,030 7,034,303
6,602,810 2,118,028 (7.528) (32,180) 8,681,150
4,582,028 44,187 (415,148} 22,359 4.233,408
918,242 - (8.245) 132 910,148
473,425 915 13,436,252 (758,851) (613) 486,101,704
(79,546,520) (5,937,475} - - (85,483,095)
(62,737,964} (4,035,284} - - (86,773,248)
(1.823,844) {183.803) - - (2,007,747)
(5.557,255) (308,858) 317,469 (7,080) (5,585,702)
(4,929 ,407) (748,389) 7,529 528 (5,669,731)
{3,810,8886) (83,183) 415,147 (18,624) {3,495,546)
(822.241) (44,597) 8,243 (152} 858,747)
{189,228.217) % (11,341,587) 3 748,388 [23,300) {169,844, 716)
314,197,698 316,256,988

§ 339,877,201




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

June 30, 2004
Note 3 - Capital Assets (continued)
Balance Balance
July 1, 2003 Increases Decreases Transfers June 30, 2004
Business-type activities (continued):
Nonmajor funds
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,132,701 5 1,085,349 $ - 3 - $ 2,188,050
Construction in progress 1,647,939 503,238 (141,217) (6,193) 2,003,767
Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,780,640 1,568,587 (141.217) {6,193) 4,201,817
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 39,320,739 967,486 (117,187) 6,193 40,177,231
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2,179,485 31,389 (163,987) - 2,046,897
Vehicles 7,182,876 - (7,831) - 7,175,245
Total capital assets being depreciated 48,683,110 998,835 (288,815) 6,193 48 389,373
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Bulldings and improvements (20,082,746) (1,460,241) 84,520 - (21,458,467)
Furniture, fixtures and equipment (1,537,312) {2089,457) 135,360 - {1,611,409)
Vehicles (4,634,418) (547,376) 7,631 - (5,174,161)
Total accumulated depreciation (26,254,474) § (2,217,074 3 227,511 $ - (28,244,037)

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Nonmajor fund capital assets, net

Business-type activities capitai assets, net

22,428,636

$ 25,209,276

$ 572,309,649

“Disposals in Construction in progress are shown as additions to Capital assets being depreciated.

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities of the primary government as foflows:

Electric $ 13,023,350
Water and Wastewater 11,341,587
Transit 812,435
Airport 1,404,639

Total depraciation expense

Note 4 — Accounts Payable

$ 26,582011

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following:

21,155,336

525357153

$ 580,166,321

Noamajor
Generai Governmental Internai Service Subtotal Enterprise Fiduciary
Accounts payable $ 2,585,555 § 880,086 § 3,733,571 $ 7,179,212 § 29,266,595 $ -
Contracts payable 172,137 594,689 - 766,826 36,823 -
Retainage payabie - 431,220 - 431,220 9,580 -
Salaries and -
benefits payable 2,436,585 860 61,325 2,498,770 152,083 11,087
Total $ 5194277 $ 1,886,856 § 3,794 896 10,676,028 $ 29,585.081 5 11,087
Adjustment for interest payable 523,786
3 11,399.814
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June 30, 2004

Note 5 - Long-Term Qbligations
A - General Obligation Indebtedness

The City has issued general obligation bonds (to include “Double Barrel” general obligation bonds for the
benefit of the Electric and Water and Wastewater funds) o provide funds for the acquisition and construction
of major capital facilities and infrastructure. General obiigation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the
full faith, credit, and taxing power of the City. They are serviced by the general fund. Principa! and interest
payments are appropriated when due. General obligation bonds outstanding for the year ended June 30,
2004, are as follows: :

Governmental and Business-type activities
$4,300,000 1987 Public improvement Bonds
due in various annual installments through April 1, 2009; :
interest at various rates between 5.8% and 6.0%. $ 900,000

$6,900,000 1994 Public Improvement Bonds due
in various annual instaliments through
December 1, 2016; interest at rates 6.2% and 6.25%. 350,000

$2,770,000 1996 Street Improvement Bonds due in various
annual installments through December 1, 2015:
interest at various rates between 4.09% and 5%. 2,220,000

$13,800,000 1996 Public Improvement Bonds due in various
annual installments, through December 1, 2016;
interest at various rates between 4.9% and 5%. 9,150,000

$2,750,00C 1999 Public Improvement Bonds due in various
annuat instailments beginning March 1, 2001 through
March 1, 2017; interest at 4.30%. 2,000,000

$4,200,000 1898 Street Improvement Bonds due in various
installments beginning March 1, 2001 through March 1, 2017;
interest at 4.32%. 3,525,000

$3,610,000 2000 Public tmprovement Bands due in
various annual instaliments beginning April 1, 2002
through April 1, 2021, interest at various rates hetween
4.9% and 5.1%. 3,400,000

$2,400,000 2000 Street Improvement Bonds due in
various installiments beginning April 1, 2002 through

April 1, 2018; interest at various rates between 4.8%
and 5%. 2,250,000

$5,195,000 2003 “Double Barrel" General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 due in various annual
installments through May 1, 2009; interest at various
rates between 2.0% 2.5%. 4,585,000
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June 30, 2004

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued)

A - General Obligation Indebtedness (continued)

$3,625,000 2002 Street improvement Bonds due in
various installments beginning June 1, 2004 through

June 1, 2021; interest at various rates between 3.5%
and 4.5%. $ 3,425,000

$5,335,000 2002 Refunding Bonds due in various
annual installments through June 1, 2016;
interest at various rates between 2% and 4%. 5,120,000

$3,805,000 2003 Refunding Bonds due in various
annual installments through June 1, 2010;
interest at various rates between 2% and 3%. 3,150,000

£ 40.075,000

B - Revenue Bonds

The City has issued ravenue bends, which have been used to finance the defeasance of certificates of
participation and the construction of facilities used in the City's operations. Resources generated by the
facilities’ operations are retiring the bonds. Revenue bonds outstanding for the year ended June 30, 2004,
are as foflows:

Governmental activities:
$16,390,000 1986 Municipal Building Projects Bonds due in
various annual installments through February 1, 2018, interest

at 5.83%. $_10980,000

Business-type activities:
$34,985,000 1995 Series A Revenue Buildings/Water and
Sewer Bonds due in various annual installments
through March 1, 2008; interest at various
rates between 5.15% and 6.75%. 7,110,000

$40,755,000 1997 Water and Sewer Bonds due in various
annual instaliments through March 1, 2010; interest at
various rates between 4.4% and 5.25%. 5,785,000

519,325,000 1999 Water and Sewer Bonds due in various
instafiments through March 1, 2010,
interest at various rates between 4.50% and 5.00%. 4,600,000

$19,175,000 2001 Revenue Refunding ElectriciWater and

Wastewater Bonds due in various semiannual instaliments

through March 1, 2018; interest at various rates between

3.7% and 5.50%. 17,355,000
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June 30, 2004

Note 5 - Long-Term Qbligations (continued)

B - Revenue Bonds (continued)

$78,280,000 2003 Revenue Refunding Bonds due in various
installments through March 1, 2024; fixed rate swap at 3.42%. $ 76,905,000

$55,150,000 2003 Series A Variable Rate Revenue and Revenue
Refunding Bonds due in various annual instaliments through
March 1, 2020; fixed rate swap at 3.74%. 54,150,000

$30,065,000 2003 Series B Variable Rate Revenue Refunding Bands
due in various annual installments through March 1, 2009; interest

resets weekly. 28.715,000
Total business-type revenue bonds 194,630,000
Total revenue bonds $205,610.000

C - interest Rate Swap

The City has two-interest rate swap agreements in effect at June 30, 2004 for the $78,280,000 Variable Rate
Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2003 (*Series 2003") and the $55,150,000 Variable Rate Revenue and
Revenue Refunding Bends Series 2003A ("Series 2003A"). The swap discussions below will be referenced
to the Series 2003 and Series 2003A bonds, respectively. The City also has an interest rate cap in effect for
its Series 20038 Variable Rate Revenue Refunding Bonds (“Series 2003B").

As a means fo lower its borrowing costs and increase its savings, when compared against fixed-rate
refunding bonds at the time of issuance in January 2003 and September 2003, the City entered into an
interest rate swap in connection with its Series 2003 and Series 2003A bonds. The intention of the swap
agreement was to effectively change the City's interest rate on the honds to a synthetic fixed rate of 3.42%
and 3.74%. In addition, in order to protect itself from rising interest rates, the City entered into a 3 year 6%
interest rate cap agreement for the Series 20038 bonds.

The terms, fair values, and credit ratings of the outstanding swaps and cap as of June 30, 2004 are as
follows. The notional ameunt of the swaps matches the principal amount of the associated debt and decline
with the principal amortization on the bonds. The notional amount of the cap began at $10 million and is
reduced by the principal amortization on the bonds untit the final termination date of March 1, 2008.
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued)

C - Interest Rate Swap (continued)

Associated Notional  Effective Fixed Variable Rate Fair  Termination Counterparty
Baond Issue Amount Date Rate Paid Received (1) Values Date  Credit Rating (2)
Swaps
59% of LIBOR
Series 2003  $ 76,905,000 1/22/03 3.42% +34.5 bps $ 55,824 March 2024 Aat1/AA-/AA+
62.8 % of

Series 2003A 54,150,000 9/11/03 3.74% LIBOR + 31 bps (1,020,550)March 2020 Aa1/AA-/AA+

Interest Rate Cap

Series 2003B 8,650,000 10/2/03 nfa 7March 2006 Aa1/AA-/AA+
$ 138,705,000 b (964,719)

(1) LIBOR - London Interbank Offered Rate
(2) Counterparty’s guarantar

As of June 30, 2004 the positive fair values of the agreements represent the City's exposure to credit risk.
Should the counterparty to the swaps fail to perform according to the terms of the swap contract, the City
faces a maximum possible loss equivalent to the positive fair value of the swap. The negative fair value of
the Series 2003A swap may be countered by reductions in the total interest payments required under the
variable-rate bonds, creating lower synthetic interest rates. The counterparty carries a guarantee by an
entity (“counterparty guarantor”) rated Aal by Moody's Investors Service (Moody's), AA- by Standard and
Poor's (S&P), and AA+ by Fitch Ratings (Fitch). To mitigate the potential for credit risk, the fair value of the
swap must be collateralized based on a schedule of the counterparty guarantor credit ratings classifications
and exposure thresholds as provided in the agreement. Such collateral would be government securities
posted with a third party custodian.

The swaps expose the City to basis risk should the relationship between LIBOR and Bond Market
Association (BMA) converges, changing the synthetic rate on the bonds. The effect of this difference in
basis is indicated by the difference between the intended synthetic rates of 3.42% and 3.74% and the
synthetic rates as of June 30, 2004 of 3.49% and 3.80%. As of June 30, 2004, the rate on the City's Series
2003 and 2003 A bonds was 1.07% whereas the variable rate from the counterparty was 1.00% and 1.01%,
respectively. For fiscal year 2004, the City experienced an actual synthetic rate of 3.36% and 3.73%, which
demonstrated a performance greater than the intended fixed rates.

The City or the counterparty may terminate the swap if the other party fails to perform under the terms of the
contract. An additionai termination event occurs if the counterparty ratings fall below the A category by
Moody's, S&P, Fitch, and any other Rating Agency. The swap may be terminated by the City with 30 days
notice and the counterparty can terminate the swap if the City fails below Baa3 by Moody’s, BBB- by S&P,
and an equivalent investment grade from any other Rating Agency, provided however that any termination
must have insurer consent.  Also, if at the time of termination the swap has a negative fair value, the City
would be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the swap’s fair vaiue.

45




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to Financial Statements {continued)

June 30, 2004

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations {(continued)

C - Interest Rate Swap (continued)

Using rates as of June 30, 2004, debt service requirements of the variable-rate debt and net swap payments
of the Series 2003 and Series 2003A bonds, assuming current interest rates remain the same for the term of
the bonds, were as follows. As rates vary, variabie-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will

vary.

Fiscal year Variable-Rate Bond Interest Rate
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Swap, Net Total
2005 § 610,000 $ 1,402,289 § 3,339,386 % 6,351,885
2006 625,000 1,385,762 3,324,324 5,345,088
2007 650,000 1,389,074 3,308,889 5,347,963
2008 665,000 1,382,119 3,292,849 5,339,968
2009 2,715,000 1,375,004 3,276,446 7,366,450
2010 - 2014 45,110,000 5,858,143 13,852,292 64,920,435
2015 - 2019 56,290,000 3,072,077 7,228,116 66,590,193
2020 - 2024 24,390,000 830,909 1,886,629 27,107,538

$ 131,055,000 3 18,705,377 i 39,608,941 187,369,318

Nlea

D - Notes Payable

Notes payable financed by the governmental funds are serviced by the federal and state financial assistance
fund. Notes payabie financed by the ElectricAWater and Wastewater Funds are accounted for in the

respective funds.

The City has incurred debt to finance certain community development and capital project activities. The City
has also entered into revolving loan agreements for 57,595,127 and $14,889,720 with the State of North
Carolina. The loans were used for a Wastewater Project. These notes payable are junior, inferior and
subordinate in all respects to the Revenue Bonds and General Obligation Bonds of the City of Fayetteville as
to lien on and source and security for payment from the revenues and in all other respects.

Notes payable in the accompanying financial statements are comprised of the following:

Governmenta! activities
Note payable due in various quarterly installments
through September 2008; interest at various rates between
5.87% and 6.49%. 3 185,000

Business-type activities
$7,585,127 State revolving loan due in various annual
instaliments through May 1, 2021, interest at 2.6% paid
semiannually on May 1 and November 1. 6,455,857

314,889,720 State reveiving loan due in various annual
instaliments once draw down is complete for 20 years;

interest at 2.66%. 5411858
Total $§ 12052713
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Note § - Long-Term Obligations {continued)
E - Lease Agreements
The City has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing certain equipment, vehicles and fixtures.
These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been
recorded at the present value of the minimum lease payments as of the date of their inception.
Capital lease obligations are comprised of the following:
Governmental activities
Capital lease obligations payable in various monthiy
instaliments of approximately $50,000 in 2004
including interest at 4.55% $ 4,664,380

Capitai lease obligations payable in varicus monthly
installments of approximately $100,000 in 2004

plus interest at rates ranging from 3.40% to 5.87%. 11,738,199
16,403,579

Less: amount representing interest (3,061,835}
Present value of the minimum lease payments $ 13341744

The following is an analysis of ieased property under capital leases as of June 30, 2004:

Classes of Property Cost Depreciation Value
Equipment 3 55808 3 13,272 % 42,536
Vehicles 3,174,266 2,028,728 1,145 537
Buildings and improvement 5,647,518 1,158,251 4,489,267

Total 3 8877592 § 3,200,252 § 5,677,340
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations {continued)

F - Changes in Long-Term Obligations

The following is a2 summary of changes in the City's long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2004:

Baiance Balance
July 1, 2003 Increases Decreases June 30, 2004 Current Portion
Governmental activities:
Bonded debt $ 50,265,000 $ 3805000 § 7,600000 $ 46470000 $ 4,045,000
Capitalized leases 6,479,845 8,082,079 1,220,180 13,341,744 2,894 678
Notes payable 245,000 - 60,000 185,000 60,000
Arbitrage payable 129,778 150,334 235,698 44 414 -
Compensated absences 3,236,831 3,279,237 3,090,220 3,425,848 2,384 941
60,356,454 $ 15316650 $ 12,206,098 63,467,006 9,394,619
Less: loss on defeasance
(net of amortization (397,367) (491,659) -
Total business-type activities 3 59,959,087 $ 62,975,347 3 9,394,619
Governmental compensated absences typically have been liquidated in the general fund.
Balance Balance Current
July 1, 2003 Increases Decreases June 30, 2004 Portion
Business-type activities:
Generzl obligation debt $ 15,560,000 $ 5195000 § 16,170000 $ 4585000 $ 945,000
Revenue bonds 178,910,000 85,215,000 69,495,000 194,630,000 10,310,000
Notes payable 6,835,614 5,411,856 379,757 11,867,713 379,755
Compensated absences 168,577 220,322 259,426 129,473 129,473
201,474,191 $ 96042178 § 86,304,183 211,212,186 11,764,228
Less: loss on defeasance
(net of amortization (13,177,283) {15,054,195) -
Total business-type activities $ 188,296,908 $ 196,157,991 $ 11764228
Discretely presented component units:
Revenue bonds 3 248,537 b - 3 248537 $ - $ -
Total discretely presented
component
units long-term liabilities % 248 537 3 - $ 248 537 $ - 8 -
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued)

G - Maturities of Long-Term Obligations

The following table summarizes the annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt outstanding
(excluding compensated absences and arbitrage payable).

Governmental activities:

Year Bonds Payable Lease Revenue Notes Note Payahle
Ended Principal Interest Principai Interest Principal Interest
2005 $ 3,130,000 $ 1,504,300 3 915,000 $ 607653 § 60,000 $ 9,855
2006 3,085,000 1,383,525 965,000 559,615 80,000 6,124
2007 3,120,000 1,261,338 1,015,000 508,470 60,000 2,283
2008 3,135,000 1,136,988 1,070,000 453,660 5,000 162
2008 3,150,000 1,009,663 785,000 394,810 - -
2010-2014 12,985,000 3,184,299 3,080,000 1,425,225 - -
2015-2018 5,660,000 707,500 3,150,000 455,063 - .
2019-2021 1,225,000 117.875 - - - .
35,490,000 10,305,488 10,980,000 4,404,496 185,000 18,504
Less: loss on defeasance

(net of amartization) (491,659) - - - - -
$ 34,998,341 $ 10,305488 $ 10,980,000 $ 4404496 § 185,000 3 18,504

Construction and

Year improvement Leases Capitalized Leases Total Debt Due

Ended Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2005 $ 376,501 $ 167,025 § 2,518,177 5 241218 § 6,999678 § 2,530,151
2006 376,501 149,895 2,202,310 1,714,292 6,688,811 3,810,451
2007 376,501 132,764 1,857,727 120,348 6,529,228 2,025,184
2008 376,501 115,833 1,754,458 72,878 6,340,957 1,779,321
2009 378,501 98,502 1,144,062 16,730 5,455,563 1,519,705
2010-2014 1,882,507 235,549 - - 17,947,507 4,845,073
2015-2018 - - - - 8,810,000 1,162,563
2018-2021 - - - - 1,225,000 117,875
3,785,012 899,368 9,575,732 2,162,467 §9,996,744 17,790,323

Less: loss on defeasance

{net of amortization) - - - - (491,659) -
$ 3,765M12 $ 89938 § 9576732 $ 2162467 $ 59505085 § 17790323
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Note 5 - L.ong-Term Obligations {(continued)

G - Maturities of Long-Term Obligations (continued)

The following schedule includes the City’s expected estimated schedule of maturity for the $5,411,856 State
Revelving Loan noted above as well as the annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt outstanding
(excluding compensated absences and arbitrage payable).

Business-type activities:

Year Bonds Payable Notes Payable Total Debt Due

Ended Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2005 $ 11255000 § 7,240,123 3 379,755 § 166207 § 11,634,755 § 7.406,330
2006 11,690,000 5,828,275 §50,349 240,734 12,340,348 7,069,009
2007 12,065,000 6,391,209 650,349 283,217 12,715,349 6,674,426
2008 12,550,000 5,956,005 850,349 266,146 13.200,349 6,222,151
2008 13,035,000 5,523,916 650,349 249,074 13,685,349 5,772,990
2010-2014 54,640,000 21,500,628 3,251,747 989,297 57,891,747 22,489,925
2015-2019 59,590,000 13,370,225 3,251,747 562,514 62,841,747 10,932,739
2020-2024 24,390,000 2,663,417 2,112,477 170,284 26,502,477 2,833,701
2025-2029 - - 270,591 7,198 270,591 7.198
189,215,000 66,473,798 11,867,713 2,934,671 211,082,713 69,408,469

Less: Loss on defeasance

(net of amortization) (15,054,155) - - - (15,054,195) -
$ 184,160,805 3 66,473,798 § 11867713 § 2,934,671 $ 196,028,518 3§ 69,408,469

H - Legal Debt Margin

The legal debt margin of the City at June 3G, 2004, approximated $502,650,5886.

I - Authorized but Un-issued Debt

At June 30, 2004, the City had no bonds authorized but un-issued.

J - Interest Expense

Interest expense during the year totaled $10,029,347. No interest was capitafized this year.

K - Restrictive Covenants

The revenue bond indentures contain significant limitations and restrictions on annual debt service
requirements, use of the utility system, minimum revenue bond coverage's and require that a reserve fund
be established and maintained. The reserve fund requirements have been met by the City through the
purchase of surety bonds in the full amount of the bond requirement. The City is in compliance with all such
significant financial limitations and restrictions at June 30, 2004.
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Note 6- Defeasance of Debt
A - Variable Rate Revenue and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003A

On September 11, 2003, the City issued $55,150,000 in Variable Rate Revenue and Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2003A (converted to a fixed rate of 3.74% through the execution of an interest rate swap
agreement) to construct electric, water and sewer projects and to advance refund $29,022,198 ($32,315,000
net of unamortized bond issue costs of ($332,316), bond discount of ($3618,443), unamortized loss on
refunding of (32,385,295) and outstanding accrued interest payable of $43,252) of a portion of the
outstanding 1993 Revenue Refunding Electric/ Water and Sewer Bonds with an average interest rate of
4.82%. The net proceeds of $55,386,171 ($55,150,000 net of issuance cost and other related costs of
(8471,329) plus $707,500 of released debt service fund deposits) were used to fund a $32,895,345 escrow
for the advanced refunded bonds and a $22,490,826 construction fund for construction and cost of issuance
expenditures. The escrow was funded with U.S. government securities deposited in an irrevocable trust with
an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the portion of the1993 Revenue
Refunding Electric / Water and Sewer Bonds that were advance refunded. As a result, a portion of the 1993
Revenue Refunding Electric / Water and Sewer bonds is considered to be defeased and the liability for those
bonds has been removed from the electric and water and wastewater funds.

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount
of the old debt of $3,673,147. This difference net of the current year's amortization of $297,671, reported in
the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from revenue bonds, is being charged to operations
through the year 2020 using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method. The
City completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over 17 years by $4,661,453
and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt service
payments) of $560,475.

B - Variable Rate and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003B

On October 2, 2003, the City issued $30,065,000 in Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003B to advance
refund $26,825,363 ($29,765,000, net of unamortized bond issue costs of ($305,131), bond discount of
($567,851), unamortized loss on refunding of ($2,190,161) and cutstanding accrued interest payable of
$123,506) of the remaining balance of the outstanding 1993 Revenue Refunding Electric/ Water and Sewer
Bonds with an average interest rate of 4.82%. The net proceeds of $30,299,762 ($30,065,000 net of
issuance and other refated costs of ($230,948) plus released debt sarvice fund deposits of $653,122 and a
cost of issuance account deposit of (§187,412)) were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those
securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service
payments on the remaining portion of the1893 Revenue Refunding Electric / Water and Sewer Bonds that
were advance refunded. As a result, the remaining portion of the 1993 Revenue Refunding Electric / Water
and Sewer bonds is considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the
electric and water and wastewater funds.

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount
of the cld debt of $3,474,389. This difference net of the current year's amortization of $481,071, reported in
the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from revenue bonds, is being charged to operations
through the year 2009 using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method. The
City compieted the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over 6 years by $5,636,325
and to obtain an econcmic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt service
payments) of $2,331,696.
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C -~ General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003

On October 2, 2003, for the benefit of the Water and Wastewater funds, the City issued $5,195,000 in
“Double Barrel" General Obiigation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 with an average interest rate of 2.28% to
advance refund $4,684,005 {$4,945,000, net of unamortized bond issue costs of (853,284), bond premium of
$9,847, unamortized loss on refunding of ($321,448) and cutstanding accrued interest payable of $103,890)
of cutstanding 1993 GO Refunding Bonds with an average interest rate of 4.99%. The “Double Barrel”
General Obligation Bends, Series 2003 are payable from the revenues of the Electric and Water and
Wastewater funds and are additionally secured by the full faith and credit of the City. The remaining balance
of the 1993 GO Refunding Bonds of $10,615,000 was cash defeased on November 6, 2003. The net
proceeds of $5,201,935 ($5,195,000 net of issuance and other related costs of $6,935) were usad to
purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an imevocable trust with an
escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the 1993 GQ Refunding. As a result, the
1993 GO Refunding Bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been
removed from the electric and water and wastewater funds.

The advance refunding resulted in a differance between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount
of the old debt of $487,136. This difference net of the current year's amortization of 365,436, reported in the
accompanying financial statements as a deduction from revenue bonds, is being charged to operations
through the year 2009 using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest methed. The
City completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over 6 years by $731,856
and to obtain an econemic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt service
payments) of $375,252.

D — Prior Year Defeasance of Debt

In prior years, the City has defeased various bond issues by creating separate irrevocable trust funds. New
debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase U.S. government securities that were
placed in the trust funds. The investments and related fixed earnings are sufficient to fully service the
defeased debt until the debt is called or matures. For financial reporting purposes, the debt has been
considered defeased and therefore removed from the City's liabilities. As of June 30, 2004, the amount of
prior year defeased debt outstanding and removed from the City's liabilities amounted to $66,410,000.

Gains and losses from debt refunding must be deferred and amortized over the lesser of the original
remaining life of the oid debt or the life of the new debt. In addition, gains or losses related to debt refunding
are to be used in determining the carrying value of the new debt issued to finance debt refunding. The
carrying values of the 2001 Revenue Refunding Electric/Water and Sewer Bonds and the 2003 Variable Rate
Revenue Refunding Electric Water and Sewer Bonds have been adjusted for the loss from defeasance (net of
amortization) of $8,063,691 combined with the carrying value of the loss from defeasance (net of
amortization) of 56,990,504 related to the advance refunding cccurring in the current year for a total loss of
defeasance of $15,054,195.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2004
Note 7 — Deferred/Unearned Revenues

The balance in deferred revenue on the fund statements and unearned revenues on the government-
wide statements at year-end is composed of the following elements:

Deferred Unearned

Revenue Revenue
Prepaid licenses and fees not yet earned (General) $ 427,284 $ 427 284
Prepaid retiree insurance premiums (Internal Service) 10,731 10,731
Unearned rent (Proprietary) 21,314 21,314
Unearned grant receipts (Special Revenue) 53,885 53,885
Unearned grant receipts (Capitat Projects) 200 200
Taxes receivable, net (General) 3,376,391 -
Taxes receivable, net {(Special Revenue) 115,350 -
Accounts and notes receivabie (General) 708,077 -
Accounts and notes receivable {Special Revenue) 4,936,990 -
Special assessments receivable, net (General) 602,323 -
Special assessments receivable, net (Special Revenue) 7.608 -
Total $ 10,260,658 $ 513,414

Note 8 - Risk Management

The City (excluding the utility fund) is self-insured (seif-funded) with respect to insurance claims as foliows:
heaith insurance (up to $100,C00 per employee and approximately $7,720,046 for all empioyees for the
policy ending December 31, 2003), general lizbility (up to $500,0000 per occurrence), workers'
compensation ($400,000 per occurrence), public officials liability {up to $500,000 per occurrence), law
enforcement liability ($500,000 per occurrence), and automabile liability (up to $500,000 per occurrence).
Property insurance on city buildings is insured to replacement value (less $160,000 self-funded retention).
The health insurance plan’s excess coverage allows expenditures by the City up to 125% of expected claims
adjusted for industry standard trend adjustments, and for expenditures by the City of up to $100,000 per
employee. Losses from asserted ctaims and from unasserted claims identified under the City's incident
reporting system are accrued based on estimates that incorporate the City's past experience, as well as
other considerations including the nature of each claim and relevant trend factors.

The City carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. Claims have not exceeded coverage in any
of the last three fiscal years.

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds are self-insured with respect to workers’ compensation, and
self-insured with respect to health insurance claims (up to approximately $2,000,000). In addition, these
funds are self-insured with respect to certain policy deductible amounts as fallows: public officials lizbility (up
to $75,000 per accurrence) and property ($250,000 per occurrence). In addition, the Electric and Water and
Wastewater Funds maintain excess liability insurance ($5,000,000) to cover catastrophic losses. These
funds maintain an investment account amounting to $3,500,000 to cover possible worker's compensation
claims. This investment is classified under restricted assets in the financial statemenis. No accrual for
possible losses aitributable to incidents that may have occurred but that have not been identified under the
incident reporting system has been made because the amaunt cannct be reasonably estimated. Further, a
liability for outstanding cltaims at June 30, 2004, is not accrued, as the amount of outstanding claims is not
material to the financial statements. Professionai insurance consultants have been retained to assist the
Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds with determining alt accruals.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2004
Note 8 - Risk Management (continued)
The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds carry commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There
have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage since the prior year, and settled claims have not

exceeded coverage in any of the last three fiscal years.

An analysis of claims activity for the City and the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds is presented
below.

_2004 2003
Liability at June 30, 5 4382484 $ 4,361,852
Current year claims and changes
in estimates 13,110,432 11,373,647
Actual claim payments (13.020,417) (11,353,015)
Liability at June 30, $ 4472499 $ 4382484

Note 9 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including ameunts already collected,
may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, if any,
to be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of
grant money.

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these proceedings is not presently
determinable, it is the opinion of management that the resolution of these matters will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

The City is subject to laws and reguiations relating to the protection of the environment. While it is not
possible to quantify with certainty the potential impact of actions regarding environmental matters,
particularly any future remediation and other compliance efforts, in the opinion of management, compliance
with the present environmentai protection laws will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
position, results of operations or cash flows of the City.

The City's bond issues are subject to Federal arbilrage regulations, and the City has elected to review its
potential arbitrage liability annuaily on the bond issue dates. The arbitrage rebate payments are payable on
the fifth anniversary of the bond issue date and every fifth year subsequent to that date. Althcugh the actuat
amount to be paid is not presently determinable, the City believes that an adequate provision for arbitrage
payables has been provided for in the accompanying financial statements.

The City has authorized expenditures totaling approximately $84,515,623 for capital additions and
construction of various electric, water and wastewater projects. At June 30, 2004, cumulative expenditures
to date totaled approximately $41,401,205 leaving an unexpended balance of $43,114,418 for projects that
are expected to be completed at various dates through the year ended 2005.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

June 30, 2004

Note 3 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (continued)

In 2002, the City entered into a new purchased power arrangement with Progress Energy Company (PEC).
Starting in July 2003, the City is committed to purchasing 279 MW and increasing to 301 MW in July 2008
until the end of the contract in June 2012. The remaining capacity and energy will either be produced at the
Butler-Warner Generaticn Plant or bought on the open market. The lowest available price will be used to
meet the City's needs. When the market price goes above the price at the Butler-Warner Generation Plant,
the City may permit the marketing of its capacity and energy for sale to the open market.

During the year ended June 30, 2004, the net purchased power costs paid to PEC was $85,249 334 (which
is net of $200,800 which was sold on the open market).

The City leases a portion of the office space located in the Robert C. Williams Business Center at Lafayette
Plaza and the Administration Building on Ofd Wilmington Road to others. These lease agreements provide
for minimum rental and have terms of 5, 7 and 10 years and are due to expire at various dates from 2006 to
2011. Minimum lease provisions now in force wilf result in rental income for future years as follows:

Year ending June 30 Rent
2005 $ 233,766
2006 269,311
2007 280,902
2008 288,728
2009 234,355
Future years 331,954
Total $1,649.016

Note 10 - On-Behalf Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, the City has recognized on-behalf payments for pension
contributions made by the State as revenue and an expenditure of $24,317 for the 126 employed firemen
who perform firefighting duties for the City's fire department. These employees elected to be members of the
Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund, a cost sharing, multiple-employer public employee
retirement system established and administered by the State of North Carclina. The plan is funded by a
monthly contribution paid by each member, investment income, and a State appropriation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

June 30, 2004

Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems

The City maintains a single-employer, defined benefit pension plans (the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special
Separation Allowance System), which covers the law enforcement officers of the City. In addition, the City
continues to participate in the statewide local governmental retirement system, a multiple-employer, cost-
sharing public employee pension plan that covers substantiaily all employees.

A - Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System
Plan Description

The City contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost
sharing, and multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina.
LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Article 3 of G. S.
Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General
Assembly. The Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carclina. The State’s CAFR includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to
the Office of the State Controller; 1410 Mail Service Center; Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410 or by calling
(918) 981-5454,

Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary. The City is required to
contripute at an actuarially determined rate. For the City, exclusive of the Electric and Water and
Wastewater funds, the current rate for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement
officers is 4.93% and 4.78%, respectively, of annual covered payroll. The rate for the Electric and Water and
Wastewater funds is 10.03%. The contribution requirements of members and of the City are estabfished and
may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The City’s contributions to LGERS for all
employees, including law enforcement officers and Electric and Water and Wastewater funds, for the years
ended June 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002, were $4,237,759, $2.517.077 and $1,889,545, respectively. The
contributions made by the City equaled the required contributions for each year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

June 30, 2004

Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued)

B - Supplemental Employees’ Retirement Plan of the Public Works Commission of the City of
Fayetteville, North Carolina

The Supplemental Employees’ Retirement Plan of the Public Works Commission of the City of Fayetteville,
North Carolina (*SERP plan”) is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Pubiic
Works Commission Employees’ Retirement Plan Board of Trustees. This plan was established on Aprit 1,
2003 to equalize benefits received under the LGERS plan to those formerly participating in the Employees’
Retirement Plan (ERP).

The oniy employees eligible to participate in the SERP plan are those who met the requirements of the ERP
plan. Effective, April 1, 2003 no additicnal employees will enter this plan, Benefits vest after five years of
credited service. Electric and Water and Wastewater fund employees reaching the defined retirement age
are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1.8% of their final
average compensation times years of credited service. The SERP plan provides retirement benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. Cost-of-living adjustments are provided to members and beneficiaries at the
discretion of the Public Works Commission. All benefit payments by the SERP plan will be offset by the
benefits payable from the LGERS plan. The City of Fayetteville City Council has the authority to establish
and amend the retirement plan provisions. The SERP plan does not issue a separate report. Rather, the
financial report of the SERP plan is included as a pension trust fund.

The contribution requirements of the plan members and the Public Works Commission are established and
may be amended by the City of Fayetteviile City Council. There wiil be no employee contributions after April
1, 2003. The Public Works Commission is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The
rate for the year ended June 30, 2004 was 0% of annual covered payroll.

The annual required contribution calculation for June 30, 2004 was determined as part of the July 1, 2004,
actuarial valuation using the aggregate actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 5%
investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary increases of 4% per year
to retirement age. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3%. The assumptions did not include
postretirement benefit increases, which are funded by the Commission's appropriations when granted.

The actuarial value of assets was determined by using the market value at June 30, 2004. There was no
annual required contribution for the current year under this plan; the trend information has been cmitted from
these statements. This benefit plan is a contributory, defined benefit retirement pian, which covers all
employees who participated in the ERP plan at Aprii 1, 2003.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

June 30, 2004

Note 11- Employee Retirement Systems (continued)
C - Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance
Plan Description

The City administers a public employee retirement system (the "Separation Allowance™), a single-employer;
defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement ‘benefits to the City's qualified sworn law enforcement
officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of
compensation most recently appiicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement
benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized by the
General Assembly. Article 12D of G. S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit
provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Separation Allowance is reported in the City's
report as a pension trust fund. The Separation Allowance covers all full-time City law enforcement officers.

At December 31, 2003, the Separation Allowance's membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving benefits 20
Active plan members 301
Total —21

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting: Financial statements for the Separation Allowance are prepared using the accrual basis
of accounting. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and when the City has made a
formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used fo Value Investmenis: investments are reported at fair value. Short-term debt, deposits, and
the North Carclina Capital Management Trust Investments are reported at cost or amortized cost, which
approximates fair value. Certain longer term United States Government and United States Agency securities
are valued at the last reported sales price.

Contributions

The City is required by Article 12D of G. S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefils and has chosen
to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned by making contributions based on actuarial
valuations. For the current year, the City contributed $318,278, or 2.59% of annual covered payroll. There
were no contributions made by employees. The City's abiligation to contribute to this plan is established and
may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly.
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Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued)
D - Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance (continued)
Contributions (continued)

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2002
actuarial valuation using the projected unit cost credit method. The actuarial assumptions inciuded (a)
7.25% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary increases of 5.9% -
9.8% per year. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation companent of 3.75%. The assumptions did not include
postretirement benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was market value. The unfunded actuarial
accrued liability is being amortized as a level percent of pay closed basis. The remaining amortization pericd
at December 31, 2003 was 27 years.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

The City's annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the Separation Allowance for the current year
were as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 311,445
Interest on net pension obligation (20,538)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 15.541
Annual pension cost 306,448
Contributions made 318,189
increase (decrease) in net pension obligation (11,721)
Net pension obligation beginning of year {283.280)
Net pension obligation end of year $__ (295.001)
Three-Year Trend Information
Annual Percentage
Fiscal Year Pension of APC Net Pension

Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation

2002 $ 255,072 106.69 S (2584,741)

2003 281,551 110.49 (284,281)

2004 306,448 103.82 (295,001)

E - Supptemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enfercement Officers

Ptan Description

The City contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (the “Plan"), a defined contribution
pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan
provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the City and also those non-law
employees who choose to make their own contributions. Article 5 of G. S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority
to establish and amend benefit provisicns for the law enforcement officers to the North Carolina General
Assembly.

Funding Policy .

Article 12E of G. S. Chapter 143 requires the City to contribute each month an amount equal to five percent
of each law enforcement officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. The City does
not make any contributions for non-law employees. All employees may make voluntary contributions to the
Plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2004, were $1,384 638, which consisted of $622,722 from
the City and $761,916 from employees.
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Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued)
F - Defined Contribution Plan and Trust

The Electric and Water and Wastewater funds participate in a Defined Contribution Plan and Trust (Plan),
administered by the Advisory Committee appointed by the City. This Plan became effective July 1, 1999.
Plan provisions are established or amended by City of Fayetteville City Council resolution. The Electric and
Water and Wastewater funds' employees are not aliowed to contribute to this Plan. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2004 actual contributions by the City were $0. The City currently contributes 0% of gross pay of
each Electric and Water and Wastewater fund employee to the Defined Contribution Plan or Trust. This
funding rate is subject to City Council approval. At June 30, 2004, the Plan included 530 participants.
Participants vest at service inception and are entitled to 100% of vested contributions. The Pian is a profit
sharing plan qualified under section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.

G - Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund
Plan Description

The State of North Carclina contributes, on behalf of the City of Fayetteville, to the Firemen’s and Rescue
Squad Workers’ Pension Fund (Fund), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan with a
special funding situation administered by the State of North Carolina. The Fund provides pension benefits
for eligible fire and rescue squad workers that have elected to become members of the Fund. Article 86 of
G.S. Chapter 58 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina
General Assembly. The Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the Fund. That report may be obtained by
writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410,
or by calling {919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute $10 per month to the Fund. The State, a nonemployer contributor,

funds the plan through appropriations. The City does not contribute to the Fund. Contribution requirements

of plan members and the State of North Carolina are established and may be amended by the North Carolina
- General Assembly.

Note 12 — Post Employment Benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, the City has slected ‘o provide health care benefits to retirees of the
City who participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System ({System) and
have at least ten years of creditable service with the City. The City and retiree shares the cost of coverage
for these benefits. Also, retirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at the City's group rates, as
long as the dependent had been covered at least 5 years prior to employee's retirement. Currently, 97
retirees are eligible for post-retirement health benefits and are eligible until each employee reaches the
eligible age for Medicare. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, the City made payments for post-
retirement heaith benefit premiums of $1,301,4889.

The City has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for Members of
the Local Governmental Employess’ Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer State
administered, cost-sharing pian funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees
who die in active service after one year of contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180
days after retirement or termination of service and have at least one year of contributing membership service
in the System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits.
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Note 12 - Post Employment Benefits (continued)

Lump sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee's 12 highest months salary ina
row during the 24 months prior to the employee’s death, but the benefit may not exceed $20,000. All death
benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan. The City has no liability beyond the payment of
monthly contributions. Contributions are determined as a percentage of monthly payroils, based upon rates
established annually by the State. Because the benefit payments are made by the Death Benefit Plan and
not by the City, the City does not determine the number of eligible participants. Separate rates are set for
employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2004, the City made contributions to the State for death benefits of $52,127. The City's required
contributions for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers represented
.13 percent and .14 percent of covered payroll, respectively. The contributions to the Death Benefit Plan
cannct be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit amount.

Also, the City has elected to provide death benefits to retirees of the City who participate in the North
Carolina Local Governmentai Employees’ Retirement System and have at least ten years of creditable
service with the City. After the required 180 days following retirement, the City pays the full cost of coverage
for the retiree.

The City offers a death benefit equal to $100 for every year of service with the City, up to a maximum of
$3,000. Currently, 302 retirees are eligible for post-retirement death benefits. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2004, the City made payments for post-retirement death benefits premiums of $22,430.

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 11, the Electric and Water and Wastewater funds
(Public Works Commission) provide post employment benefit options for health care and dental insurance to
eligible retirees and their dependents up through the age of 65. A liability for this obligation is not accrued at
June 30, 2004, as the amount is not material to the financial statements. As of June 30, 2004, 54 retirees
meet the eligibility requirements. Expenses for post employment healthcare benefits are recognized as
refirees report claims and include a provision for estimated claims incurred but not yet reported to the
Commission. For the year ended June 30, 2004, expenses of approximately $388,841 were recognized for
post employment healthcare.

Note 13 - Interfund Balances and Activity
Balances Due toffrom Other Funds
Balances due to/from other funds at June 30, 2004, consist of the following:

Due to the General Fund from the Airport Fund (loan for capital construction) $ 388,921
$ 388,921
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Note 13 ~ Interfund Balances and Activity (continued)
Transfers to/from Other Funds

Transfers to/from ather funds at June 30, 2004, consist of the following:

General fund transfers in 3 9,487 469
General fund transfers out (5,657,081)
Nonmajor gavernmental funds transfers in ' 4 485 370
Nonmaijor governmental funds transfers out {144,500)
Major enterprise funds transfers out (9,487,469)
Nonmajor enterprise funds transfers in 1,316,211
3 -

Note 14 - Subsequent Events

On July 12, 2004, the North Carolina Supreme Court issued a stay of the City's annexation, scheduled to be
effective on June 30, 2004. The annexation would have increased the City's population by more than 40,000
and required significant financial investment by the City to prepare for the annexation. The stay is still in
effect as of October 12, 2004 and is expected to take several manths up to several years for the cases to be

resolved.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Liability {AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of - Projects Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Cavered
Valuation Assots Credit {UAAL) Ratio Payroit Payroll
Date {a) {b} {b-a) (a/b} (c) {{b-a)le)
12/31/96 $ 824,181 1,147,821 323,640 71.80% $ 8,284,503 391%
12131197 893,619 1,241,152 347,533 72.00% 8,419,011 4,13%
12/31/98 878,608 1,337,500 458 892 65.69% 8,011,331 5.09%
12/31/99 958,824 1,435,311 478,487 66.80% 9,568,890 4.78%
12i3t1/00 * 1,228,812 2,728,524 1,499,712 45.04% 10,581,205 14.17%
12/31/01 1,382,475 3,074,210 1,691,731 44 97% 11,197,858 15.11%
12131/02 1,491,666 3,356,167 1,864,501 44.45% 11,941,930 15.61%
12131/03 1,628,946 3,516,635 1,887,689 46.32% 12,062,456 15.65%

* For the December 31, 2000, valuation date, several actuarial assumptions have been revised. These revisions were due to an experience
investigation prepared as of December 31, 1989, for the North Caralina Local Gavernment Retirement System. Projected salary increases
were increased from a range of 4.4%-8.5% 1o a range of 5.9%-9.8%. The remaining amortization period was also increased from 20 to 30
years. These changes in assumptions caused an increase in the cost of the Separation Allowance for Law Enforcement Officers.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance
Required Suplementary information

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage

June 30 Contribution Contributed
1992 3 72,055 213.73%
1993 77,695 167.32%
1894 80,583 167.57%
1895 80,084 160.83%
1996 B7,240 212.25%
1997 106,748 125.18%
1998 107,318 115.48%
1999 111,500 128.32%
2000 127,606 119.29%
2001 145,228 114.21%
2002 259,788 104.76%
2003 286,336 108.65%
2004 311,445 102.16%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the

actuarial valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Actuarial assumptions:
investment rate return*
Projected salary increases*

* Includes inflation at

Cost-of-living adjustments

g5

December 31, 2003
Projected Unit Credit

Level percent of pay closed
27 years

Market value

7.25%
59%-9.8%
3.75%

N/A



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Supplemental Public Works Commission Retirement System
Required Suppiementary information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Liability {AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of - Projects Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date {a) {b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) {(b-a)ic)
7/01/03 $ 3,990,343 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
7/01/04 3,952,504 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Note that this schedule is provided for informational purposes only.

of this plan.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Supplemental Public Works Commission Retirement System
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage
June 30 .~ Contribution Contributed

There was no pension obligation as of July 1, 2003. Since then, the cost and contributions have been
zero so there is still no net pension obligation.

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial
valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the Iatest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date July 1, 2004
Actuarial cost method Aggregate
Amortization method N/A
Amortization period N/A

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:

Market value

Investment rate of return* 5%
Projected salary increases* 4.0%
* Includes inflation at 3.0%
Cost-of-living adjustments None
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SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

These statements/schedules provide a more detailed view of the "Basic
Financial Statements" as presented in the preceding subsection.

Combining Statements are presented where there is more than one fund
of a given type. Individual fund statements are presented if only one
fund exists in a given fund type.



GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

* General Fund

* Nonmajor Governmentai Funds
b Special Revenue Funds
** Capital Project Funds

The focus of Governmental Fund measurement is upon determination of
financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and
balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income
determination.




GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the principal fund of the City and is used to account
for the receipt and expenditure of resources that are traditionaily
associated with local governments and that are not required to be
accounted for in another fund.

Resources are provided primarily through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues and transfers, and are expended for services deemed not
susceptible to a user charge financing method.

The Fund is accounted for on the modified accrual basis of accounting.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

June 30, 2004 and 2003

Comparative Balance Sheets
General Fund

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Interfund receivable
Assessments receivable
Inventories

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Unearned deposits
Deferred revenues

Total liabilities

Fund balances
Fund balances:
Reserved
By State statute
For encumbrances
For inventories
For downtown
Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent years
For special purpose
For debt service
Undesignated
Total fund halances

Total liabilities and fund balances

&8

2003

2004 Restated
38,194,634 26,899,566
3,376,391 3,299,863
9,636,025 8,647,792
398,921 423,798
457,626 472,269
145,027 81,256
52,208,624 30,824,544
5194277 3,289,852
95,511 39,310
5,114,580 4,715,282
10,404,368 8,044,444
9,181,667 8,602,670
3,676,094 734 253
145,027 81,256
306,339 283,445
1,696,565 1,673,126
5,713,518 4,000,994
1,926,997 1,221,357
19,158,049 15,182,999
41,804,256 31,78G,100
52,208,624 39,824,544




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004
With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2003

Ravenues
Ad valorem taxes
Current year
Prior year
Penalties

Total ad valorem taxes

Other taxes
Local option sales tax
Utility franchise tax
Vehicle license tax
Privilege license
Cablevision franchise tax
Vehicle gross receipt

Total other taxes

Intergovernmental
Federal
State
Local

Total intergovernmental

Other functional
Permits and fees
Property leases
Engineering/planning services
Public safety services
Environmental services
Recreation and cultural services
Parking revenues
Other fees and services

Total other functional
Miscellaneous
Refunds and sundry
Indirect cost allocation
Special use assessment
Sale of assets
Total miscellaneous

Interest earned on investments

Total revenues

Variance
Positive 2004 2003
Budget {Negative) Actual Restated
$ 35,524,461 $ 1,353,113 36,877,574 32,622,373
779,566 481,124 1,260,690 989,705
170,250 123,348 293,598 208,235
36,474,277 1,957,585 38,431,862 33,720,313
19,296,143 1,402,850 20,698,983 18,093,797
4,375,400 746,388 5,121,788 6,546,035
407,372 37,149 444,521 408,016
695,000 (10,194) 684,806 691,861
1,349,075 666,970 2,016,045 1,249,399
299,000 6,860 305,860 302,685
26,421,990 2,850,023 29,272,013 27,291,793
- 36,480 36,480 31,903
4,312,792 (29.967) 4,282,825 4,305,206
465,725 12,663 478,388 547,249
4,778,517 19,176 4,787,693 4,884,358
1,159,407 376,293 1,535,700 1,208,220
278,900 39,440 318,340 260,686
646,571 78,508 725,080 750,980
362,221 194,610 556,831 564,323
5,850 20,289 26,139 44 487
611,221 {48,816) 562,405 475,963
85,030 {9,416) 75,614 62,687
95,701 30,091 125,792 126,454
3,244,901 681,000 3,925,901 3,454,800
53,813 50,344 104 157 174,781
857,000 (134,961) 722,039 714,562
73,300 27,112 100,412 86,926
30,000 (18,403} 11,597 188,519
1,014,113 (75,908) 938,205 1,165,788
732,099 (370,221} 361,878 867,291
72,665,897 5,061,655 77,727,552 71,424,343
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budgst and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004
With Comparative Actual Statements far the Year Ended June 30, 2003

Expenditures

Current
Administration
Lagislative
Personnel
Operating
Payments to agencies

City attorney
Personnel
Operating

Executive
Personnel
Operating
Assets

Support services
Personnel
Operating
Assets
Inventory
Cost redistribution

Human relations
Personnei
Operating
Payments {o agencies

Finance
Persannei
Operating

General government
Personnel
Operating
Assets
Inventory
Cost redistribution
Payments to agencies

Variance
Positive 2004 2003
Budget {Negative) Actual Restated

333,974 104 333,870 286,287
367,705 45,669 322,036 180.734

- - - 25

701,679 45,773 655,906 467,046
371,330 54 371,276 316,738
310,096 60,641 249,455 357,150
681,426 60,695 620,731 673,888
£60,641 13,877 548,764 559,261
364,406 254,211 110,195 107,815
8,721 8,721 - -
931,768 274,809 656,959 667,076
980,259 8,172 72,087 946,920
926,438 218,923 707,515 487,036
752,073 312,853 439,220 23,800
882,235 9,255 872,980 758,372
. (958,559) 30,823 (889,382) (860,171)
2,582,446 580,026 2,002,420 1,355,057
216,115 798 215,317 207,493
47,424 11,131 36,203 29,291
263,539 11,929 251,610 236,784
928,018 9,805 918,213 898,650
858,561 154,247 704,314 712,135
1,786,579 164,052 1,622,527 1,610,785
43,154 - 43,154 10,724
3,253,340 193,048 3,060,292 810,585
635,375 636,375 - -
499,015 53,415 445,600 420,709
4,430,884 881,838 3,549,046 1,242,028
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - General Fund

With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2003

Expenditures {continued)
Current {continued)
Administration {continued}
Public buildings

Personnel
Operating
Assets

Project management

Personnel
Operating
Assets

Total administration

Public safety
Police
Personnel
Operating
Assets

Payments to agencies
Cost redistribution

Fire
Personnel
Operating
Assets

Cost redistribution

inspections
Personnel
Operating
Assats

Total public safety

Environmental protection

Solid waste
Persannel
Onperating
Assets

Cost redistribution

Variance
Positive 2004 2003
Budgst {Negative) Actual Restated
664,515 5,878 658,637 782,475
742,801 130,243 612,558 847,912
35,000 35,000 - 57,283
1,442 316 171,121 1,271,195 1,487,670
280,026 1,716 278,310 249,613
41,136 28,098 13,038 14,192
796 796 - -
321,958 30,610 291,348 263.805
13,142,595 2,220,853 10,021,742 8,005,040
22,908,439 543,803 22,364,635 21,721,260
4,644 607 601,067 4,043,540 2,842,194
3,495,053 1,804,680 1,690,373 1,007,558
3,000 - 3,000 3,000
{23,594) - (23,594) (45,527)
31,027 505 2,948,550 28,077,955 25,528,485
10,422,830 30,490 10,392,340 10,219,875
1,787,727 207,786 1,579,941 1,106,714
2,199,535 1,441,791 767,744 44,056
(75,000) - {75.000) (75,000)
14,335,002 1,680,067 12,655.025 11,292,645
1,579,080 55,064 1,624,016 1,436,588
373,868 141,570 232,398 269,160
18,420 2 18,418 -
1,971,468 196,638 1,774,832 1,705,748
47,334,085 4,826,253 42 507,812 38,526,878
2,295,896 8448 2,287 448 2,300.019
3,643,701 466,747 3,175,954 2,274,826
2,324,042 1,868,332 325,710 24,500
- - - {127,852)
8,263,639 2,473,527 5,790,112 4,471,493
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schadule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended Juna 30, 2004
With Comparative Actual Statements for tha Year Ended June 30, 2003

Expenditures (continued)
Current {continued)
Environmental protection
{continued)
Cemeteries
Personne!
Cperating
Assets

Urban forestry
Personnet
Operating
Cost redistribution

Street Sweeping
Personnel
Operating
Assets
Cost redistribution

Total environmental
protection

Transportation
Strosts
Personnel
Operating
Assets
Cost redistribution

Engineering
Personnel
Operating
Assets
Cost redistribution

Parking
QOperating

Total transportation

Economic and physical development
Central business district
Operating

Community development
Persarnal
Operating

Ptanning and development
Personnel
Operating
Paymenits to agencies
Cost redistribution

Variance
Positive 2004 2003
Budget {Nagative} Actual Restated
138,316 5 (1,307) 5 139623 133,699
16,854 1,823 15,031 9,791
155,170 518 154 554 143,490
79,969 {473) 80,442 76,942
9,230 2,226 7.004 3410
89,189 1,753 87446 80,352
194,975 8,679 186,296 46,781
27,673 27,336 337 228
509,039 509,039 - -
- - - (22,468)

731,687 545,054 186,533 24,543
9,239,695 3,020,850 6,218,845 4,719,878
1,953,607 53,845 1,899,762 1,722,249
3,239,226 363,612 2,875,614 2,637,890
923,738 289,947 633,789 29,183
{198,400) (6,279) (192,124} (203,180)
5,918,168 701,125 5,217,044 4,186,142
925,848 39,309 886,539 850,952
332,392 84,915 247,477 105,799
112,851 76,976 35,875 -
- - - {71.091)
1,371,001 201,200 1,169,891 885,660
214 063 35,300 177,763 188,632
214,063 36,300 177,763 188,632
7,503,323 938,625 6,564,688 5,260,434
81,338 30,358 50,978 51,000
55,818 1 55,818 143,845
186,100 56,632 129,468 30,455
241,919 56,833 185,286 174,300
396,483 5,400 391,083 388,414
214,640 94,523 120,117 67,024
47,125 41,264 5,861 22,852
- - - {989)

558,248 141,187 517.061 477,291
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Baiances
Budget and Actuai - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004

With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 20, 2003

Variance
Positive 2004 2003
Budget {Negative) Actual Restated
Expenditures (continued)
Current (continued)
Economic and physical
development {continued)
Total economic and physical
development 981,503 § 228,178 $ 753,325 702,591
Recreation and community facilities
Parks & Recreation
Personnel 3,705,337 (423) 3,705,760 4,063,072
Operating 2,616,366 679,252 1,937.114 1,782,048
Assets 997,988 409,407 588,561 397,913
Cost redistribution ~ - - (52,313)
7,319,671 1,088,236 6,231,435 8,190,121
Total recreation and
community facilities 7,319,671 1,088,236 6,231,435 6,190,121
Debt service 7,406,280 1,192,124 5,214,158 5,018,395
| Total expenditures 92,927,132 13,515,119 78,412,013 63,423,337
| Ravenues over {under)
expenditures (20,261,235) 18,576,774 (1,684,461) 2,001,006
Other financing sources (uses)
Appropriated fund balance 8,178,032 (8,178,032) - -
Transfers in 9,497,477 (10,0C8) 9,487,469 9,257 917
Transfers (out} (5,879,661) 222,480 (5.657,081) (6,407,096)
Payment to refund bond escrow agent (3,788,439) - (3,788,439) (5,469,212)
Capital leases, bonds and other debt 12,253,726 (587,058) 11,666,663 5,706,289
Total other financing
sources {uses) 20,261,235 (8,552,518) 11,708,617 4,087.898
Rsvenues and other financing
sources (uses) aver (under)
expanditures - $ 10,024,158 10,024,156 6,088,904
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 (as previously stated) 31,780,100 30,191,196
Prior period adjusiment - (4,500,000)
Beginning of year - July 1 (restated) 31,780,100 25.691,196
End of year - June 30 3 41,804,258 31,780,100
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2004

Assets

Cash and investments

Taxes receivable

Accounts receivable
Assessments receivable

Restricted asset - cash and investments

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $
Deferred revenues
Total liabilities

Fund balances:

Reserved

By State statute
For encumbrances
For wireless 911

Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent years

For special purpose

Undesignated

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Special Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Project Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
$ 3,953,038 5,138,794 9,001,832
115,350 - 115,350
5,632,138 1,509,242 7,041,380
5,151 - 5,151
- 4,169,312 4,169,312
_$ 9805677 § 10817348 § 20,423,025
369,754 1,517,101 1,886,855
5,113,833 200 5,114,033
5,483,587 1,517,301 7,000,888
592,693 1,509,040 2,101,733
1,300,715 3,577,522 4,878,237
11,111 - 11,111
614,874 4,213,485 4,828,359
45,000 - 45,000
1,557,697 - 1,557,697
4,122,090 9,300,047 13,422,137
3 10,817,348 $ 20,423,025
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2004
Special Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Project Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
Revenues
Other taxes $ 3,164,181 - 3,164,181
Intergovernmental 2,744,253 1,406,931 4,151,184
Miscellaneous 319,574 1,219,425 1,538,999
Interest earned on investments 17,171 41,037 58,208
Totai revenues 6,245,179 2,667,393 8,912,572
Expenditures
Current:
Administration - 216,228 216,228
Public safety 2,386,978 - 2,386,978
Environmental protection 2,746,318 - 2,746,316
Transportation - 1,574,015 1,574,015
Economic and physical development 2,156,817 3,209,529 5,366,146
Recreation and community facilities - 1,826,999 1,826,999
Debt service:
Principal 925,000 - 925,000
Interest and fees 665,522 - 665,522
Issue costs - - -
Total expenditures 8,880,433 ©,826.771. 15,707,204
Excess (deficiency) of revenues )
over (under) expenditures (2,635,254) (4,159,378} (6,794, 632)
Other financing sources (uses)
Bonds - - -
Capital leases 219,365 - 219,365
Transfers in 1,729,043 2,755,427 4,485,370
Transfers out - (144,500) (144,500)
Total other financing scurces (usas) 1,949,308 2,610,927 4,560 235
Net change in fund balances (685,946) (1,548,451) (2,234,397)
Fund balance - beginning 4,808,036 10,848,498 15,656,534
Fund balance - ending 5 4122000 _§ 9,300,047 13,422 137
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources or to finance specific activities as required by law or
administrative regulation.
The following comprise the City's Special Revenue Funds:

* Emergency Response Fund

* Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund

* Storm Water Management Fund

* Fayetteville Finance Corp Fund

All Special Revenue Funds are accounted for on the modified accrual
basis of accounting.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2004
Federal
and State Fayetteviile
Emergency Financial Storm Water Finance Total Nenmajor
Response Assistance Management Corp Special Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Assets
Cash and investments $ 1,771,919 3 263,738 § 1,917,381 5 3,963,038
Taxes receivable - - 115,350 115,350
Accounts receivable 81,317 5,438,091 12,730 5532138
Assessments receivable - 5,151 - 5,151
Total assets $§ 1853236 3 5706980 $ 2,045461 5 9,605 677
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 380 3 191,536 3§ 177,838 3 369,754
Deferred revenues - 4,998 483 115,350 5,113,833
Total liabilities 380 5,190,019 203,188 5483 587
Fund bafances:
Reserved
By State statute 81,317 493,647 12,729 592,693
For encumbrances 219,365 581,015 530,335 1,300,715
For wireless 911 11,111 - - 11,111
Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent years 136,897 - 477,977 614,874
For special purpose - - 45,000 45,000
Undesignated 1,404,166 (532,701) 686,232 1,557 697
Total fund balances 1,852,856 516,961 1,752,273 4,122,090
Total liabilities and fund halances 3 1853236 $ 5706880 § 2,045461 $ 9,605,677
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Ravenues
Cther taxes
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous
Interest earned on investments
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
Pubiic safety
Environmental protection
Economic and physical development
Debt service:
Principal
tnterest and fees
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under} expenditures

Other financing sources {uses)
Capital leases
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Federai
and State Storm Fayettaville
Emergency Financial Water Finance Total Nonmajor
Response Assistance Management Corp Special Revenus
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

1,041,170 % - 8 2123011 $ - 3 3,164,181
- 2,744,253 - - - 2,744,253

10,000 309,574 - - 318,574
9,100 - 7,939 132 17171
1,060,270 3,053,827 2,130,950 132 6,245,179
1,189,040 1,197,938 - . 2,386,978
- - 2,746,316 - 2,746,316

- 2,163,297 - 3,320 2,156,617

- 60,000 - 865,000 925,000

- 13,755 - 651,767 665,522
1,189,040 3,424,990 2,746,318 1,520,087 8,880,433
{128,770} (371,163) (615,366) (1,519,955) (2,835.254)
219,365 - - - 219,385

- 209,988 - 1,518,855 1,729,943
219.365 209,988 - 1,519,955 1,949,308
80,595 (161,175) (615,368) - (685,946)
1,762,261 678,136 2,367,639 - 4,808,036
1,862,856 § 516,961 § 1.752,273 § - 8§ 4,122,090

7



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Emergency Response Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2003)

Variance
Positive 2004 2003
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
Other taxes
Subscribers’ tax $ 938328 § (55801 $ 882,425 3 879,552
Wireless 811 funds 177,738 {18,990) 158,745 176,400
Total other taxes 1,116,061 (74,891) 1,041,170 1,055,852
Miscellaneous - 10,000 10.000 -
Interest earned on investments
Wireiess 911 - 27 27 689
Enhanced 911 40,000 (30,327) 8,073 45 486
Total interest earned on investments 40,000 (30,800) 9,100 46,175
Total revenues 1,156,081 (S85,791) 1,060,270 1,102,127
Expenditures
Current
Public safety
Wireless 911
Operating 148,123 1 148,122 153,128
Assets 68,892 1 68,891 3,245
217,015 2 217,013 158,373
Enhanced 911
Personnel 525,745 94,300 431,445 373,591
QOperating 485,050 122,799 362,251 374,597
Assets 350,851 247 514 103,337 4,868
Cost redistribution 74,994 - 74,994 80,783
1,426,640 464,613 972.027 833,819
Total public safety 1,653,655 464,615 1,189,040 990,192
Debt service
Enhanced 911 13,239 13,239 - -
Total debt service 13,239 13,239 - -
Total expenditures 1,666,894 477,854 1,189,040 890,192
Revenues over (under) expenditures (510,833) 382,083 (128,770} 111,935
Other financing sources {uses)
Appropriated fund balance 287 860 {287,860) - -
Capital leases 223,173 {3,808) 219,365 -
Tetal other financing sources (uses) 510,833 (291,488} 218,365 -
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (under) expenditures $ - 3 90,595 90,595 111,035
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 1,762,261 1,650,326
End of year - June 30 $ 1852858 3 17622561
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Federat and State Financial Assistance Fund

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

From inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2004

Revenues
Intergovernmentai
Federal grants
State grants
County
Total intergovernmental

Miscellaneous
Other
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Public safety
Economic and physical development
Total current

Debt service
Total expenditures

Revenues aver (under)
expenditures

Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Owner contributions
Tota! other financing sources
(uses)

Revenues and other financing

sources {uses) over {under)
expendittres

Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

79

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
§ 11,074,435 § 6,267,361 244307 $ 2376543 $ 8,399,597
1,131,677 1,305,541 558,596 354,422 1,101,367
26,772 41,698 29,673 13,288 25,313
12,232,884 7,614,600 832,576 2,744,253 9,526,277
1,125,914 993,697 34,022 309,574 1,269,249
13,358,798 8,608,297 866,598 3,053,827 10,795,526
3,416,104 2,207,983 963,374 1,197,838 2,442 547
10,128,883 5,990,066 - 2,153,297 8,143,363
13,544,987 8,198,049 963,374 3,351,235 10,585,910
406,002 259,51% - 73,755 333,274
13,950,989 8,457 5688 963,374 3,424,990 10,919,184
(592,191) 150,729 (96,776) {371,163) (123,658}
665,289 600,500 96,776 209,988 713,712
(73,098) (73,099) - - (73,099)
- 6 - - 6
592,191 527,407 96,776 209,988 840,619
3 -3 578,138 - (161175) % 518,961
678,136
3 516,961



Budget and Actual - Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Expenditures by Project

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2004

Expenditures by project:

Public safety

Federal Forfeiture

GHSP

Juvenile Restitution

Governor's Crime Commission

I-95 Corridor P2P Grant

Law Enforcement Block Grant

Operation Ceasefire

COPS Homeland Security

FEMA Firefighter Grant

FYQ3 State Homeland Security
Total public safety

Economic and physical development
Community Development Block Grant
Arsenal Park Archaeological
Assessment Payment
HCOME
Total economic and
physical development

Total expenditures by project

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total

$ 1,104,145 535,051 - 8 285378 8 830,429
4,350 13,345 13,345 4,006 4,006
237,776 185,043 87,538 118,081 225,865
387,515 313,381 168,215 173,785 318,921
74,660 - - 74,660 74 660
502,545 1,048,137 694,275 131,403 483,265
250,000 - - 43,973 43,973
292,774 - - 22,138 22,128
540,800 105,028 - 334,564 439,530
21,738 - - - -
3,416,104 2,207,983 963,374 1,187,938 2,442,647
6,092,009 3,280,722 - 1,707,855 4,998,577
43,459 43,362 - - 43,362
39,885 39,865 - - 39,885
3,953,550 2,616,117 - 445,442 3,061,559
10,128,883 5,990,066 - 2,153,297 8,143,363
$§ 13,544,937 8,198,049 963374 § 3351235 3 10,585.910
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actuai

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Storm Water Management Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2003)

Variance
Positive 2004 2003
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
Other taxes

Storm water tax $§ 2011792 § 98,080 $ 2107872 § 2,016,887

Penalties 11,488 3,651 15,138 10,372
Total other taxes 2,023,280 89,731 2,123,011 2,027,258

Interest earned on investments 55,000 {47,061) 7,939 84,025
Total revenues 2,078,280 52,670 2,130,950 2,111,284
Expenditures
Current
Environmental protection
Personnel 1,004,872 14,833 988,539 974,608
Operating 2,530,997 975,471 1,555,526 2,043,187
Assets 154,502 120,651 33,851 -
Cost redistribution 167,000 - 167,000 361,239
Total environmental protection 3,857,371 1,111,055 2,746,316 3,379,044
Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,779,091) 1,163,725 (615,366) (1,2687,760)
Other financing sources (uses)

Appropriated fund balance 1,779,091 (1,779,091) - -
Total other financing sources {uses) 1,77¢,091 (1,779,091) - -
Revenues and other financing sources

(uses) over (under) expenditures $ - § {615,366) {615,366) (1,267,760)

Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 2,367,639 3,635,389
End of year - June 30 $§ 1752273 § 2367639
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures 2nd Changes in Fund Bailance - Budget and Actual
Fayetteville Finance Corp Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004
{With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2003)

Variance
Positive 2004 2003
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
Interest earned on investments 3 - $ 132 3 132 $ 247
Expenditures
Current
Economic and physical development
Operating 3,650 330 3,320 3,345
Debt service 1,518,768 1 1,516,767 1,528,517
Total expenditures 1,520,418 331 1,520,087 1,531,862
Revenues over (under) expenditures {1,520,418) 463 {1,5619,855) (1,531,615)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 1,520,418 {4683) 1,519,955 1,529,229
Revenues and other financing sources
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ - $ - - (2,386)
Fund balance
- 2,386

Beginning of year - July 1
$ - 3 -

End of year - June 30

82



CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Capital Project Funds account for all resources used for the acquisition
and construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by
Proprietary Funds.
The following comprise the City's Capital Project Funds:

* General Government Fund

* Public Safety Fund

* Recreational and Cultural Fund

* Transportation Fund

* Bond Improvement Fund

* Economic and Physical Development Fund

*Linear Park Fund

All Capital Project Funds are accounted for on the modified accrual basis
of accounting. o
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Government Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2004

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projacts Year Total
Revenues $ - § - 3 - 5 - 3 -
Expenditures
Current
Administration
Information technology 756,711 418,079 - 216,228 634,307
Total expenditures 756.711 418,079 - 216.228 534,307
Revenues over {under) expenditures (756,711) (418.079) - {216,228) (634,307)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 756,711 756,711 - - 756,711
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over {under) expenditures 3 - % 338,632 § - (216,228) § 122,404
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 338.832
End of year - June 30 3 122,404
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual - Public Safoty Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2004

Revenuas
Misceilaneous
Sale of assets

Intarest earned on investmaents
Total revenues
Expenditures
Current
Public safety
Scheol Road Fire Station
Revenues over {under) expenditures
Other financing sources {uses)}
Proceeds from capital leases
Transfers in
Total other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over {under) expenditures

Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Project Prior Closad Current
Authorization Years Projects Yeoar Total
$ -3 2,072 $ - 2,072
44,072 47,873 - 47,873
44072 49 945 - 49,945
1,244,780 1,236,880 - 1,236,890
{1,200,708) {1,186,945) - {1.186,945)
1,111,383 1,171,383 - 1,111,383
89,325 89,325 - 89,325
1,200,708 1,200,708 - 1,200,708
S - 5 13,763 - 13,763
13763
$ 13,763
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Recreational and Cultural Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2004

Intergovernmental
Federai grants/contributions
State grants/cantributions

Total intargovernmentat

Tatal miscellaneous

Interest earned on investments

Recreationai and community facliities
Mazarick Park Greenway Trail
Cape Fear River Trail
Park improvements
Recreation centers

Total expenditures
Revenues over {under) axpenditures
Qther financing sources (uses)

Capital leases, bonds, and other dabt

Total other financing sources (usas)

Revenues and other financing sources
(uses) over (under) expenditures

Project Prior Clased
Authorization Years Projects Total
$ 1,270,287 83.020 - 842,080
1,000,000 426,501 - 550,000
2,270,287 509,521 - 1,392,080
70,000 70,600 - 70,000
174,605 32,518 - 114,605
244 805 102 518 - 184,605
42 870 174 523 57,662 119,008
2,557,782 786.552 57.662 1,695,693
387,300 176,502 - 282,990
1,922,557 205,053 - 1,632,367
150,000 8,271 - 9,371
3,013,500 4,080,698 4,090,688 81,514
173,826 155,401 - 155,401
299,605 77817 - 233,350
- 602,644 602 644 .
500,000 - - -
8,448,788 5317 486 4,693,342 2,405,533
(3,888,026) (4,530,924) (4.635,680) (709,840}
1,067,526 864,244 - 1,236,243
2821500 4,638,036 4,835 680 2.356
3,889,026 5,502,280 4,635,680 1,238,589
3 - §71,358 - 528,758

Beginning of vear - July 1

End of year - June 30
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Transportation Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2004

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Yaars Projects Year Total
Ravenues
intergovernmental
State grams 3 150,000 8 231,472 § 31,472 $ 10,260 3 160,260
Miscellaneous
Qwner contribution - 32,357 - 3,413 35,770
Other 68,346 83,551 - - 88,551
Total miscellanous 68,345 120.908 - 3.413 124,321
Total revenues 218,348 352380 81,472 13,673 284,581
Expandituras
Current
Transportation
Traffic control system 1,348,069 1,146,263 - 48,721 1,184,884
Sidewalks 456,463 - - 66,942 66,949
Parking improvements 1,111,244 803,891 - 86,655 890,345
Transportation improvements 5,166,056 3,636,517 1,563,894 1,371,650 3,444,313
Total expenditures 8,082,832 5,566,471 1,563,894 1,574,015 5,586,592
Revenues over {under} expendiures {7,664,488) (5,234,091) (1,482,422) {1,5660,342) (5,312,011}
Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers in B,52B,675 10,089 869 1,482,422 1.801,382 10,408,829
Transfers (out) (664,189) (519 668} - (144,500} (664,189)
Total other finaneing sources (uses) 7.864,486 9.570,180 1,482,422 1,656,882 9,744,840
Revenues and other financing sources
(usas) over (undar} expanditures 3 - & 43135089 § - 96,540 $ 4432629
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 4,336,089
End of year - June 30 4,432 629
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Bond impravement Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2004

Revenues
Interest earned on investments

Expenditures
Current
Econemic and physical deveiopment
Bend administration
Streets
Debt service
Sidewalks
Drainage
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Capitat leases, bonds, and other debt
Total other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (under) expenditures

Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
$ 2594033 § 2604968 - 3 38,827 § 2843783
1,747,846 1,469,903 - 22,008 1,511,911
22,194,081 18,280,037 - 1,195,532 19,475,569
656,954 556,953 - - 656 953
2,673,941 2,407,975 - 265,962 2,873,937
5,826 202 6,693474 - 1,691 6,695,365
34.199.024 29,528,342 - 1,485,393 31,013,735
(31,604,381) (25,923,376} - {1,446,566) (28,369,942)
500,000 500,000 - - 500,000
31,104,991 31,104,861 - - 31,104 981
31,604,991 31,504,991 - - 31,604,991
3 - 3 4,581,615 - {1,448,568) § 3,235,049
4,681,615
S 3.235,049
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Economic and Physical Development Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2004

Revenuas
Intergovemnmental
Federal grants
Slate grants
Total intergovernmantal

Miscelianeous
Qwners contribution
Private donations
Total misceltaneous

Interest 2amed on investments
Total revenues

Expanditures
Current
Economic and physical development
Brownfields Pilot Project
Uptown revitalization
USO/Amphitheater Demo/Festival Park
Capa Fear & Yadkin Valley Dapot
Dam Restoration Project
Total expenditures

Revenues aver {under) axpenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Debt issuance
Total other financing sources (usaes)

Revenuaes and cther financing
sources {usas) ovar {under)

sxpendituras

Fund balance
Eeginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Project Prior Closed Current
Autharization Yaars Projects Year Total
3 350,000 178,036 $ 5,085 $ 183,121
2,625,702 259,903 - 509,027 768,830
2,975,702 437,938 - 514,112 952,051
- 82,043 82,048 - -
2,813,689 777,850 - 935,825 1,713,875
2,313,689 B58,808 82,048 935,825 1.713.675
- 2210 - {470) 1,740
5,789,331 1,300,047 82,048 1,449 467 2.667,466
350,000 178,037 - 5,085 183,122
7.534,6821 658,168 - 1,083,018 1,741,186
3,282,128 325,129 - 838.033 981,162
- 234,103 234,103 - .
11,188,749 1,385,437 234,103 1.724136 2,885470
(5,377.358) (95,380) (152.055) {274,869) (218,004)
752,368 602,433 152,055 581,948 1.032.324
4,825,000 - - -
5,377,258 602.433 152,058 581,846 1,032,324
$ - 507,043 - 307.277 § 314,320
507,043
S 81320
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual - Linear Park

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2004

Revenues
Miscallanecus
Other
Total miscetlaneaus

Interest earmed on Investments
Totai revenues
Expenditures
Current
Recreationat and community facilities
Linear Park
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expendituras
Gther financing sources {usas)
Transfars in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Revanues and othar financing sourcas
(uses) over (under) expenditures

Fund balance

End of year - June 30

Project Prior Closad Currant

Authorization Years Projects Year Total
3 100.000 3 198,100 $ 198.100
100,00C 198,100 188,100
- 533 533
100,000 198,633 198.833
100,000 45,610 45,810
100,000 45,610 45,610
- 153.023 183,023
100 100
100 100
H 153,123 $ 153,123

5 153.123
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

*

Enterprise Funds

*

Internal Service Funds

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net
income, financial position and cash flows. The accounting principles
used here are generally accepted in the United States of America and
are applicable to similar businesses in the private sector.



ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are either financed or
operated in a manner similar to private businesses or for operations that
the City has decided that pericdic determination of net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, management control, accountability,
public policy, or other purposes.
The following comprise the City's Enterprise Funds:

*  Electric Fund

*  Water and Wastewater Fund

*  Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

o Transit Fund

= Airport Fund

All Enterprise Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of
accounting.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
PUBLIC WORKS COMMISSION

Combining Balanca Sheet

Electric Fund
June 30, 2004

Assets
Current unrestrictad assats
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
internai balances
Less allowance for doubtful accounts
Inventories
Other current assats
Total current unrestricted assets

Current restricted assets
Cash anrd cash equivalents
Investments
Coallateral pledged in lieu of deposits
Recefvables
Total current restricted assats

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Qther assets

Capital assets:
Lard
Constructon in process
Electric utility system
Buildings
Equipment and machinery
Computer programs
Vehicles
Office equipment

Capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

Totat assets

Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities to be paid from unraestricted
current assets
Cumrent portion of long-term debt
Overdraft payable
Accounts payabie and accrued expenses
Total current liabilities to be paid from unrestricted current assets

Current llabilities to be paid from
restrictad current assats
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Total current iiabillties to be paid from
restricted current assets

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Long-term debt
Total noncurrent Habilities

Totai liabifities

Nat assets
Capitat assets net of relaled debt
Restricted for -
Capital Projects
Debt servica
Unrestricted net assets
Total net assets

Total Habitlties and net assets

2003A
Uptown Rate Electric
Electric Revitalization  Stabilization  Revenue Bond
Fund Speacial Fund Speciat Fund Fund Totai
$ 7.344.154 3 - 5 - H - 5 7344154
6,640,931 - - - 6,840,931
19,088,673 - - - 18,088,873
898,923 (6,488) B (894,945) (4,450)
(251,303) - - - {251,303}
10,238,637 - - - 10,238,837
75,104 - - - 75,104
44,031,118 (6,468) - (884.845) 43.129.708
5,207,479 2,450,881 5,484,375 5,405,181 19,547,596
2,238,435 - - . 2,238,435
229974 - - - 229,874
10,549 - - - 10.549
7,686,437 2,450,881 5,484,175 5405161 22,026,654
51,717,556 2,444,413 5,484,175 4.510,218 85,156,360
810,990 - - 62,240 873,230
44712168 - - - 4,471,216
3,529,681 - - 1,201,326 4.731,007
163,808,688 - - - 183,808,688
30,408,593 - - - 30,409,593
7,328,141 . - - 7,325,141
2,990,655 - - - 2,990,655
722,202 - - - 722,202
472 467 - - - 472,487
213,729,641 - - 1.201.328 214,930,967
214,540,631 - - 1,263,568 215804197
$ 266,258,187 5 2,444,413 3 5484175 $ 5773782 $ 280,960,557
$§ 6737880 H - $ - 3 - § B6737.880
13,682,681 - - 151,076 13,833,757
20.420,561 - - 151,078 20,571,837
3,577.149 1,402,289 - - 4,979,438
3.577,148 1,402,289 - - 4,972,438
23.997,710 1,402,289 - 151,076 25,851.075
50,109 388 - - - 50,109,388
50,109.388 - - - 50,109,388
74,107,058 1,402,288 - 151,076 75,660,463
156,882,373 - - 1,201,328 158,083,659
1,080,732 - - - 1,060,732
34.207 964 1,042,124 5,484.175 4,421,380 48,155,663
192,151,088 1,042,124 £8,484 175 5,622,708 205.300,084
$ 266,258,187 3 2,444,413 $ 6,484 175 $ 5773782 $ 2809680,557




CiTY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
PUBLIC WORKS COMMISSION

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Electric Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Power supply and generation
Electric operation
General and administrative
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income {lass)

Nonoperating revenue (expense)
Interest earned on investments
Gain (loss) on disposa!l of assets
Interest expense
Amortization
Issue costs
Total nonoperating revenue (expense)

Income (loss) before transfers
and contributions

Transfers in

Transfers out

Transfers out - City of Fayetteviile

Capital contributions
Change in net assets
Total net assets - as previously reported
Prior period adjustment - prepaid pension

Total net assets - beginning restated

Total net assets - ending

2003A
Uptown Rate Electric
Electric Revitalization Stabilization Revenue Bond
Fund Special Fund  $pecial Fund Fund Total
$141,981920 S - 3 - 3 -~ $141 981,920
141,981,820 - - - 141,981,920
94,435,771 - - - 84,435,771
11,682,952 - - - 11,682,952
8,241,402 - - - 8,241 402
13,023,350 - - - 13,023,350
127,383,475 - - - 127,383,475
14,598,445 - - - 14,588,445
547,832 - 43,500 - 588,332
{1,092,556} - - - (1,092 556)
(1,995,508) - - - (1,995,508)
(783,728) - - - (783,728)
{154,337) - - - {184,337}
(3,478,297) - 40,500 - (3,437,797)
11,120,148 - 40,500 - 11,160,648
1,117,786 - 2,000,000 5,622,706 8,740,492
(7,622,708) (1,465,898) - - (9,088,604)
(8,412,809) - - - (8,412,809)
116,186 - - - 116,186
(3,681,395) (1,465,898) 2,040,500 5,622,706 2,515,913
197,223,703 2,508,022 4,443,675 - 204,175,400
(1,381,219) - - - (1,381,219)
195,832,484 2,508,022 4,443 B75 - 202,784,181
$192,151.089 § 1042124 § 6484175 $ 5622706  $205,300,094
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -

Electric Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004

(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2003)

Revenues
Operating revenues
Electric operations
Sale of electricity
City services
Non-utility charges
Service charges
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues
Non-operating revenues
Gain (loss) on asset disposal
Interest eamed on investments
Total non-operating revenues

Contributions
Contributions
Total contributions

Transfers in
Transfers from Rate Stabilization Fund
Tatal transfers in

Total revenues

Expenditures
Operating expenditures
Electric operations
Power supply and generation
Administration
Apparatus repair shop
lectric meter shop
Construction and maintenance
Substation construction
Engineering
Qverhead clearing account
Total electric operations

2004
Variance
Positive 2003
Budget __{Negative) Actual Actual
$139,835,700 $ (3,430,393) $136,405,308 $ 140,813,571
1,536,000 124,592 1,662,592 1,612,650
815,100 89,327 884,427 694,836
1,150,000 98,694 1,248,694 1,233,744
1,384 800 396,102 1,780.902 1,462,926
144 723,800 {2,741,630) 141,981,920 145,617,727
- (1,082,556) {1,092,556) (864,850)
1,000,000 (452,168) 547 832 809,252
1,000,000 (1,544.724) (544,724) (55.598)
2,355.000 (2,238,814) 116,186 3,632,702
2,355,000 {2,238,814) 116,186 3632,702
- - - 1,000,000
B - - 1,000,000
$ 148 078.600 $ (6,525,218) $ 141,553,382 3 150,194,831

S 95748310 $ 1,312,539 S 94,435,771 $105,199,899
428,060 47,743 380,311 266,336
430,070 41,546 388,524 452,811
538,185 75,145 523,040 554,244

6,645,070 (898,581) 7,583,651 5,755,193
1,040,590 (a7,508) 1,128,098 894,095
1,940,410 241,336 1,689,074 1,781,742
- 19,746 (19,746) 0
106,870,695 751,972 106,118,723 115,904,320
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -

Electric Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004

(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2003)

Expenditures (continued)
General and administrative
Executive
internal audit
Public information
Financial administration
Administrative - administration
Human resources
Accounting
Accounts receivable
Payroli
Customer service administraticn
Call center
Customer programs and service
Cashiers
Main office
Meter reading
Utility field services
Risk management
Capital Projects
Rates
Budget
Purchasing
Warehouse
Matarial management
Investigation
Fleet maintenance
Building and grounds mzintenance
Metering management
Special projects
Telecommunications systems
Information systems
Pension expense
Net pension cbligation adjustment
Medicai ingurance
Other
Clearing accounts

Total general and administrative

Total operating expenditures

Non-operating expenditures
Interest expense
|ssue costs

Total non-operating expenditures

2004
Variance
Positive 2003
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual

3 669,610 $ 120,185 548,425 508,379
74,325 7,168 67,127 72,616
443 835 41,990 401,545 380,794
135,530 27,468 108,061 114,831
95,550 1,631 93,919 82,007
428 980 68,637 360,343 382,720
413,390 50,947 362,443 382,524
504,640 68,225 536,415 575,456
69,620 10,920 58,700 66,716
1,004,305 237,756 766,549 774,377
§59,810 33,043 526,767 563,787
269,538 16,009 253,529 139,376
339,240 (1,212} 340,452 333,967
300,680 99,418 201,262 299,873
325,940 46,439 279,501 335,461
401,187 (41,264) 442,431 391,492
378,760 73,477 306,283 268,382
184,245 23,166 161,079 152,045
139,820 61,537 78,283 193,278
96,930 22,487 74,443 83,683
218,490 58,955 158,535 -
333,355 {168,117) 501,472 N
118,470 (35,805} 154,375 121,901

- - - 100,975

997,515 111,820 885,695 -
172,085 20,453 151,832 169,851
204,960 25,735 179,225 185,524
302,320 71,917 230,903 234,173
332,865 30,621 302,244 325,919
809,700 {39,799 849,499 773,588
1,132,700 1,124,429 8,271 428,057
- - - 1,632,017
1.837,800 (233,850) 2,071,850 2,030,416
480,975 1,023,393 (542,418) 64,409
(4,718,660) (2,040,322) (2,678,338) {2.473,733)
9,159,700 918 388 8,241,402 2,695,911
116,030,485 1,670,360 114,360,125 125,600,231
2,531,000 535,492 1,995,508 2,955 731
- (154,337) 154,337 -
2,531,000 381,185 2,149 845 2,855,731
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Eiectric Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2003)

2004
Variance
Positive 2003
Budget {Negative} Actual Actual
Transfers out _
Transfers to City of Fayetteville § 8,469,900 3 57.091 3 B412,800 3 8,544 444
Transfers to Rate Stabilization Fund 2,300,000 - 2,000,000 250,000
Total transfers out 10,469,900 57.091 10.412.809 8.784.444
Budgetary appropriations
Inventory increase 600,000 277,244 322,756 (972,774)
Vehicie and equipment - - 158,633 -
Bond principal payments 2,949,600 (368,845) 3,318,545 3,669,280
Capital outlay 11,271,150 2,263,419 9,007,731 13,901,500
Appropriated net assets 4,226,465 4,225,465 - -
Total budgetary appropriations 19,647 215 8,239,550 12,807,665 16,598,006
Total expenditures 5148078 600 3 8,348,156 $ 135,730,444 §153,948 412
Reconciliation of change in net assets
Total revenues 3 (6,525218) $ 141,553,382 $ 160,194,831
Total expenditures 8,348,158 139,730.444 153,948,412
Subtotal $ 1,822,938 1,822,938 (3,753,581)
Reconciling items:
Bucdigetary appropriations 12,807,665 16,598,008
Depreciation (13,023,350) {12,890,217)
Amortization (783,728) {450,375)
Transfer of assets from the Uptown Revitalization Capital Project Fund 1,117,786 1,595,793
Transfer of assets to the 2003A Electric Revenue Bond Fund {5,622,708) -
Tota! reconciling iterns {5,504,333) 4.853,207
Change in net assets $ (3,681,385) 3 1,099,626
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Uptown Revitalization Fund

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures

Museum land acquisition

Botanical gardens

Consulting fees

Museum construction

Transportation system

Land denation

Riverfront deveiopment

Hydrology study

Electric system improvements

Water/Sewer improvements
Total expenditures

Revenues under expenditures

Other financing sources
Transfer fram Electric Fund
Total other financing sources

Revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures

Reconciling items:
Capital outlay

Transfer of assets to the Electric Fund

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Totai

$ - $ -3 - 3 -
- 2,346,547 - 2,346,547

- 55,705 - 55,705

- 132,304 - 132,304

- 7,153,453 - 7,153,453

- 160,000 - 160,000

- 175,000 - 175,000

- 79,776 - 79,776

- 6,705 - 6,705

- 1,798,368 1,079,209 2,877,577

- 122,686 348,123 470,809

14,500,000 12,030,544 1,427,332 13,457,876
(14,500,000} (12,030,544) (1,427,332) (13,457,876)
14,500,000 14,500,000 - 14,500,000
14,500,000 14,500,000 - 14,500,000

$ - 3 2,469,456 (1,427,332) § 1,042124

1,427,332
(1,117,786)
(348,112)

Transfer of assets to the Water and Wastewater Fund

Change in net assets
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Rate Stabilization Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Revenues
Interest earned on investments

Rate stabilization transfer
Total revenues

Expenditures
Total expenditures

Revenues under expenditures

Other financing sources
Transfer from Electric Fund
Transfer to Electric Fund
Appropriated net assets
Total other financing sources

Revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures

Reconcliling items:
Total reconciling items
Change in net assets

98

$§ 2,040,500

TJotal
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
$ 565972 523,950 3 40,500 3 564,450
4,169,725 4,169,725 - 4,169,725
4 735 697 4,603,675 40,500 4734 175
4,735,697 4,693 675 40,500 4734 175
6,750,000 4,750,000 2,000,000 6,750,000
(5,000,000) (5,000,000) - (5,000,000}
(6,485,697) - - -
(4,735,687) (250,000) 2,000,000 1,750,000
3 - $ 4,443,875 2,040,500 3 6,484,175



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of 2003A Electric Revenue Bond
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Revenues
Interest earned on investments
Total revenues

Expenditures
Construction
Engineering
Other
Total expenditures

Revenues under expenditures

Other financing sources
2003A Revenue Bond proceeds
Total other financing sources

Revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures

Reconciling items:
Capital outlay
Change in net assets

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
$ 45,000 3 3 38,738 3 38,739
45,000 38,739 38,739
- 266,207 266,207
- 208,230 208,230
- 765,628 765,628
5,675,000 1,240,065 1,240,065
(5,830,000) {1,201,3286) (1,201,326)
5,630,000 5,622,706 5,622 706
5,630,000 5,622,708 5,622 706
3 - $ 4,421,380 $ 4,421,380
1,201,326
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Combining Balance Sheat

Water and Wastewater Fund
June 30, 2004
20034
Annaxation 1997 A A | 2002 State Watar and
Water and Capital Supplemantai Capital Capital Capitai Revolving Loan
Wastewater  Project Fund Capital Project Project Fund Rasarve Project Fund Capitai Project Ravenua Bond
Fund Phasa iif Fund Phass IVA Fund Phase VB Fund Fund Tatat
Apsets
Current unresirictad assats
Cash and cash eguivaients $ S641055 3§ - 5 - § - 8 - § - 5 - 3 - § 5841055
Invesiments 2,116,244 - - - - - - - 2,116,244
Racsivables 14,314,880 - - - - 28,592 1,557,825 . 15,899,377
Intemal baiances 1,506,148 - - (24) - {342,133) {728,241) {431,080y 4,490
Lasa allowance for doubtful accaunts (55,591 - . - . - - {58,501)
Inventories 915,823 - - . - . - 915,623
Other currant assats 91,143 - - - - - - - 81,143
Total cumment unrastricted assa___ 24 529 687 - - {24) - (315641} 829 584 {431 060} 24612 541
Current restricted asssts
Cash and cash equivalants 5,354,905 . 41,925 561,026 8947 626 - 4,388,568 19,280,050
Investments 9,826,520 - - - - - - 9,426,520
Receivablas 119,887 - - 292.108 - 371597 - - 785792
Total currant restricted assets 15,501,112 - - 334,033 561,028 9.316.,623 - 4388568 29.901,362
Total current assets 38,820,794 : - 334,003 561,026 9.000.982 829,584 3.857.508 54,513,802
Noncurment assats
Cther assels 16468874 - - - - 199.052 1.845.826
Capital assats:
Land 8985620 - - - - - - - 6,395,620
Censtruction in process 8,715,358 - - - 1789283 £,919,71 1,200,251 16,624,593
Watar system 114,935,413 - - - - - - - 115,835,433
Sewar systam 191,856,371 - - - - - - - 191,656,371
Buildings 3,385,900 - - - - - - - 3,385 800
Eauipmant and machinery 1,478,601 - - - - - - + 1.478,80%
Computar pragrams 3,011,419 - - - - - - 3,011,419
Vahiclas 737,862 - - - - - - 731,862
Office aquicment 51402 - - - - - - 51.402
GCapital asssts, net 320 987 968 - - - 2789283 5919 701 1200251 338,877 2H
Totai nancurrent asseis 331514 840 - - - - 2,788 283 5919 701 1.359.303 341,723,127
Total assets 3371445634 % -3 - § 334'.02 $ 551028 $11.790.265 $ 5749285 S 53568811 § 388237000
— ey = e— ——c CiTITaR St ——
Liakilities and nat assels
Current portion of long-term dabt 3 40996878 § - 8 - % - % D 1 - 5 - 3 - § 4836876
Aczaunts payablie and accrusd 8,435,306 - - - 1,308,178 1,337,429 14,070 9.095 483
Total current liabilities to be paid
from
unrestricted current assets 11,332.682 - - - - 1308.178 1,337 429 14.070 13,992 359
Current fabilities to ba pald frem
restricted curment assata
Accounts payatila and acerued 1,394 387 - - - - - - 1.294,357
Tatai current liabilities to be paid
from
resiricted current asseis 1294 357 - - - - 1,294 357
Tatal currant labilitias 12,627,039 - - - 1,308.178 1337.429 14070 15.288.718
Long-tarm gaot 126,872,519 . - B B - 5411,853 . 134,284,375
Unsamed daposits 4,812,384 - - M - - - - 4612384
Total noncurrent Habilities 133 484,903 - - - - - 5411.856 - 138,896,759
Total liabilities 146.111.942 - - - 1,308 178 6749285 14070 154,135 475
Net asseta
Capita1 assets nat af raiated dabl 188,188,571 - - - 2,783,283 507,845 1,200,251 200,685,950
Restricted for-
Capital Arojects - - - - . 7,318,807 (507.845) 4,142,490 10,653,452
Dabt service 7,863,715 - - - - 373,997 - - 7,831,712
Urrestricted net assels 23,571,406 - - 334009 £A1.026 - - - 22,456,441
Total net assets 225333.692 - - 334,008 561,026 10,482 087 - 5,342,741 242,053 555
Total ilabilities and net assets 5371425634 5 - 3 - § 334008 3 561.0 S 11,790.265 3 8748, g_&_ﬁ_ 3 5356811 § Jgﬁ.m
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARQLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expensaes, and Changes in Fund Net Assats
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004
Anrnexation 1997 A A (d A 2002 State 2003A
Water and Capitat Supplementai Capital Capital Capital Revolving LoanRevenue Bond
Wastewater  Projsct Fund Capital Project Project Fund Reserve Project Fund Capital Project Capital Project
Fund Phase i Fund Phasa VA Fund Phasga Iva Fund Fund Totat
Operating revenyes
Charges for services $ 45282128 § - § - 3 -8 -8 - 5 - $ - % 45282126
Total operating ravenues 45.282 126 - - - - - - - 45282 126
Operating expensas
Water operations 8,989,876 . - - - - - - 8,299,876
Sanitary sawer operations 8,182,255 - - - B - - - 8,182,255
Generai and acministrative N 8248266 - - - - - - - 9.248 266
Depreciation 11,341,587 - - - - - - - 11.341,587
Total operating expansas 37,781 984 - - - - - + - 37,791,984
Operating income (loss) 7,500 142 - - - - - - - 7.500,142
Nonoperating revenue (expense)
Interast aamed on investments 896,166 - - - 4,886 - - - 901,132
Gain (ios3) on disposal of assets 85,039 . - - - - - - 85,038
Interast axpense (5,401,845) - - - - - - - E,491,645)
Amortization (858,754} - - - - - - - (953 754)
Issue costs (1.267.507) - - . - - - - {1,267 507)
Tetal nonoperaling revenus [expensa {6.736,701) - - - 4,965 - - - (6.731,735)
Intome {loss} before transfers
and contributions 763.441 - - - 4,966 - - - 788,407
Transfers in 7.674,580 - - - . 11,064,304 - 5,868,119 24,607,003
Transfers out (16.932.423) (2,173,374} (2.648.055) (1,978.661) - - - {525,378) (24,258.891)
Transters out - City of Fayettevilla {1.074,660) - - - - - - - {1.074,660)
Capitai conributaons 8,029,173 - - - - - - - 8,029,173
Change in net assets (1.539889)  (2173.374) (2 649 055) {1.978.381) 4966 11.084.304 - 5.342.741 8,071,032
Total net assets - a5 previously reported 228,197,042 2,173,374 2,649,055 2,312,870 556,060 (582.217) - . 235,305,984
Priar pariod adjustment - prepaid pension (1,323.461) - - - - - - - (1.3231.461)
Total net assets - bagi g restated 226,873,581 2173374 2649058 2,312.67C 558080 (562,217) - - 233982 523
Total net assets - ending §225,333692 § - § - 5 334009 § 561026 $:0482087 § - § 5342741  $242 053,555
i ———tn e ——— i iy ————
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004
{with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2003)

2004
Variance
Positive 2003
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
Operating revenues
Water operations
Water sales $ 21,147,800 $ (2,754,571) $ 18,393,229 $ 17,813,632
Connection fees 565,000 218,323 783,323 626,764
City services 65,200 2.359 87,559 54,024
Total water operations 21,778,000 {2,533.889) 198,244,111 18,604,420
Sanitary sewer operations
Sewer charges 24,736,500 (1,131,535) 23,604,965 22,972 803
Connection fees 360,000 467,122 827,122 417,969
City services 41,000 (2,140} 38,860 34,588
Total sanitary sewer operations 25,137,500 (666,553} 24,470,947 23,425,360
Other operating revenues
Non-utility charges 661,200 741,814 1,403,014 865,468
Service charges 215,000 56,612 271,612 280,362
Miscellaneous 60,300 (168,358) (107,558) (167.575)
Total other operating revenues 937,000 530,068 1,567,068 978,255
Tetal operating revenues 47,852,500 {2.570,374) 45,282,126 43,008,035
Non-operating ravenues
Gain {loss) on asset disposal - 85,039 85,039 (13,388)
Interest earned on investments 1,000,000 (103,834) 868,166 802,122
Total non-operating revenues 1,000,000 {18,795) 981,205 788,736
Contributions
Contributions 4,425,000 3,604,173 8,029,173 8,605,351
Total contributions 4,425,000 3,604,173 8,029,173 8,605,351
Transfers in
Transfers from Annexation Phase. Il 2,173,370 353 2,173,723 -
Transfers from 1897 Supplemental 2,586,360 62,195 2,649,055 -
Total transfers in 4,760,230 5§2.548 4,822,778 -
Total revenues $ 58,037,730 $ 1,077.552 $ 59,115,282 $ 52.402,122
Expenditures
Operating expenditurss
Water operations
Administration and engineering $ 1,037,300 s 29521 $ 742,069 $§ 913,654
Water meter shop 763,105 (13,061) 776,165 648,830
Construction and maintenance 3,082,080 (97,082) 3,179,162 2,888 453
P. Q. Hoffer water treatment plant 2,975,700 424,408 2,851,292 2.854,760
Glenville Lake water treatment plant 1,378,380 192,995 1,185,365 1,214,788
Water resources environmental system orotection 164,665 41,999 122,666 -
Laboratory 241,525 46,156 195,369 233,283
Environmental 100,300 13,914 86,386 90,309
Watersheds 164,520 3,119 161,401 160,126
Cross Connection - - - 218,677
Total water operations 9,907,555 307,679 8,999,876 9.222 880
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004

(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2003)

Expenditures (continued)

Operating expenditures {continued)
Sanlitary sewer operations
Administration and engineering
Sewer construction and maintenance
Lift stations
Cross Creek WW treatment plant
Rockfish Creek WW treatment plant
Residuals management
Water resources environmental system protection
Labaratory
Environmental
Total sanitary sewer operations

General and administrative
Executive
internal audit
Public information
Financiat administration
Administrative administration
Human resources
Accounting
Accounts receivable
Payrolt
Customer service administration
Cail center
Main office
Customer programs and services
Cashiers
Meter reading
Utility field services
Risk management
Capital Projects
Rates
Budget
Purchasing
Warehouse
Material management
Fleet maintenance
Building and greunds maintenance

2004
Variance
Positive 2003

Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
$ 1,037,300 295,225 742,075 913,651
3,458,990 161,327 3,307,663 2,752,905
- - - 508,012
2,101,780 148,123 1,955,857 4,897,628
1,823,390 219,418 1,603,972 1,545,493
208,270 29,805 178,465 173,503
164,685 41,999 122,666 104,827
241,525 45,156 195,369 233,283
100,300 13,812 86,388 90,309
9,136,220 043,965 8,192,255 8,220,611
354,610 143,177 211,433 231,715
74,325 9,107 65,218 71,307
443,635 29,508 414 127 399,423
135,530 28,445 107,085 107,233
95,550 15,490 80,060 77,089
428,980 76,260 352,720 369,132
413,390 51,307 362,083 376,489
604,840 78,845 525,798 573,674
69,620 11,407 58,213 66,578
554,305 56,211 498,004 445,708
559,810 36,016 523,794 554,152
300,680 99,820 200,850 294,735
269,532 56,842 212,690 111,162
339,240 {496) 339,738 326,058
325,940 51,336 274,604 327,711
401,473 44,240 356,933 368,942
379,760 41,470 338,290 330,086
184,245 29215 155,030 149,876
161,095 21,844 79,251 75,529
96,930 23,260 73,670 82,752
218,490 61,466 157,024 -
333,355 258,460 74,895 -
118,470 (34,183 152,663 120,865
977,515 (22,678) 1,000,183 -
172,085 22,078 150,007 166,588
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -

Water and Wastewater Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004

{(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 39, 2003)

Expenditures (continued)
Operating expenditures (cantinuad)
General and administrative (continued)
Metering management
Investigation
Special projects
Communication system
Information systems
Pension expenses
Net pension chligation adjustment
Medical insurance
Other
Clearing accounts
Total generail and administrative

Total operating sxpenditures

MNon-operating expenditures
Interest expense
Issue costs
Total non-operating expenditures

Transfers out
Transfer to City of Fayetteville
Total transfers out

Budgetary appropriations
Inventory increase
Vehicie and equipment
Bond principal payments
State loan payments
Capital outlay
Appropriation of net assais
Total budgetary appropriations

Total expenditures

2004
Variance
Positive 2003
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual

§ 188,860 $ 27,607 3 161,353 3 178,105
- - - 96,210

302,820 65.252 237,568 233,688
332,865 67,280 265,585 302,850
809,700 (35,294) §44,004 765,648
1,177,700 1,169,436 8,264 428,057

. - - 1,564,260
1,772,200 {348,867) 2,121,067 2,057,002
1,693,750 259,870 1,433,880 1,300,744
{4,696,960) (2,108.057) {2,538,903) (2,680,192)
9,533.940 285,674 9,248,266 9,862,982
28,577 715 2,137,318 26,440,397 27,406 473
5,703,000 211,355 5,491,845 6,393,205
- {1,267,507) 1,267,507 -
5,703,000 (1,056,152) 6,759,162 5,393,205
1,074,700 40 1,074,660 713,473
1,074,700 40 1,074,660 713,473
- 200,483 (200,483) 187,867

- 92,566 (92,568) -
15,383,500 82,045 15,321,455 8,730,720
- (379,7586) 379,756 379,756
7,297,815 713,861 6,583,854 6,016,428
1,000 1,000 - -
22682315 690,299 21,892,018 13,314,771
$ 58,037,720 $ 1,771,505 $ 56,268,225 § 47 827,922
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2003)

2004
Variance
Positive 2003
Budget {Negative) Actuai Actual
Reconciliation of change in net assets

Total revenues : $ 1,077,552 $ 59,115,282 $ 52,402,122
Total expenditures 1,771,505 56,266,225 47,827,922

Subtotai § 2,849.057 2,849,057 4,574,200

Reconciling ltems:

Budgetary appropriations 21,892,016 13,314,771
Depreciation (11,341,587) (11,407,197
Amortization (958,754} (753,194)
Transfer of assets from Annexation Capital Project Fund Phase IVA 1,878,661 2,376,264
Transfer of assets to Annexation Capital Project Fund Phase VB (64,304) 582,217
Transfer of assets from Annexation Capital Project Fund Phase 11l {349) {452}
Transfer of assets from 1997 Suppiemental Capital Project Fund - 3,103,004
Transfer of assets from Uptown Revitalization Fund 348,112 122,686
Transfer to 2003A Bond Capital Project Fund (16,868,119} -
Transfer from 2003A Bond Capital Project Fund 525,378 -

Total reconciling Items {4,388,946) 7,338,089

Change in net assets $ (1,539,889) $ 11,912,299
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Capital Project Fund - Phase Il
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures
Caonstruction
Engineering
Rights of way
Less City of Fayetteville participation
Financing costs
Cther
Total expenditures

Revenues under expenditures

Other financing sources
1969 Revenue Bond proceeds
Transfer to Water and Wastewater Fund
Transfer from Annexation Phase Il
Capital Project Fund
Transfer from 1983 Refunding Bond
Capital Project Fund

Transfer from 1997 Supplemental Capital
Project Fund
Transfer to Annexation Phase {V Capital
Project Fund
Transfer from Water/ Sewer Fund
Total other financing sources

Revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures

Reconciling items:
Capital outlay

Transfer of assets to the Water and Wastewater fund

Change in net assets

Capital Project ¢losed at June 30, 2004

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
$ 573,115 $ 573,115 - 3 573115
573,115 573,115 - 573,115
24,251,191 23,371,752 - 23,371,752
4,676,163 4,675,163 - 4,676,163
- 419,081 - 419,081
(6,954,005) (8,954,005) {349) (6,954,354)
1,553,409 1,553,408 - 1,553,408
- 460,358 - 460,358
23,526,758 23,526,757 (349) 23,526,408
(22,853,643) (22,953,642) 349 (22,953,283)
19,325,000 19,325,000 - 19,325,000
(2,706,424) (533,054) (2,173,719) (2,706,773)
- 2,289,028 - 2,289,028
- 846,087 - 946,087
- 5,499,951 - 5,499,951
(2,400,000) (2,400,000C) - (2,400,000
8,735,087 - - -
22 953,643 25,127,012 (2,173,719) 22,953,293
$ - $ 2,173,370 (2,173,370)
(349)
345
$ (2,173374)
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of 1997 Supplemental Capital Project Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues 3 - 3 -3 - 3 -
Total revenues - . - -
Expenditures
Construction - 6,273,633 - 6,273833
Engineering - 692,942 - 692,942
Rights of way - 8,463 - 8,463
Cther - 204,257 - 204,257
Total expenditures 7,241,497 7,179,295 - 7,179,295
Revenues under expenditures (7.241,497) (7,179,295) - (7,179,295)
Other financing sources
Transfer from Water and Sewer Capital Reserve
Fund 9,828,350 9,828,350 - 9,828,350
Transfer to Water and Wastewater Fund (2,586,853) - {2,649,055) (2,649,055)
Total other financing sources 7,241,497 9,828,350 (2,649,055) 7,179,295

Revenues and other financing sources over

expenditures $ - § 2649055 (2,649,055) § -
Reconciling items:
Capital outlay -
Transfer of assets to the Water and Wastewater fund -
Change in net assets $ (2,649,055)

Capital Project closed at June 30, 2004
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Capital Project Fund - Phase IVA
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
' Revenues $ - 8 - 3 -5 -
Total revenues - - - -
Expenditures - Phase IV-A
Construction - 5,489,907 86,278 5,556,185
Engineering - 1,034,220 382 1,034,602
Rights of way - 91,867 718 92,5885
Less City of Fayetteville participation - (1,265,290) (20,818) (1,288,108)
Other - 168,594 133 168,727
Total expenditures - Phase [V-A 6,300,000 5,499,208 66,693 5,565,981
Expenditures - Phase |V-B
Engineering - - - -
Rights of way - - - -
Less City of Fayettevile participation - - - -
Other - - - -
Total expenditures - Phase IV-B - - - -
Total expenditures 5,300,000 5,499,298 66,693 5,565,991
Revenues under expenditures (8,300,000} (5,459,298) {86,693) (5,565,991)
Other financing sources
Transfer from Annexation Reserve Fund 3,900,000 3,500,000 - 3,500,000
Transfer from Annexation Phase lil
Capital Project Fund 2,400,000 2,400,000 - 2,400,000
Total other financing sources 5,300,000 5,800,000 - 5,900,000
Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures b - 5 400,702 (66,6893) 3 334,009
Reconciiing items:
Capital outlay 66,693
Transfer of assets to the Water and Wastewatsr fund (1.978,661)
Change in net assets ] (1.978.661)
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Capital Reserve Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues
Interest earned on investments 5 56,127 3 56,060 $ 4,966 3 61,026
Total revenues 56,127 58,060 4 966 61,026
Revenues under expenditures 56,127 56,080 4,966 61,026
Other financing sources
Transfer from Water and Wastewater fund 4,000,000 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
Transfer to Annexation Phase IV
Capital Project Fund (3,500,000} (3,500,000) - {3,500,000)
Appropriated net assets (556,127) - - -
Total other financing sources (56,127) 500,000 - 500,000
Revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures Ly - $ 556,060 4,966 $ 561,026
Reconciling items:
Total reconciling items -
Change in net assets b 4,966
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Capital Project Fund - Phase IVB
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues $ -3 - 3 - 3 -
Total revenues - - - -
Expenditures
Canstruction - 502,470 1,860,575 2,463,045
Engineering - 1,031,607 357,113 1,388,720
Rights of way - 146,452 1,039 147,481
Less City of Fayetteville participation - {566,050) (461,939) (1,027,989)
Other - 250,364 B5,565 335,92¢
Total expenditures 12,000,000 1,364,843 1,942 353 3,307,198
Revenues under expenditures {12,000,000) {1,364,843) (1,8942,353) (3,307,196)
Other financing sources
Bond proceeds 12,000,000 - 11,000,000 11,000,000
Total other financing sources 12,000,000 - 11,000,000 11,000,000
Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures 3 - §  (1.364,843) 9,0576847 3 7,692,804
b= "]
Reconcifing items:
Capital outfay 1,942,353
Transfer of assets to the Water and Wastewater fund 84,304
Change in net assets $ 11,064,304
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of 2002 State Revolving Loan Capital Project Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Expenditures
Construction
Engineering
Other
Total expenditures

Revenues under expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
State revolving loan proceeds
Totaj other financing sources

Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures

Reconciling items:
Capital outlay
Loan procesds
Change in net assets

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total

$ - 41,470 § 4637465 3 4,678,835
- 739,460 185,379 924,839
- 1,906 314,021 315,927
17,442,000 782,836 5,136,865 5,919,701
(17,442,000) (782,836) (5,136,865) {5,919,701)
17,442,000 - 5,411,856 5,411,856
17,442,000 - 5,411,858 5,411,856
$ -

(782,836) 2749891 & 5507,845)

11

5,136,865

(5,411,856
3 -



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of 2003A Water and Wastewater Revenue Bond
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues
Interest sared on invesiments $ 2681865 § - 3 116,215 § 116,215
Total revenues 2,681 865 - 116,215 116,215
Expenditures
Construction - - 1,589,929 1,589,928
Engineering - - 207 395 207,395
Other - - 44 520 44 520
Total expenditures 19,571,865 - 1,841,844 1,841,844
Revenues under expenditures (18.850,000) - (1,725,629) {1,725 629)
Other financing sources (uses)
2003A Revenue Bond proceeds 16,890,000 - 5,868,119 5868 119
Total ather financing sources 16,890,000 - 5,868,119 5,868,119
Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures [ - 3 - 4,142480 § 4,142 490
ey —
Reconciling items:
Capital outlay 1,725,629
Transfer of assets to the Water MWastewater Fund {525,378)
Change in net assets 3 5,342,741
e —— —— —— — ————.}
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NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
June 30, 2004

Total Nonmajor

Transit Airport Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds
Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments 3 341,517 $ 1,884,556 3 2,236,073
Accounts receivable 687,762 854,531 1,542,293
inventories 7,375 2,983 10,358
Restricted cash and investments - 309,728 308,728
Total current assets 1,036,654 3,061,798 4,098,452
Noncurrent assets
Other assets - 110,000 110,000
Capital assets 3,845,611 21,511,542 25,357,153
Total noncurrent assets 3,845,611 21,621,542 25,467,153
Total assets $ 4882265 $ 24683,340 3 29,565,605
Liabilities and net assets
Current liabifities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3 175,223 3 186,823 $ 362,046
interfund payables - 398,921 398,921
Accrued vacation 79,281 50,191 129,472
Total current liabilities 254,504 635,935 890,439
Noncurrent liabilities
Deferred revenues - 21,314 21,314
Total noncurrent liabilities - 21,314 21,314
Total liabilities 254,504 857,249 911,753
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 3,845,612 21,511,541 25,357,153
Unrestricted 782,149 2,514,550 3,286,699
Total net assets 4,627 761 24,026,091 28,653,852
Total liabilities and net assets $ 4882265 $ 24,683,340 $ 29,565,605
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Other revenue from operations
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Personnel
Maintenance and operations
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenue (expense)
Interest earned on investments
Federal and State grants
Passenger facility charges
Miscellanecus revenue
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Interest expense
Amortization
Miscellaneous expense
Total nonoperating revenue (expense)

Income (loss) before transfers
and contributions

Transfers in

Capital contributions

Extraordinary items
Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

Total Nonmajor

Transit Airport _Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds
$ 804,782 § 2,004,185 $ 2,808,967
37,878 321,430 359,306
842,658 2,325,615 3,168,273
2,518,972 876,367 3,395,339
1,426,315 862,837 2,289,152
812,435 1,404,638 2,217,074
4,757,722 3,143,843 7,901,565
(3,915,064) (818,228) (4,733,292)
- 18,521 18,521
1,888,267 72,667 1,860,934
- 396,263 396,263
- 31,143 31,143
(32,511) (22,598) (55,109)
- (24,751) (24,751)
- (22,000) (22,000)
- (237,004} (237,004)
1,855,756 212,241 2,067,997
{2,059,308) (605,987) (2,665,295)
1,316,211 - 1,316,211
38,835 1,533,882 1,572,817
- 702,500 702,500
(704,162) 1,630,385 926,233
5,331,923 22,395,696 27,727,619
$ 4627761 § 24,026,091 $ 28653852
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Cash Fiows
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Operating activities
Cash received from customers
Other operating revenue
Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for services
Cash paid for goods and services
Net cash provided by {used in)
operating activities

Noncapital financing activities
Transfers in
Federal and state grants
Nonoperating revenues
Other
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

Capital and related financing activities
Proceeds from debt issuance
Contributed capital received
Capital contributions - Federal grant
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principai paid on debt maturities
Interest paid on debt maturities
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities

Investing activities
Interest and dividends
Net cash provided {used)} by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents/investments

Cash and cash equivalents/investments
Beginning of year

End of year

Cash and cash equivalents
Total cash and cash equivalents/investments

Unrestricted cash and equivalents/investments
Restricted cash and equivalents/investments
Total cash and cash equivaients/investments
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Total Nonmajor

Transit Airport Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds
$ 256,172 % 1,916,279 $ 2.172,451
37,812 286,748 324,560
{2,563,046) (891,795) (3.454,841)
{1,360,140) (1,125,852) (2,485,992)
(3,629,202) 185,380 (3,443,822)
1,316,211 - 1,316,211
1,888,267 72,667 1,960,934
- 427,406 427,406
- {237,004) (237,004)
3,204,478 263,088 3,487,547
- 40,213 40,213
38,935 - 38,935
- 1,533,882 1,533,882
(6,903) (1,710,857) (1,717,560)
- (65,080) {(65,090)
- {24,751) (24,751)
32,032 {226,403) {194,371)
- 14,406 14,406
- 14,406 14,406
(392,692) 236,452 {156,240)
734,209 1,967,832 2,702,041
$ 341,517 3 2204284 § 2,545 801
8 341517 § 2204284 § 2,545,801
5 341517 § 2204284 § 2,545,801
$ 341,517 § 1,894,556 § 2,238,073
- 309,728 309,728
3 341,517 § 2204284 3 2,545,801




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Total Nonmajor

Transit Airport Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds
Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities
Operating income (loss) $ (3915064 (818,228) § (4,733,292)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:
Depreciation 812,435 1,404,639 2,217,074
Change in assets and liabilities
(Increase) detrease in accounts receivable (548,046) (87,906) {635,952)
(Increase) decrease in inventory (564) (1,243) (1,807)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued liabilities 47,399 (263,393) (215,994)
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated
absences (25,298) (13,807) {39,105)
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues (64) (34,682) (34,746)
Total adjustments 285,862 1,003,608 1,289,470
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 5 (3,629202) % 185,380 $ (3,443,822)
Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Dissolution of Fayetteville Air Cargo $ - % 702500 § 702,500




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Transit Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004
{With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2003)

Variance
Positive 2004 2003
Budget {Negative} Actual Actual
Operating revenues .

Charges for servicas $ 1117830 § (313,048) § 804,782 $ 1,084,170

Other revenues from operations 42 200 (4,324) 37,876 44,536
Total operating revenues 1,160,030 (317,372) 842 658 1,128,708

Operating expenditures

Personnel 2,551,750 7.480 2,544,270 2,613,221

Maintenance and operations 1,441,695 154,947 1,286,748 1,325,293

Capital outlay - - - 4,087
Total operating expenditures 3,993,445 162,427 3,831,018 3,942,601
Operating loss {2,833,415) {154,945) (2,988,360) (2,813,895)

Neonoperating revenues

Federal and State grants 1,390,000 410,248 1,800,248 1,456,440
Total nonoperating revenues 1,390,000 410,248 1,800,248 1,456,440
Revenues under expenditures (1,443,415) 255,303 (1,188,112} {1,357,455)

Other financing sources {uses)

Transfers in 1,443,415 (250,204) 1,193,211 1,340,401
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,443,415 (250,204) 1,193,211 1,340,401
Revenues and other financing .

sources (uses) over (under} expenditures 3 - 8 5099 3 5089 &% (17.054)
Reconciliation of change in net assats:

Total revenues 3 3,836,117 § 3,025,547

Total expenditures 3,831,018 3,842 601
Subtotal 5,09% (17,054)

Depreciation {812,435) (842,009)

Capital contributions - 4,087

Capital cutlay - 4,087

Loss on disposai of assets {32,511) -

Decrease (increase) in accrued vacation 25,298 13,493
Subtotal (819,648} {820,342)

Change in net assets b (814.549) § {837.396)
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of
Transit Capital Project Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2004

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Federal grants 3 3,614,575 § 1,302,409 5 3 33,935 § 1,341,344
State grants 399,272 146,904 - 146,904
County - 10,980 - 10,980
Misceflaneous - 19,251 - 19,251
Totai revenues 4,013,847 1,479,544 38,935 1,518,479
Expenditures
FTA Capital 0313 1,238,430 - 1,215 1,215
FTA Capitai 0229 350,000 350,000 - 350,000
FTA Capital 0244 813,625 773,505 - - 773,505
FTA Capital 0271 1,238,560 504,507 47,454 551,961
FTA Capital 0292 35,000 - - -
FTA Capital 0327 800,0C0 - - -
Total expenditures 4.476,615 1,628,012 48,669 1,676,681
Revenues over (under) expenditures (462,768) {148.468) - {9,734) {158,202)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 422,768 393,869 108,000 501,868
Appropriated fund balance 40,000 - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 462,768 393,869 - 108,000 501,869
Revenues and other financing
sources (uses} over {under)
expenditures 3 - 5 245401 § - $ 98,266 § 343,667
Reconclliation of modified accrual basis
to full agerual hasis:
Excess of revenues over expenditures $ 98,266
Capitat outlay 48,669
Non-capitalizable items (41,765)

Change In net assets
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of
Transit || Capital Project Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2004

Revenues
Intergovernmental
Federal grants
State grants
Total intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Transportation
Total expenditures

Revenues over {under})
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses}
Transfers in
Total other financing scurces {uses)

Revenues and other financing
sources (uses} over (under)
expenditures

Reconciliation of modified accrual basis
to full accrual basis:
Excess of revenues over expenditures
Change in net assets
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$ 5217

Praject Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total

362,600 216273 § 30000 § 78,241 T 214,514
45,325 27,035 10,001 8,778 26,813
407,925 243,308 90,001 88,020 241,327
407,925 243,308 90,001 88,020 241,327
453,250 270,349 100,000 97,803 268,143
453,250 270,340 100,000 97,803 268,143
(45,325) (27.032) {9.899) (8,783) {26,816)
45,325 40,325 9.999 15,000 45326
45325 40,325 9,999 15,000 45,328

- 13,293 § - 3 5217 18,510

3 5217



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Expenditures by Project
Transit Il Capital Project Fund

From Incepticn And For Year Ended June 30, 2004

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total

Expenditures by project:

Transportation
FTA 90.2229 $ - $ 100000 S 100,000 § - 5 -
FTA 90.2292 150,000 148,807 - 1,193 150,000
FTA 90.2313 153,250 21,533 - 94,337 115,870
FTA 90.2327 150,000 - - 2,273 2,273
Total transportation 453,250 270,340 100,000 97.803 268,143

Total expendltures by project $§ 453250 & 270340 % 100,000 § 97803 % 268,143
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Airport Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2003)

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Other revenugs from operations
Total operating revenues

Cperating expenditures
Persannel
Maintenance and operations
Capital cutlay
Total operating expenditures

Operating income {loss)

Nonoperating revenues
Interest earned on investments
Passenger facifity charge
Miscellaneous
Federal and State grants
Total nonoperating revenues

Nonoperating expenditures
Interest expense
Miscelianeous
Public safety reimbursements
Total nonoperating expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Othar financing sources (uses)
Transfers (out)
Debt service - principla payment
Appropriated fund balance
Total other financing sources (uses)

Extraordinary items

Revenues and cther financing sources
(uses} over {under) expenditures

Reconciliation of change in net assets
Totat revenues
Total expenditures
Subtotai

Depreciztion

Amortization

Change in accrued vacation

Change in inventory

Capital outlay

Gain {loss) on disposal of assets

Principal payment

Change in fair market value of investment
Subtotai

Change in net assets

Variance
Positive 2004 2003
Budget {Negative) . Actual Actual

1,938,942 § 85,243 3 2,004,185 $ 2,272,110
141,424 180,006 321,430 81,169
2,080,366 245,249 2,325,615 2,353,279
893,954 3,790 890,174 932,047
808,440 124,732 784,708 B59,543
176,960 (654.719) 831,679 55 930
1,280 364 {526,197) 2,506,561 1,847,570
100,002 (280,948) {180,946) 505,709
20,000 {4632} 15368 25,854

. - - 234,851

84,297 {53,154) 31,143 84,297
75838 (3,169) 72687 106,249
180,133 (60,955) 119,178 451,351
49,700 24,549 24,751 26,196
281,258 44,254 237,004 263,085
330,958 68,203 261,755 289,281
{50,823) (272,700) (323,523) 867,779
(326,166) 43,314 {282,852) (247,671)
- (24,876) {24,876) -

376,289 {376,989} - -
50.623 (358,551) (307,728) (247 671)

- 702,500 702,500 -

- $ 71,249 $ 71.249 3 420.108

3 3,147,293 $ 2,804,830

3,078,044 2,384 522

71,249 420,108

{1,404,639) (1,470,562)

(22,000} {22,000)

13,807 2,352

- 301

831,679 55,980

(22,598) -

24 876 -

(11.648) 3,668

(580,521) {1,430.263)

3 (819.272) § (1,010,155)
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of
Airport Gapital Project Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2004

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revanues

Federal grants 3 9,766825 % 7,597,825 3% - 8 1453275 % 9,051,100

State grants 540,375 414,154 - 80.607 494,761

Miscellaneous income 321,929 397,561 - 396,263 793,824

Investment income - 23,838 - 14,789 38,635
Totai revenues 10,629,128 8,433,376 - 1,944 944 10,378,320

Expenditures

Airpor{ Road Landseaping 50,000 49,163 - - 49 163

Airport Road Construction 369,164 360,018 - - 360,018

Jet Bridge Modification 48,195 33,887 - - 38,887

Preplan Runway Safety Areas 108,600 108,600 - - 108,600

Security system upgrade 92,815 91,511 - - 91,511

Ramp and safety area design/ARFF proximity suits 240,872 238,062 - - 238,062

NLVR/terminal rehab 2,517,783 1,733,000 - 471,321 2,204,321

Masterplan update & land 1,613,242 “ - 1,185,763 1,185,763

Laop Road 30,000 - - 2,522 2,522

Future Projects 349,000 - - - -

Apron & safety area improvements 6,010,000 5872526 - - 5,872,526
Total expenditures 11,427,671 8,491,767 - 1,659,606 10,151,373
Revenues over {under) expenditures (798,542} (58,381} - 285,338 226,947

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 768,542 513,404 - 282,851 796,255
Total other financing sources {uses) 798,542 513,404 - 282,851 796,255
Revenues and other financing sources

{uses} over (under} expenditures 5 - § 455013  § - B 568,189  § 1,023,202
Reconciliation of medified accrual basis

to fuil accrual basis:

Excess of revenues over expenditures 3 568,189

Capital outlay 1,659,608

Non-capitalizable items (78,128)

Change in net assets 3 2,149,667
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of services provided by
one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City,
on a cost reimbursement basis.
The following comprise the City's Internal Service Funds:

* Warranty Fleet Fund

* Fleet Maintenance Fund

* Insurance Fund

All Internal Service Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of
accounting.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2004

Warranty Fleet
Fleet Maintenance insurance
Fund Fund Fund Total
Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments $ 1419104 $ 294489 §$ 6576641 3 8,290,234
Accounts receivable 5114 504 21,088 26,706
Inventories - 394,071 - 394,071
Prepaid expenses - - 253,872 253,872
Total current assets 1,424,218 689,064 6,851,601 8,864,883
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets 31,211 209 491 £9,789 300,491
Total noncurrent assets 31,211 209,491 59,789 300,491
Total assets $ 1455429 § 898555 $ 6,911,380 S 9265374
Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 3674 $ 167,629 $ 3,623,593 § 3,794,896
Current portion of long term debt - 2,244 - 2,244
Accrued vacation - 55,048 24 871 79,919
Total current liabilities 3,674 224 921 3,648,464 3,877,059
Noncurrent liabilities
Deferred revenues - - 10,731 10,731
Long-term debt - 9,407 - 9,407
Total noncurrent fiabilities - 9,407 10,731 20,138
Total liabilities 3,674 234,328 3,659,185 3,897,197
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 31,211 197,840 59,789 288,840
Unrestricted 1,420,544 466,387 3,192,406 5,079,337
Total net assets 1,451,755 664,227 3,252,195 5,368,177

Total liabilities and net assets § 1455428 5 Bo8,555 $ 6911390 $ 9,265,374
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenuses, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Internal Service Funds
Year Ended June 30, 20604

Warranty Fleet
Fleet Maintenance Insurance
Fund Fund Fund Total
Operating revenues
Other revenue from operations $ - 8 - 8 243,058 § 243,058
Interfund charges and employee contributions 203,289 1,234,417 10,487,950 11,925,666
Total aperating revenues 203,299 1,234 417 10,731,008 12,168,724
Operating expenses
Personnel - 1,044,702 344,437 1,389,139
Maintenance and operations 70,590 159,080 9,406,740 9,636,410
Depreciation 8,578 24 576 4,358 37,652
Total operating expenses 79,168 1,228,358 9,755,575 11,063,101
Operating income (loss) 124,131 8,059 975,433 1,106,623
Nonoperating revenue (expense)
Interest earned on investments 9,273 1,807 34,411 45,491
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets - (3.665) - (3,665)
Total nonoperating revenue (expense) 8273 (1,858} 34,411 41,326
Income (loss) before transfers
and contributions 133,404 4,201 1,009,844 1,147,449
Transfers in - - - -
Change in net assets 133,404 4,201 1,009,844 1,147 449
Taotal net assets - beginning 1,318 351 660,026 2,242,351 4,220,728
Tatal net assets - ending $ 1,451,755 § 864,227 § 3252195 § 5368177
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Warranty Fleet
Fleet Maintenance insurance
Fund Fund Fund Totai
Operating activities
Cash received from customers $ 201,652 & 1234417 § 10481303 §$ 11,917,372
Other operating revenue - - 243,058 243,058
Cash received as deferred revenues - - 10,442 10,442
Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for services - (1,049,291) (340,145) {1,389,436)
Cash paid for goods and services {68,527} (216,853) {9,666,744) (9,952, 124)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities 133,125 (31,727) 727,914 829,312
Noncapital financing activities
Transfers in - - - -
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities - - - -
Capital and related financing activities
Proceeds from debt issuance - 9,407 - 9,407
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (30,452) (16,948) (62,826) (110,226)
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities (30,452) {5,297) (62,826) (98,575)
Investing activities
interest and dividends 0,273 1,303 34,411 44 987
Net cash provided {used) by investing activities 3,273 1,303 34,411 44,987
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalentsi/investments 111,948 {35.721) 699,489 775,724
Cash and cash squlvalantslinvestments
Beginning of year 1,307,158 330,210 5,877,142 7,514,510
End of year $ 1419104 § 294486 § 6576641 § B.290,234

Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities
Operating income (loss) 5 124,131 % 6,059 § 975,433 § 1,105,623
Adjustments to recancile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in} operating
activities:
Depreciation 8,578 24,576 4,398 37,552

Change in assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (1,647) - (6,647) (8,294)

(Increase) decrease in prepaid items - (115,472) {115,472}
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued liabiliies 2,063 28,419 (144,532) (114,0580)
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absence - (6,114) 4,292 (1,822)
Increase (decrease) in deferred ravenues - - 10,442 10,442
Totai adjustments 8.994 {37,786} (247.519) {276,311)
Net cash provided by (usad in) operating activites $ 133,125 $ (31,727 § 727,914 § 829,312
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Warranty Fleet Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2003)

Variance
Positive 2004 2003
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual

Operating revenues
Interfund charges and employee contributions § 215323 § (12,024) $ 203209 §$ 177,392

Total operating revenues 215,323 (12,024) 203,299 177,392
Operating expenditures
Maintenance and operations 85,371 14,781 70,520 70,964
Capital outlay 151,052 151,852 - -
Total operating expenditures 237,323 166,733 70,590 70,964
Operating income (loss) {22,000) 154,709 132,709 106,428
Nonoperating revenues
Interest earned on investments 22,000 4,185 26,195 29,992
Total nonoperating revenues 22.000 4,195 26,185 29,992
Revenues over (under) expenditures 3 - 3 1583904 $ 158,904 § 136,420

Reconciliation to net income (loss):

Total revenues $ 229494 § 207384
Totai expenditures 70,580 70,964
Subtotal 158,904 136,420
Depreciation (8,578) (18,835)
Change in fair market value of investments (16,922) 4197
Subtotal (25,500) (14,638)
Change in net assets 3 133,404 $ 121,782

126




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Fleet Maintenance Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004

{With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2003)

Variance
Positive 2004 2003
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual
Operating revenues
Interfund charges and empioyee contributions 1,582,388 § (357971) $§ 1234417 $ 1,187.263
Other revenues from operations - - - 550
Total operating revenues 1,582,388 (367,971) 1,234,417 1,187,813
Operating expenditures
Personnel 1,102,338 51,522 1,050,816 1,027,605
Maintenance and operations 485,525 326,445 159,080 127,437
Capital cutlay 25,006 25,906 - 4,210
Total operating expenditures 1,613,769 403,873 1,209,886 1,158,252
Operating income {loss) {21,381} 45,902 24,521 28,561
Nonoperating revenues
Interest earned - 1,807 1,807 -
Total nonoperating revenue - 1,807 1,807 -
Revenues over {under) expenditures {21,381) 47,709 26,328 28,561
Other financing sources (uses)
Capital Leases 20,610 (20,610) - -
Principal payments - - - -
Appropriated fund balance 771 (771) - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 21,381 (21,381) - -
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (under) expenditures - 8 26328 % 26328 % 28,561
Reconciliation to net income {loss):
Total revenues $ 1236224 $ 1,187,813
Total expenditures 1,209,886 1,159,252
Subtotal 26,328 28,561
Depreciation (24,576) (32,771)
Decrease (increase) in accrued vacation 6,114 (617}
Capital outlay - 4210
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets (3,665) -
Subtotal (22,127} (29,178)
Change in net assets 3 4,201 $ (817}
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
{nsurance Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2004
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2003)

Operating revenues

Interfund charges and employee contributions

Other revenues from operations
Total operating revenues

Operating expenditures
Personnel
Maintenance and operations
Total operating expenditures

Operating income (foss)

Nonoperating revenues
Interest earned on investments
Total nonoperating revenue

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Appropriated fund balance
Total other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other financing sources
(uses) over {under) expenditures

Reconciliation to net income (loss):
Total revenues
Total expenditures
Subtotal

Depreciation
Decrease (increase) in accrued vacation
Change in fair markat value of investments
Increase in insurance liability
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets

Subtotal

Change in net assets

Variance
Positive 2004 2003

Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
$ 11321534 § (833,584) § 10,487,950 9,870,003
25,500 217,558 243,058 132,805
11,347,034 (616,026) 10,731,008 10,002,898
356,805 16,661 340,144 380,138
11,084,229 1,617,512 9,466,717 9,446 987
11,441,034 1,634,173 9,806,861 9,827,125
{94,000) 1,018,147 924,147 175,773
94,000 8,086 102,086 129,830
94,000 8,086 102,086 129,930
- 1,026,233 1,026,233 305,703
- - - 329,502
- - - 329,562
$ - % 1026233 §$ 1026233 635,295
$ 10,833,094 10,462,420
9,806,861 9,827,125
1,026,233 635,295
{4,398) (1,673)
{4,.293) (3,537)
(67.675) 18,518
59,977 273,302
(16,389) 286,610
$  1.009,844 921,805
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

* Pension Trust Funds
* Private-purpose Trust Funds

The focus of Fiduciary Fund measurement differs among the various
types of funds that may be encompassed by this classification.



TRUST FUNDS

Trust Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee
capacity.

The following comprise the City's Trust Funds:
* Pension Trust Funds
* Special Separation Allowance Trust Fund
b PWC Supptemental Pension Trust Fund
* Private-purpose Trust Funds

Police Benefit Trust Fund

e Firemen's Relief Trust Fund



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Pension Trust Funds
June 30, 2004

Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivabie
Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payabie
Total liabilities

Net assets
Pension benefits
Total net assets

Special
Separation PWC
Allowance Supplemental
Pension Pension
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
$ 1838517 $ 3973917 3 5,612,434
5,080 - 5,980
1,644 497 3,973,917 5,618,414
11,087 - 11,087
11,087 - 11,087
1,633,410 3,873,917 5,607,327
3 1633410 $ 3973917 § 5,607,327
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Pension Trust Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Additions
Contributions
Investment earnings

Total additions

Deductions
Benefit payments and premiums
Totai deductions
Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

136

Special
Separation PWC
Allowance Supplemental
Pension Pension
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
318,188 § - 3 318,168
10,384 31,923 42 307
328,552 31,823 360,475
275404 49,160 324,564
275404 49,180 324,564
£3,148 {17,237) 35911
1,580,262 3,991,154 5,571,416

1633410 § 3973917 $ 5607327




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Private-purpose Trust Funds

June 30, 2004

Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Total fiabilities

Net assets
Heid in Trust
Total net assets

Police Fireman's
Benefit Benefit
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total

3 3,906 $ 1,369,389 1,373,295
14 15,325 15,330
3,920 1,384,714 1,388.634
3.920 1,384,714 1,388,634
3 3920 $ 1384714 1,388,634
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Private-purpose Trust Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Additions
Other revenue from operations
Contributions
investment earnings
Total additions

Deductions
Benefit payments and premiums
Total deductions
Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

Police Fireman's
Benefit Benefit
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
$ -8 24317 § 24317
305 - 305
16 17,110 17,126
321 41,427 41,748
- 60,332 60,332
- 60,332 60,332
321 (18,905) {18,584)
3,599 1,403,619 1,407,218
3 3020 & 1,384714 3 1,388,634
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA

Other supplemental data is presented to provide a more detailed view of

the current tax levy and taxes receivable, These schedules are not
funds and do not measure resuits of operations.



Original Levy:
Generail Fund

Late Listing Penalties:

General Fund
Subtotat

Discoveries:
General Fund

Late Listing Penalties:

General Fund
Subtotal

Releases:
General Fund

Late Listing Penalties:

General Fund
Subtotal

Adjusted Tax Levy

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Current Tax Levy

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Uncolected Current Year Taxes at 6/30/04

City-wide Current Year's Taxes Collected

Property
Excluding
Total Rate Registered Registered
Property Per Amount Motor Motor
Valuation $100 of Levy Vehicles Vehicles
7,342571.636 3 0530 § 38915830 $ 34474890 § 4,440,740
20,890 20,890 -
38,936,520 34 485 780 4,440,740
29,828,155 0.530 158,088 146,403 11,686
30,663 30,663 -
188,752 177 066 11,686
(133.649,238) 0.530 (708,341) (256,760) (451,581)
(12,852) (12,852) -
(721,183) (269,612} {451,581)
38,404,079 34,403,234 4,000,845
(1,597,296) {811,948) (785,348)
$ 36806783 § 33591286 § 3,215,497
95.84% 97 84% 80.37%

City-wide Current Levy Collection Percentage
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Taxes Receivable

June 30, 2004

Uncollected Uncollected
Balance Collections Balance
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003 Additions & Credits June 30, 2004
2004 $ - $ 39125272 3 37,527,978 3 1,587,296
2003 1,602,373 438 1,068,033 536,828
2002 536,312 897 186,890 350,118
All Prior 1,510,713 57 248,073 1,264,697
3,649,398 $ 38126514 3 39,026,972 3,748,940
Less: Allowance for Uncollectibie Taxes ’
General Fund (687,702) (713,019)
b 2,961,696 $ 3,035,921
Generai Fund Taxes Receivable 3,376,391
Less: CBTD Taxes Receivable (5,378)
Less: Vehicle License Fee Receivable (335,092)
General Fund Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 5 3,035,921
Reconciliations of collections and credit
with revenues
Ad Valorern Taxes 3 38,431,862
Releases Current Year-General Fund 721,193
Releases of other than current year-General Fund 127,581
Barred by State Statute-General Fund 111,863
Less Penaities & Interest (293,598)
Less Taxes - CBTD (71,839)
3 30,026,872
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OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND
STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT
COMPLIANCE SECTION

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Report on Compliance with Reguirements Appiicabie to
Each Major Federal Program and Internal Control Over
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the
State Single Audit implementation Act

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to
Each Major State Program and Internal Control Over
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Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation
Act

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
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CERTIFIED PCBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &

CONSULTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
) GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (“the City") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 8,
2004. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal controf over financial reporting in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and
net to provide an opinion on the internal control over financiai reporting. Our consideration of the internal control
would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material
weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of ane or more of
the internat control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by
error or fraud in amounts that would be material in reiation to the financial statements being audited may occur
and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the narmal course of performing their assigned
functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we
consider to be material weaknesses. We noted other matters involving the internal control over financial
reporting that we have reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated October 8, 2004.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regufations, contracts and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or cther matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

This report is intended for the information and use of the audit committee, management, others within the
organization, members of the City Council, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities,
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

I\ VR T LW B

Fayetteviile, Narth Carolina
Cctober 8, 2004



CERTIHIED PUBLIC
ACCQUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE iIN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR
A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (“the City”) with the types of

compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in Naorth Carolina, issued by the
Lecal Government Commission, that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2004. The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's resuits section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the
City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act.
Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in ail material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2004.

Internal Control Qver Compliance

The management of the City is respansible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of iaws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal controi over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compiiance and to test and report on
internal contral over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act.




The Honcrable Mayor

and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Caralina
Page 2

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disciose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A materiai weakness is a reportable condition in which
the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
caused by error or fraud that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation
that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended for the information and use of the audit committee, management, others within the
organization, members of the City Council, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through
entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

S QR v N e

Fayetteviile, North Carolina
October 8, 2004



CERTTFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR STATE
PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE
SECTIONS OF OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (“the City") with the types of

compliance requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued
by the Local Government Commission, that are applicable to each of its major State programs for the year
ended June 30, 2004. The City's major State programs are identified in the summary of auditor's resuits
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements
of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major State programs is the respansibility
of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our
audit,

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; applicable sections of OMB Circular A-
133 as described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Caroiina, and the State Single
Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, and the State
Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of comptiance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major State program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonabie basis for our
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to each of its major State pregrams for the year ended June 30, 2004,

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to State programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compiiance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major State program in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compiiance in accordance with applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133 and the State
Single Audit Implementation Act.




The Honorable Mayor

and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteviile, North Carolina
Page 2

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which
the design or operation of one or more of the intemat control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of Iaws, regulations, contracts and grants
caused by error or fraud that would be material in relation to a major State program being audited may occur
and not be detected within a timely period by empioyees in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we
consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended for the information and use of the audit committee, management, others within the

organization, members of the City Council, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through
entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

M\,Q&Q\ ¥ Nl L8

Fayetteville, North Carolina
October 8, 2004



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004
SECTION I. Summary of Auditor's Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

- Material weakness(es) identified Yes X~ No

- Reportable conditions(s) identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses Yes X Nene reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted Yes X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:
- Material weakness(es) identified Yes X No

- Reportable conditions(s) identified
that are not considerad to be
matertal weaknesses Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to federal
awards Yes X No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Ungqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133 Yes X Na

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Numbers Names of Federal Program or Cluster
20.106 Airport Improvement Program
11.300 Cedar Creek Industrial Park Sewer Extension Project

Dallar threshold used to distinguish

between Type A and Type B Programs 3 306,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs {continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

State Awards

Internal controf over major State programs:

- Materiat weakness(es) identified Yes

X

- Reportable conditions(s) identified
that are not considered to be

material weaknesses Yes

X

X

Noncompliance material to State awards Yes

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major State pragrams:

Any audit findings disciosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with the State Single Audit
implementation Act Yes X

Identification of major State programs:

Program Name
Powell Bill

Clean Water Revolving Loan

Section Il. Financial Statement Findings

None reported.
Section lll. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
Nane reported.
Section IV. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.
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No

None reported

No

Unqualified

No



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

None reportable.
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City of Fayetteville, North Carofina

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

for the Year Ended June 30, 2004

State/
Faderal Pasgs-through Faderal (Direct
GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH CFDA Grantor's & Pass-through) Total
Grantor/Program Title numbar Numbar Expenditures Expenditures
FEDERAL GRANTS:
.S, DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOSMENT
Cammunity Development Block Grant
Various Years' Entilements 14.218 B-XX-MC-37-0005 $1,632.142 1,632.142
HOME Investment Partnership Program
Varieus Years' Entifaments 14.239 M-XX-MC-37-0203 237.220 237,220
US DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Locat Law Enforcement Block Granis Program
Local Law Enfarcement Block 2001 16.582 2001-LB-8X-3433 5,669 5669
Local Law Enforcement Black 2002 16.582 2002-L8-BX-2504 81 81
Local Law Enforcemant Block 2003 168.592 2003-LB-BX-2466 110,120 110,120
115,870 115870
Office of Justice Programs
Bulletproaf Vest Partnership 16.607 Year 2001 10,553 10,553
Operation Ceasa Fire Grant 16.508 2003-GPCX-0153 43,873 43973
54,526 54,526
Cops Homeland Security Grant 16.710 2003CMX0146 16,604 16,604
Passed through Governor's Crime Commission
Geographic nformation Systems Project 16.579 026-1-03-158-A0-234 106,088 106,089
Operation Ceasefle Media Blitz 16579 026-1-03-001-AZ-060 8345 8.345
Operation Ceasefie Equipment 16.579 026-1-03-001-AZ-075 12,648 12,548
Cyber Crimes Against Children 16.579 026-1-02-18-0-887 8,483 8,483
135,565 135,565
U.5. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Special Programs for the Aging
Passed Through NC Dapartment of Health & Human Services
Senior Ciizens Service Center 93.044 NA 10,589 10,589
US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTAYION
Faderai Aviation Adrnin|stration
Airport Improvement Program
Rehabilitate Tenminat Building, Phase Il 20.106 FAA-3-37-0021-26 383,692 383,692
Land, Masterpian, Snow Plows 20,106 FAA-3-37.0021-28 1,067,186 1,067,186
Remave Obstruction in Appraaches & Terminal Loop Design 20106 FAA-3-37-0021.29 2,396 2,396
1,453,274 1453274
Passed through NC Dept of Transportation
Governor's Highway Safety Program
Strict and Fair Enforcement Program 20,600 157(b)-03-14-02-17 4,008 4,008
Highway Planning and Construction
‘Enhancament Agresment - Depot 20.205 E-4118 508,826 508,826
ISTEA24
Cape Fear River Trail 20.205 E-4533 759,060 759,080
Raimad improvements at Hilsbora St and Cumberand Rd 20.205 10.280 10,250
1.278,146 1,278,145
Federal Transportation Administration
Operating 2ssistance grant 20507 NC 90.4327 972,000 672,000
Capital 2ssistanca grants:
Capital 20507 NC 30.0313 972 872
Capital 20.507 NC 90.0274 37,963 37,983
Planning 20.507 NC 30.2292 934 954
Planning 20.507 NC 90.2327 1,819 1,819
Planning 20.507 NC 90.2313 75,469 75,469
1.088.177 1,089,177
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
for the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Statel
Faderal Pass-through Federal (Direct
GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH CFDA Grantor's 8 Pass-through) State Total
GrantoriProgram Titie number Number Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures
EEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENGY
Assistance to Firefighters 85.554 EMW-2002-FG-00847 §234,195 - 234195
4.8, ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY, REGION &
Brownfisids Pilots Cooperative Agreemant
Ragian 4 - Direct Program 66.811 #VOB4206-37-0 5,086 5.086
\Vuinerability Assessments and Related Security
Imarovements at large Drinking Water Utifities 66.476 HS830131-01-0 33,458 33,458
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Economic Development Administration
Cedar Creek Indusirial Park Sewer Extension Projsct 11.3¢0 04-01-05110 508,690 - 508,650
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
Eish and Wildiife Service
Water Shed Praservation 15.FFB 1448-4018498-G-075 3,623 - 3623
STATE GRANTS:
NC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Aviatlon Division
Rehabilitate Terminai Building, Phase i N/A 8.95440 - 21,318 21318
|.and, Maslemian, Snow Plows NA 36244.274.3 - 53,238 59,288
Paiice Officar Jackets N/A 36244.27.45 - 1,922 1922
Stomwater Improvernents Phase | NIA 36244.27.4.4 - 8,860 8,860
Terminal Roof Replacement NiA 36244.27.4.2 58,788 58,788
- 180,174 150,174
Public Transportation Division
Maintenance Assistance NiA 2.9051698 - 828,248 828,248
Planning N/A 36223.7.5.7 - 227 227
Planning N/A 8.9052267 - 19 119
Planning N/A 362237.46 9,434 9,434
- 838,028 838,028
Mazarick Bike Trail Ni& 123,498 123,498
Powell Bilt NiA - 3,597 658 3,597,658
NC DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL RESQURCES
Division of Water Quality NEW LOAN
NC Clean Water Revolving Loan & Grant Pragram Ni& E-SRF-T-02-0124 5,136,865 5.136.865
Divison of Parks and Recreation
Cape Fear River Trail N/A 1999-85 - 250,000 250,000
NC DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES
Passed tirough from Cumbariand County Department of Soclal Services
Juvenile Court Restitudon N/A 526015 - 98,347 98,347
NC DEPARTMENT OF CRIME CONTROL & PUBLIC SAFETY
Divisien of Emergency Management
Hazmat (Temorism) HS-TE-02-1108 90,752 30,752
TOTAL ASSISTANCE $6.812171 10,285,322 17.087,493

NOTES Y0 THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS:

1. The accomoanying schedule of expendituras of Federsl and Stale awards includes the Federal and State grant aclivity of the City of Fayetteville and s presented on the modified accrual

2as:s of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accardance with the requirements of OMB Circutar A-133. “Aygits of States. Local Governments. and Non-Prafit Groanizations,"

Therefora, some amounts oresented in this schedule may differ fom amounts presentad in, or used in the praparaton af the basic financial statements.

2 The ‘otal local match requirements for the Federal and State Transit operating assistance grants was $681,135. The actual local mateh which the City of Fayettevilie expended for the operations

of the transit system was $1,163.211.37

3. The total locat contributions for the State Powel! Bl assistance amauntsd to $52.907.45 ( this represents assessments received through G8/30/04).

4. The total amount provided ta CHDO from the HOME Investment Partnership was $202,920.15,
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PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE
COMPLIANCE SECTION

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to the
Passenger Faciiity Charge Program and Internal Control
Over Compliance in Accordance with the Passenger Facility
Charge Program Audit Guide

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Summary Scheduie of Prior Year Audit Findings

Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges



CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE PASSENGER FACILITY
CHARGE PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE PROGRAM AUDIT GUIDE

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Caroiina

Compliance
We have audited the compiiance of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (“the City") with the compliance

requirements described in the Passenger.Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, issued by the
Federal Aviation Administration (Guide), for its passenger facility charge program for the year ended June
30, 2004. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its
passenger facility charge program is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Guide. Those standards and the
Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on the passenger facility charge program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the City'’s compliance with those requirements and perfarming such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with those
requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to its passenger facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 2004.

Internal Control Over Campiiance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of faws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to the passenger facility
charge program. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over
compiiance with requirements that couid have a direct and material effect on the passenger facility charge
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpase of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control aver compliance in accordance with the Guide.

Our consideration of the internal contro! over compliance weuld not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which
the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, reguiations, confracts, and grants
caused by error or fraud that would be material in relation to the passenger facility charge program being
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely pericd by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and
its operation that we consider to be materiai weaknesses.



The Honorable Mayor

and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
Page 2

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, others within
the organization, members of the City Council, the Federal Aviation Administration, and federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

QS&...\’ Q.»»..E\ R AR

Fayetteville, North Carolina
October 8, 2004



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Passenger Facility Charge Program
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004
SECTION |. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Ungualified

Internal control over financial reporting;

- Materiai weakness(es) identified Yes X No
- Reportable conditions(s) identified

that are not considered to be
material weaknesses Yes X Nane reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted Yes X No

Passenaer Facility Charge Program
Internal controi over passenger facility charge program:
- Material weakness(es) identified Yes X No
- Reportable conditions(s) identified
that are not considered to be

material weaknesses Yes X None reported

Noncompiiance material to passenger

facility charge program Yes X No

Type of auditer's report issued on compliance for passenger facility charge program:
Ungualified

Any audit findings disclosed Yes X No

Section ll. Financial Statement Findings

None reported.
Section lll. Passenger Facility Charge Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings
Passenger Facility Charge Program

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

None reported.
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Project

APPLICATION 1 { ¥ 00-01-C-00-FAY)
Locai share reimburssmam AIP-12,
Canstruction of a Fira Training Facility
and Rehabiltation of a 1500-Gallen
ARFF Venicie

Loacal share mimbursement AlP.12,
Install Sacurity Accass Control Syslem

Locat share reimbarsemenl AlP-13,
Undate Airport Master Plan

Local share reimbursement AlP-13,

Besign Highway 301 Conneclor

Local share reimbursement AlP-14,
instailation of Taxiway Guidance Sgns
and Rurmway End identificalion Lights

Lecal share reimbursement AIP-14, Lang
Acquisition

Legal share raimbursement AiP-14,
Improve Tarminal Building

Local share reimbursement AlP-15,
Casign New Genemi Aviation Ares

Local share raimbursement AtP-15,
Foreign Object Dzmage Swaeper

Local share reimbursement AlP-15,
Design Taxiway "

Local share reimbursement AiP-15,
Renzbiitaie General Aviation Apron

Local share reimbursement AIP-15, Land
for Development

Local share reimbursement AlP-18,
Terminal Loading Bridges

Local shara reimbursement AlP-17,
New Gengral Aviation Construction

Local share reimburssment AtP-18,
Acquire Handicap Lift Devics

Local Share reimbursement ALP-18,
Rengbiitale Terminsl Suiding

Local share reimbursement AIP-19,
Aircraft Rescue & Firefighting Vanhicis

Locaf share reimbursement AiP-20,
Design Mon-licensac Yehicle Road

Locat share reimbursement AP-20,
Dasign of Taxiway “K” {Revised}

Local shara reimbursement AiP-20,
Instalation of Water Main

Lecal share reimbursement AlP-21,
Alimert Entrance Road

Local share reimbursement AlP-21,
Jetway Bridge Mogifications

Local share reimbursement AlP-21,
Security System Upgrade

Local share reimbursament AlP-21,
Freplan Runway Safely Areas

North GA Ramp Canstruction
Sacurity System Upgrade Phase il
Design & Construct RSA, Runway &
Acquire Land

Renovate Terminel, 2hase it

Imposa
Effective

Date

1170172000

11/01/2000

11/01/2000

11/01/2000

110172000

11/01/2000

1170172000

1140172000

110172000

110172000

11/01/2000

11/01/2000

11/1/z000

11/01/2000

11/01/2000

1170172000

11/01/2000

14/04/2C00

11/01/2C00

11/04/2000

11/01/2000

11/01/2000

11/01/200C

11/04/2000
/0142000
11/61/2600
31/01/2000
11/01/2000

11/01/2000

Scheeduia of Expenditures of
Passenger Facility Chargas
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Use Cumulative Approved Amount PFC Revenue PFC Revanue Total PFC
Effective Expenditures Expenditures of Use Used in Used In Revenues
Date Actual for PFC's Approval Prior Years Current Year Used
11012000 § 3.830,753 3,830,753 181,538 181,538 - 191,538
117012000 757,508 157,538 37,380 37,880 - 37,830
+1/6172060 135,020 67.510 8751 8,751 - 8,751
11/01/2000 194,655 184,655 9,733 2,732 - 8,733
110172000 168,191 188,192 9810 2910 - 9910
11/01/20CC 134,612 134,462 6731 6,731 - 6,731
11/012000 31,224 31,224 1,474 1,474 - 1474
11/01/2060 208,286 206,288 11,460 11,460 {1,148} 10314
11/01/2000 15,632 15,632 B2 782 - 782
11/01/2000 16,841 16,841 a42 342 - 842
11/01/2000 29875 29,875 1,494 1,434 - 1,434
11/01/2000 49,001 48,475 2,424 2,424 - 2,424
11/01/2000 179,808 179,808 5,990 8,990 - 8,990
11/01/2000 2362380 2,342,376 114,360 114,860 - 114,860
11/01/2000 35,680 35,680 1.784 1,784 - 1,784
14/21/200Q 1820477 1,820,478 83367 83,367 - 83,367
114012000 319,789 318,763 15,988 15,988 - 15,288
11/01/200Q 31810 30545 1,527 1.527 - 1,527
11/01/2000 13,287 12,887 644 644 - 644
11/01/2000 78,568 78,299 3915 3,915 - 1916
1140142000 360,018 350,000 17,500 17,500 - 17,500
11/01/2000 38,887 46,195 2,310 1.944 - 1,844
14/01/2000 91,512 70,815 3541 3.541 - 3,544
110172000 108,600 109,500 5,481} 5,430 - 543G
06/18/2002 1,554,453 1,404,170 70.209 70,209 - 70.208
06/18/2002 141,216 138,340 6,967 6,967 - £.967
06/18/2002 858,872 §48,000 47,450 42,943 - 43,343

06/18/2002 - 138,111 13811 - - -
06/18/2002 1921145 2475430 93433 81,814 24,141 86,055
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Project

RSA Construction, Runway 4, Phase (|
Land Acquisitien

Renovate Terminat, Phase i

RSA Construction, Runway 22
Acniuire Land

NLVR Canstruction

Jat Bridge Modification Constructian

Taxiway K Caonstruction
TOTAL IMPOSE AND USE
Acquirs Land

TOTAL IMPOSE ONLY

TOTAL APPLICATICON 1

Scheeduis of Expenditures of
Passanger Facliity Charges
Yaar Ended June 30, 2004

Irmpose Use Cumulative Approved Amount PFC Ravenue PFC Revenue Total PFC
Effective Effective Expenditures Expenditures of Use Used In Used in Revenues
Date Date Actual for PFC's Approvai Priar Years Current Year Usad
110172000 08r18/2002 258,872 848,000 40,000 40,000 - 40,000

140172000 08/18/2002 - 138,111 1,411 - - -
11A01/2000  08/18/2002 - 2,475,430 37,500 - - -
1170172000 061872002 1,855,260 1,263,820 86,389 86,389 - 848,389
11/01/2000  06/18/2002 - 177,778 17.778 - - -
110172000 06/18/2002 540,322 180,000 25385 25,395 - 25,395
11012000 06/18/2002 - 125,500 8,275 - - -
11/01/2000  06/18/2002 483,002 225,000 22,500 22,500 - 22,500
19,253 457 21,564,714 1,009,843 §96,826 22995 319,821
11/01/2000 1,065,249 1,065,348 16,670 - - -
1,085,349 1,065,348 16,670 - - -
20,31% 22,630,063 1.0&5_,5 13 838@_26_ 22,995 91%
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